
9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, June 15, 2011 

Name Please rint Affiliation Phone No. 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

8 

9 

1 

1 

16 

17 

20 

21 Dr 

22 

23 

24 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Wednesday, June 15, 2011 

nt) Affiliation 

l 
l 

Phone No. 

l I 



) 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8686 

Web Page: www.azwaterbank.gov 

PLEASE POST 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC MEETING 

Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.02, notice is hereby given that there will be a meeting of the 
Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission on Wednesday, June 15, 2011 at 10:00 a.m. at 
the Arizona Department of Water Resources, 3550 North Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 
85012, Upper Verde Conference Room. The meeting is open to the general public. 

Dated this 14
th 

day of June, 2011 

FINAL AGENDA 

Arizona Water Banking Authority Commission Meeting 

I. Welcome/Opening Remarks

II. Approval of Minutes

111. 

• March 30, 2011 meeting

Water Banking Staff Activities 
• Deliveries
• ICUA certification for 201 O
• Groundwater Savings Facility Agreement renewals
• CAWCD ad valorem tax levy
• Update on legislative transfers
• On-going Indian settlement negotiations
• Update on CAWCD v. Brewer

IV. 201 O Annual Report
• Overview of 201 O Annual Report
• Discussion regarding Ten-Year Plan 2012-2021
• Potential approval of 201 O Annual Report and Ten-Year Plan

V. FY 2012 Administrative Budget
• Overview of FY 2012 administrative budget
• Potential adoption of FY 2012 administrative budget



VI. Discussion on the Distribution of AWBA Long-Term Storage Credits During
Shortages
• Stakeholder meeting summary
• Meeting with CAWCD and ADWR

VII. Call to the Public

Future Meeting Dates: 
Wednesday, September 21, 2011 
Wednesday, December 7, 2011 

All visitors must use the south elevators; please stop at the :t1d floor to sign-in and receive a visitor's badge. 
Badges are to be displayed at all times. Visitors are also required to sign out and return their badges. Thank 
you for your assistance. 

Persons with a disability may request a reasonable accommodation, such as a sign language 

interpreter, by contacting Virginia O'Connell at (602) 771-8491, TDD# (602) 771-8501. Requests 

should be made as early as possible to allow time to arrange the accommodation. 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 
Draft Minutes 

March 30, 2011 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 

Welcome/Opening Remarks 
Chairman Sandra Fabritz-Whitney welcomed the attendees. All 
members of the Authority were present except for ex-officio

members, Senator Steve Pierce and Representative Kirk Adams. 

Chairman Fabritz-Whitney announced that there were resolutions 
recognizing the seNice and contributions of Kim Mitchell, Herb 

AUTHORITY MEMBERS. 
Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, Chairman Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman
Tom Buschatzke, Secreta,y
John Mawhinney 
Lisa A. Atkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Senator Steve Pierce 
Representative Andy Tobin 

Guenther and Larry Dozier for the Authority to consider approving. Tom Buschatzke 
read the resolution recognizing Kim Mitchell, former Manager of the AWBA. The 
resolution was unanimously approved. Virginia O'Connell read the resolution 
recognizing Herb Guenther, former Chairman of the AWBA. The resolution was 
unanimously approved. Lisa Atkins read the resolution recognizing Larry Dozier, former 
Deputy General Manager of the Central Arizona Water ConseNation District (CAWCD). 
The resolution was also unanimously approved. 

Election of Commission Officers 
Virginia O'Connell informed the Authority that the election of Vice-chairman and 
Secretary is required by statute. Tom Buschatzke made a motion to nominate Maureen 
George for Vice-chairman. The motion carried. Ms. George made a motion to 
nominate Mr. Buschatzke for Secretary. The motion carried. 

Approval of Minutes of December 8, 2010, January 11, 2011 Work-Study Session and 
January 11, 2011 Special Meeting 
The Authority approved the minutes of the December 8, 2010 AWBA meeting, and the 
minutes of both the January 11, 2011 Work-Study Session and Special Meeting. 

Water Banking Staff Activities 
Gerry Wildeman noted that water deliveries through February 2011 are ahead of 
projections with approximately 9, 000 AF stored versus 2,000 AF projected. Most of the 
water was stored at the Lower Santa Cruz facility in the Tucson Active Management 
Area (AMA) and at the Tonopah Desert facility in the Phoenix AMA. Ms. Wildeman also 
reviewed total deliveries for 2010. In 2010, the AWBA delivered 192,712 AF for 
Arizona uses and 19,000 AF for interstate purposes. For the interstate deliveries, 
14,000 AF were delivered to Pima County and 5,000 AF were delivered to Maricopa 
County. The AWBA utilized shortage reparation funds in 201 Oto purchase water that 
became available early in the year. 

Ms. Wildeman informed the Authority that staff had submitted a water storage permit 
application to ADWR for the Superstition Mountain Recharge Project in the Phoenix 
AMA. She noted that this is a new CAWCD project that will provide additional flexibility 
for water storage. Projected AWBA use of the facility is anticipated to be about 15,000 
AF per year. Phase I of the project is 25,000 AF and should be operational in June of 
2011; Phase II is 56,500 AF. Staff received the complete and correct letter notice for 



the application that morning. Ms. Wildeman also provided a status update regarding 
the three water storage permit renewal applications recently submitted for the Queen 
Creek Irrigation District Groundwater Savings Facility (GSF) in the Phoenix AMA and 
the Central Arizona and Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation District GSFs in the Pinal AMA. 
Review is complete and the AWBA is waiting for issuance of the permits. Discussions 
with ADWR staff have shown that the permits will cost less than the $2,000 appli cation 
fee; most likely closer to $1,000 per permit. 

Ms. O'Connell informed the Authority that staff had been attending the "Hammer it out 
Group" or HIOG-2 meetings as directed since they began in January. At the February 
18, 2011 meeting, Ms. O'Connell presented a proposal that had been drafted to clarify 
the nature of AWBA participation in the ADD Water process. She noted that while it is 
the AWBA's preference to utilize excess CAP water under its contract with CAWCD, 
additional water supplies may be needed to meet the AWBA's Indian settlement and 
Nevada contract obligations. The following points were made in the proposal: ( 1) the 
AWBA is not eligible to hold any type of long-term contract; (2) the AWBA is eligible to 
enter into agreements with long-term contract holders for short-term or interim use of 
water; (3) the AWBA is eligible to purchase any excess water within the ADD water 
program at the established price for that water; and (4) the AWBA is eligible to hold any 
other type or short-term or spot market contracts that may be available. CAWCD staff 
indicated that this proposal simply clarified their position. Other stakeholders at the 
meeting concurred that this proposal was no different than what their perceptions were 
regarding AWBA participation in the ADD Water Program. Ms. O'Connell noted that 
one stakeholder did comment that it would be premature to include language in the 
ADD Water Program proposal regarding the AWBA's ability to enter into potential 
partnerships with long-term contract holders because that component of the program 
was not yet developed. Another stakeholder questioned whether the AWBA was 
seeking a priority for water within the program. Ms. O'Connell had responded that the 
AWBA was not, it only wanted the ability to participate in the program if necessary. 

Tim Henley updated the Authority on AWBA staff attendance at a meeting regarding 
transportation of groundwater from the Harquahala Irrigation Non-expansion Area 
(INA). AWBA staff was invited to attend the meeting by Peter Culp, who was 
representing CV Harquahala (CVH), because they view the AWBA as a potential 
customer. CVH is a major landowner of irrigated lands in the Harquahala INA and they 
are interested in transporting groundwater out of the INA for use in the AMAs. At the 
meeting, Mr. Culp identified and discussed issues identified by CVH. Mr. Henley noted 
that AWBA participation would likely not be for interstate purposes. John Mawhinney 
asked if there were any statutory prohibitions associated with the proposal. Mr. Henley 
replied that statutes allow for movement of groundwater out of certain basins, however, 
there are a number of limitations, such as the volume of water per acre that may be 
transported and what entity can transport the groundwater .. Ms. George asked about 
the interpretation of "from the land" and Mr. Henley stated that this is a primary issue 
and one that ADWR is currently working on as it relates to another groundwater basin. 
In summary, the question is whether the allotment of water which is tied to a specific 
acre must be taken from that acre, or whether multiple allotments can be grouped and 
taken from a single location. Mr. Henley informed the Authority that staff would 
continue to participate in these discussions and will provide updates. 

2 



Ms. O'Connell provided the Authority with an update on legislative transfers from the 
Arizona Water Banking (AWB) Fund. Most recently, there was a transfer of $10,300 
from the Administration subaccount that accounted for the loss of the merit portion of 
staff salaries and mandatory furlough days. She noted that, although a final budget for 
fiscal year (FY) 2011-2012 has not been approved, the JLBC (Senate Bill 1612) and 
Executive budgets both proposed a transfer of $312,000. The JLBC has also proposed 
the same transfer amount for FY 2012-2013. She stated th?t the transfers usually take 
place in July and that the amount identified is roughly 10% of the total withdrawal fee 
revenues the AWBA receives. Mr. Mawhinney asked how this transfer would impact 
the 2011 Plan of Operation (Plan). Ms. O'Connell stated that storage in the Pinal and 
Tucson AMAs would be impacted if the transfer is pro-rated among the three AMA 
withdrawal fee subaccounts because the Plan included the expenditure of all available 
funds in those AMAs. She noted that there are a number of ways to deal with the loss: 
(1) transfer the entire amount from the Phoenix AMA subaccount because there are
other funds available to pay for the scheduled deliveries in that AMA; or (2) if the
amount is pro-rated, end-of-year (2011) 4-cent tax monies collected in Pinal and Pima 
Counties that were intended for use in 2012. This would result in decreased 2012 
deliveries in those counties. Another option could be to utilize shortage reparation 
funds to pay for scheduled deliveries to the Pinal and Tucson AMAs. A full set of 
options will be provided to the Commission members at the next AWBA meeting in 
June. Ms. Atkins questioned whether the Authority had the ability to discuss these 
impacts with the legislature. Ms. O'Connell stated that the legislature did not ask the 
AWBA about the impacts, however, staff has on a number of previous occasions 
provided written materials to the legislature informing them of how transfers impact the 
AWBA's ability to meet its obligations. 

Ms. O'Connell reviewed Senate Bill 1470 concerning the dissolution of county water 
authorities, i.e. the Mohave County Water Authority. The bill passed in the Senate and 
was transmitted to the House of Representatives. Opponents of the bill are currently 
working with the bill's sponsor and supporters to address their concerns in an attempt to 
keep the bill from moving forward. 

Ms. O'Connell provided an update on the Indian firming negotiations. She stated that 
the parties to the Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement are still 
negotiating and that Senator Kyl was here the previous week to provide direction on the 
negotiations. Sen. Kyl indicated that the settlement, as it was currently proposed, was 
too expensive and that the parties needed to work towards decreasing the cost. He 
also noted that if he will be sponsoring the bill, it would need to be submitted by June of 
this year, since he will be retiring when his term ends in 2012. Mr. Mawhinney stated 
that the Authority had previously discussed preparing a letter to the governor's office 
stating that the AWBA does not have the money to meet any state firming obligation. 
Mr. Henley replied that a major portion of the cost of the settlement is the pipeline and if 
the pipeline is removed from the settlement to save cost, the amount of water in the 
settlement will be less and the state might not have any new firming obligation. 
Nonetheless, he noted that the negotiators have been informed that AWBA staff must 
be present if they are discussing anything that would result in a state firming obligation. 
He noted that the governor's office is firm on the stance that there cannot be a 
settlement if funds are not available to meet the state's obligations. Mr. Buschatzke 
stated that there are potential ramifications if a settlement is not reached, particularly in 

3 



the form of uncertainty for the M&I subcontractors. Mr. Henley noted that the pipeline 
was what gave certainty on the Colorado River. Without the pipeline component, that 
certainty does not exist. However, settlement is a priority for ADWR because it would 
result in a number of other positive outcomes for the state. 

Larry Dozier provided an update on the status of CA WCD v. Brewer. He noted that the 
hearing keeps getting postponed but will be held on Friday, April 1. Mr. Mawhinney 
questioned whether there was any plan in the event that CAWCD won the case. Mr. 
Dozier stated that he did not think that any ruling would result in the AWBA getting back 
monies that had already been swept, but could likely result in protection for future 
money obtained from Nevada for interstate water banking purposes. 

Storage Facility Inventory Update 
Ms. Wildeman briefly reviewed the purpose and timing of the facility inventory update 
and provided an overview of the information found within the document. The 2011 
update is similar in content to all previous u�dates. She noted that a key component of
the inventory is the analysis shown in the 4t column of Tables 1 A, 2A and 3A. This 
column is titled "Projected Capacity Available to AWBA" and is based on staff 
knowledge and recent historical AWBA use at facilities. The second set of tables for 
each AMA then projects AWBA water deliveries from 2012 through 2020. These 
projections are based on the assumptions made within the AWBA 10-year plan for that 
time period and are based largely on availability of water and funding. The 
determination regarding whether sufficient storage capacity is available to the AWBA is 
based on the information in Table 4 which compares the capacity available to the 
AWBA in each AMA with the projected total water deliveries in that AMA through 2020. 
The table shows that the capacity available exceeds the projected deliveries in every 

AMA and every year through 2020. Therefore, the conclusion is that there are sufficient 
storage facilities to meet the AWBA's needs through 2020. 

Ms. Wildeman noted that AWBA staff received two comments on the draft facility 
inventory. One comment was a minor technical correction and one was received from 
an entity in the Tucson AMA requesting that the AWBA analyze the outcome in the 
Tucson AMA if water and money were not limiting factors in that AMA. This comment 
resulted in the footnote added to the conclusion of the inventory. In order to meet the 
Tucson AMA M&I firming goal, a total of 48,000 acre-feet of water must be stored in 
every year between 2011 and 2020. Because the capacity available to the AWBA for 
storage in the Tucson AMA is 86,500 acre-feet, the conclusion remains the same for 
the Tucson AMA, even if water and funding are not limiting factors. 

Mr. Buschatzke had a question regarding the assumptions in the 10-year plan and Ms. 
O'Connell discussed the applicable components of that plan. Ms. George noted that 
this analysis brings her back to the underlying question with Indian firming. If water is a 
limiting factor in this inventory, where would the water come from for any additional 
obligations the state could incur for Indian firming? Ms. O'Connell noted that the AWBA 
would need to look at means of acquiring additional water supplies. 

A motion and second were made to approve the final draft of the 2011 Storage Facility 
Inventory. The motion carried. 

4 



Scope of AWBA Supply and Demand Study 
Mr. Henley noted that Ms. George's question was the perfect segue into this agenda 
item. He stated that the subject scope of work describes re-running the model to re
analyze the number of credits that are needed for all of the AWBA's goals and 
obligations and how long those credits will last. It is Mr. Henley's intent to have model 
runs completed such that there is a draft available by mid-May in order to have it
available for review at the June meeting. The scope of work details that there are four 
potential scenarios to be modeled: (1) limited number of shortages; (2) median number 
of shortages but beginning earlier; (3) median number of shortages but beginning later; 
and (4) larger number of more frequent shortages. Mr. Henley stated that the results of 
these model runs will help the Authority start discussing the following: (1) How soon 
does the AWBA need to start looking at additional water supplies?; (2) How much 
additional water is needed?; (3) How will the Authority distribute the credits that it has?; 
(4) How much will any new demand for credits cost?; and (5) How much does the
Authority want to spend? In response to a question regarding shortage demand
assumptions, Mr. Henley noted that the model currently runs based on M&I
subcontractor's current use of their subcontract, not the full subcontract volume. This is
a model component that is being updated at this time.

Initial Discussion of Potential Policy for Transfer of Long-term Storage Credits 
during Declared Shortages 
Mr. Henley informed the Authority that a number of questions have come out of the 
recent CAWCD staff recovery planning meetings, particularly with respect to how the 
AWBA is involved in the process. This is also an issue that the CAWCD Board is being 
briefed on. He stated that the AWBA has the responsibility to distribute long-term 
storage credits during shortages and that the credits accrued with 4¢ ad valorem tax 
funds must go to CAWCD, but it is unclear to whom the withdrawal fee credits must be 
distributed to. There are also additional questions that must be clarified with respect to 
when credits will be distributed and how many will be distributed, i.e._ what volume is 
being firmed. Mr. Henley stated that clarification of these points is something that 
AWBA staff would like to undertake in the short-term. 

Ms. Atkins noted that this is the exact issue coming before the CAWCD Board at its 
next meeting. Although CAWCD has an operational recovery plan in place, they are 
now starting to look at developing policies associated with credits, allocations of 
shortages, etc. Ms. George stated that she recognizes that AWBA staff must work 
cooperatively with CAWCD staff in this process, but that AWBA be an equal partner. 
She also stated that she would like to see this be a standing agenda item with regular 
updates from staff. Mr. Dozier stated that none of these issues can be addressed in a 
vacuum. Additionally, he noted that he does not see it as a CAWCD/AWBA process, 
but believes the Bureau of Reclamation and ADWR will also be involved in the 
discussions. He indicated that CAWCD staff will move forward in developing an 
operational plan that will be flexible enough to allow future policy decisions to be 
incorporated. The questions are detailed in the discussion paper provided to the 
Authority. 

Mr. Buschatzke stated that some of these issues, such as the distribution of withdrawal 
fee credits and the amount of shortage the AWBA will be firming for each M&I entity, 
will need further discussion. He suggested having a series of meetings geared to 

5 



addressing the issues in a comprehensive manner. He stated that time is really of the 
essence because the M&I subcontractors require a fairly long planning horizon. The 
following entities spoke regarding their desire for this to take place in the short-term in 
coordination with CAWCD and with stakeholder participation: Beth Miller (City of 
Scottsdale); Mark Holmes (City of Mesa); Robin Stinnett (City of Avondale); Jeff Ehlers 
(SAP); Mike Block (Metro Water); Dee Korich (Tucson Water); Doug Kupel (City of 
Phoenix); and Doug Toy (City of Chandler). 

AWBA staff was directed to continue working on this issue in conjunction with all 
interested parties and to keep this issue as a standing agenda item for future AWBA 
meetings. 

Discussion of Concepts for Firming Indian CAP Contracts and Municipal and 
Industrial CAP Subcontracts 
Mr. Henley informed the Authority that this discussion has come about from all of the 
previous discussions regarding the AWBA's obligations and goals. Staff has 
recognized that the Indian firming obligation is one that could require a significant 
amount of money and that discussion was needed with regard to where that money 
could come from. There is general consensus that it is probably not going to come 
from the legislature or via any type of legislative change. 

Mr. Henley noted that the 4¢ ad valorem tax is collected by CAWCD and in the past it 
was levied and directly deposited into the Arizona Water Banking Fund for use by the 
AWBA. In more recent years, CAWCD has levied the tax and retained the funds to 
offset the operation, maintenance and replacement costs of water deliveries for AWBA 
storage. There have been discussions regarding the possibility of using the 4¢ ad

valorem tax monies in a different manner. 

There was a question regarding the number of withdrawal fee credits available for 
Indian firming. Mr. Henley replied that in the Tucson AMA, the withdrawal fee credits  
are needed to meet the M&I firming goal, however, in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs, 
they might not be needed for that purpose and could be used for Indian firming if the 
member chose to use them for Indian firming. He reiterated that staff was not 
requesting any Authority action, unless the Authority wanted staff to stop pursuing 
discussions of this nature. He noted that the same issue was also going to be included 
on the next CAWCD Board meeting agenda. Mr. Dozier stated that CAWCD staff 
prepared a briefing paper that essentially states that if there are no restrictions on the 
use of withdrawal fees and 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues then there is enough money 
available to meet both the M&I firming goals and the Indian firming obligations. The 
question is  whether the two boards want staff to be talking about this. 

Mr. Buschatzke commented that he commends staff for looking at creative ways to 
address this issue and that there is some support for finding a way to use 4¢ ad

valorem tax revenues to assist in meeting the Indian firming goals. While he disagrees 
that credits are not needed in the Phoenix AMA because they could be used for water 
management purposes, he agrees that it is worthwhile to continue this discussion 
because CAP M&I subcontractors have benefitted from the Indian settlements. He 
noted that because of the benefit seen by CAP water users in Maricopa County, he is 
not opposed to the use of those tax dollars elsewhere. Chairman Fabritz-Whitney 

6 



thanked both CAW CD and A WBA staff for the effort they have put into this discussion 
thus far and noted that the next step is looking at deadlines and volumes and making
sure that commitments are clearly defined. Mr. Dozier stated that he anticipated both 
AWBA and CAWCD staff would work with stakeholders to see if this was a viable 
option, and would likely know by the June AWBA and CAWCD meetings. 

Call to the Public 

There was no additional public comment. 

The meeting adjourned at 11 :30 p.m. 

7 



2011 DELIVERIES (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

175 

� 150 � ,._-;I u. 
125 e ------

!i 100 
7 

75 
__... ... � 50 

0 � L.......-
25 ..... ---

0 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep oct nov dee 

Months 

Pinal AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

40 

li 30 

I!! .., 
< 20 

-

C 

---.. ------VI 

L-r 
_g 10 

___.,..I-' I-

---__. 

0 
- .. ■ ■ - • - - -

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep act nov dee 

Months 

2011 Plan of Operation 
INTRASTATE 

80 

70 
li 60 

--PLANNED (CUM) I!! 50 
u 
< 40 

-+-ACTUAL (CUM) 30 

20 

I- 10 

0 

60 

50 
-PLANNED li 

=ACTUAL if 40 

------PLANNED (CUM) < 30 
--.-ACTUAL (CUM) 

:X 20 

I- 10 

0 

... 
V. 

A·-fl 11 --

Phoenix AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

-----

_,,. 
� 

,,, 

,, /"" 
,,,,-

_,,,.,, 
11 I I I I I ■

-

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep act nov dee 

Months 

Tucson AMA (by Month) 
Planned vs. Actual 

jan feb mar apr may jun jul aug sep act nov dee 

Months 

-PLANNED 

=ACTUAL 

------PLANNED (CUM) 

--.-ACTUAL (CUM) 

-PLANNED 

=ACTUAL 

---PLANNED (CUM) 

-.-ACTUAL (CUM) 



Actual deliveries updated 09-Jun-11 

Plan of Operation 1-Jan-11 jan leb mar apr may jun jul aug sep ocl nov dee lolal 

Phoenix AMA 

AGUAFRIA 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

HIEROGLYPHIC MTNS 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

TONOPAH DESERT 171 6,262 12,622 3,753 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,808 
0 0 0 1,600 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 9,000 4,350 0 59,950 

QCID 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,343 2,285 1,142 1,143 1,142 7,055 

Subtotal 171 6,262 12,622 3,753 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 22,BOB 
Total to date 171 6,433 19,055 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,808 22,80B 22,B08 
Projected total to date 0 0 0 1,600 10,600 19,600 28,600 38,943 50,228 60,370 65,863 67,005 67,005 

Pinal AMA 

CAIDD 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 0 0 0 0 7,500 

MSIDD 380 720 1,550 1,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,300 
508 635 1,589 1,335 1,335 636 318 318 572 0 0 254 7,500 

HIDO 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 500 0 0 0 0 0 750 750 750 250 3,000 

Southside Bank 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 
1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000 

Subtotal 380 720 1,550 1,650 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 4,300 
Total to date 380 1,100 2,650 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 4,300 
Projected tOlal to date 1,508 2,143 4,232 7,067 9,902 12,038 13,856 15,674 16,996 17,746 18,496 19,000 19,000 

Tucson AMA 

AVRA VALLEY 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 236 0 700 700 1,636 

CAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

SAVSARP 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 a 0 0 
0 0 0 0 4,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 5,000 3,000 4,000 36,000 

LOWER SANTA CRUZ 1,146 2,526 2,893 2,811 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,376 
0 0 0 1,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 2,000 300 0 0 11,300 

KAI FARMS - Red Rock 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
o 0 o o 500 500 500 500 500 0 0 0 2,500 

Subtotal 1,146 2,526 2,893 2,811 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,376 
Total to date 1,146 3,672 6,565 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 9,376 
Projected total lo date 0 0 0 1,000 7,500 15,000 22,500 30,000 37,736 43,036 46,736 51,436 51,436 

TOTAL 1,697 9,508 17,065 8,214 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 36,484 

Total to date 1,697 11,205 28,270 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,484 36,4B4 

Projected tO/al lo date 1,508 2,143 4,232 \ 9,667 28,002 46,638 64,956 84,617 104,960 121,152 131,095 137,441 0 137,441 



Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 N. Central Avenue, Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Telephone 602-771-8487 
Fax 602-771-8685 

Ms. Lorri Gray-Lee, Regional Director 
U.S. Department of the Interior 
Bureau of Reclamation 
Lo·wer Colorado River Regional Office 
P.O. Box 61470 
Boulder City, Nevada 89006 

June 9, 2011 

Mr. Jeffrey Kightlinger, General Manager 
Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
P.O. Box 54153 
Los Angeies, CA 90054-0153 

Mr. David Modeer, General Manager 
Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
P. 0. Box 43020
Phoenix, AZ 85080-3020

AUTHORITY MEMBE. RS
Sal'ld1e Fabrilz-Whitney, Chairrna 
Tom Buschalzke n 

Maureen R. George 
John Mawhinney 
Lisa A. Alkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS
Honorable Sieve Pierce 
Honorable Andy Tobin 

RE: Certification of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA) for 2010 pursuant to the 
Amended Letter Agreement for the Creation of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment with Credits 
Created Under the 1992 Demonstration Agreement between CAWCD and MWD, December 11, 2007 

Dear Ms. Gray-Lee and Messrs. Kightlinger and Modeer: 

Pursuant to the above-referenced Amended Letter Agreement, the Arizona Water Banking Authority
(AWBA) is providing certification of the quantity of ICUA created in 2010 and the method used to create 
the ICUA to the U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
(Metropolitan), and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD). 

A total of 8,159 acre-feet of ICUA was created in calendar year 2010 for the benefit of Metropolitan. 
ICUA was created through the recovery of long-term storage credits (LTSC) from wells within three 
irrigation districts in Pinal County, Arizona. The L TSCs were previously accrued on behalf of 
Metropolitan pursuant to the above-mentioned 1992 Demonstration Agreement 

A letter from the Arizona Department of Water Resources to the AWBA summarizing their review of 
CAWCD's annual reporting is enclosed for your information. 



please don't hesitate to contact me if you require additional information. 

Sincerely; 

U�>V-�_, 01 Ga� 
Virginia O'Connell, Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Enclosure 

cc: Mr. Teny Fulp, Bureau of Reclamation 
Mr. Paul Matuska, Bureau of Reclamation 
Mr. Roger K. Patterson, Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
Mr. Christopher Harris, Colorado River Board of California 
Mr. Thomas Mccann, Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
Ms. Sandra Fabritz-Whitney, Arizona Water Banking Authority 
Mr. John Entsminger, Southern Nevada Water Authority 
Mr. McClain Peterson, Colorado River Commission of Nevada 



JANICE K. BREWER 
Governor 

SANDRA A. FA.BRITZ-WHITNEY 
Director 

ARIZONA DEPARTMENT OF WATER RESOURCES 

3550 North Central Avenue, Second Floor 
PHOENIX, ARIZONA 85012-2105 

May 31, 2011 

Virginia O'Connell, Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012-2105 

Dear Ms. O'Connell: 

(602) 771-8500

This letter is in response to your letter to Director Fabritz-Whitney requesting verification 
of the amount of long-term storage credits (L TSC) recovered by the Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District (CAWCD) for the year 2010 for the purpose of creating 
Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment (ICUA). The Department of Water 
Resources (Department) has received the pertinent annual reporting documents 
concerning CAWCD's 2010 recovery of L TSCs in the Pinal Active Management Area. 

The Department's review of the annual reports submitted by CAWCD and the Irrigation 
Districts participating in the recovery confirm that 8,159 acre-feet of !CUA was generated 
through: 1) CAWCD's recovery of 2,500 acre-feet of CAP LTSCs at the Maricopa
Stanfield Irrigation and Drainage District (MSIDD); 2) CAWCD's recovery of 3,503 acre
feet of CAP L TSCs at the Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District (CAIDD); and 
3) CAWCD's recovery of 2,156 acre-feet of CAP LTSCs at the Hohokam Irrigation and.
Drainage District (HIDD).

If you have any further questions or need additional assistance, please don't hesitate to 
contact me at 602-7 8589. 

Director, Arizona Department of Water Resources 

CC: Doug Dunham, Manager, Recharge, Assured & Adequate Water Supply Program 

@ Printed on recycled paper. Each ton ofrecycled paper saves 7,000 gallons of water.



AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY, 

AND 
PROVIDING FOR STORAGE�o

-=

F
""""'

c
-=

E
,,..,

N
=

TRA
=-""""

L_A
..,,..,

R
=""

l
=

zo�N.A PROJECT WATER 
AT A GROUNDWATER SAVINGS FACILITY 

1. The ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY ("AWBA") and
("Facility Operat<;>r") enter

- -- - - - - - - ----------

.. ·:'•.,' 

into this Agreement this __ day of ______ , 20XX. 

2. 2.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for:Jhe �tor�ge of Central
Arizona Project water, which the AWBA is legc;1fly;�;t1titled to store, at the 
Groundwater Savings Facility operated by the facility Operator. 

2.2 The Parties recognize that this Agreement is ,bne of a series of agreements 
entered into by the AWBA to proyi�� f�r-'t�e storage of Central Arizona 

0., 

Project water. These agreements· ilit)lude the Intergovernmental Agreement 
/ 

·. :. 

among the Arizona Departm�n.t�{V\later Resources, Arizona Water Banking 
Authority, and Central Aiitqm{'Water Conservation District, dated January 
28, 2009, and th�,-�;g�ment between the Central Arizona Water
Conservation Distrid�r,d the Arizona Water Banking Authority Providing for 

,. .,,�;/��··:·, 
·
::�* . . { the Delivery pf E�cess Central Arizona Project Water, dated July 14, 2005. 

. :.,-

These agceements, in turn, are subject to certain agreements entered into by 
the G��tral Arizona Water Conservation District regarding the operation of 
tn7 Central Arizona Project. These agreements include Contract No. 

, . ,. +�t-06-W-245, Amendment No. 1, dated December 1, 1988, between the 
United States and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District, and 
Stipulation Regarding a Stay of Litigation, Resolution of Issues During the 
Stay and for Ultimate Judgment upon the Satisfaction of Conditions, filed 
with the United States District Court on May 3, 2000, in Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District v. United States, No. CIV 95-625-TUC-WDB 
(EHC), No. CIV 95-1720-PHX-EHC (Consolidated Action). The Parties to 
this Agreement recognize and agree that this Agreement is subject to the 

Page 1 of 16 



agreements referenced in this Section 2.2 and that in the event of any 
inconsistency between this Agreement and agreements referenced, the 
provisions of the agreements referenced shall be controlling. 

2.3 The Parties agree that the Central Arizona Water Conservation District shall 
have rights as a third party beneficiary to enforce certain provisions tbat are 
specified in this Agreement. 

3. In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following rn,¢'�nl'r)g·s:
.;- ··�t:-(<

3.1 "ADWR" shall mean the Arizona Department of WatefResources.

3.2 "Authority Water" shall mean water made availat:>.lebyCAWCD to the AWBA

3.3 

3.4 

3.5 

3.6 

on an annual basis for underground storage::·µursuant to the terms of the 
��-; '•···;j 

Excess CAP Water Contract between tha.�WSA and CAWCD, which water 
{:�. 

-� .... .. 

would not otherwise have been use·cfwithin Arizona. 

"CAP" shall mean the Central Ari4on:a Project. 

"CAWCD" shall mean the Cent��i Arizona Water Conservation District. 
:,� •_, ·.•.- -. 

"Party or Parties" shalt lll�Jl;either one, or in the plural, both of the parties to 

this Agreement. f 

Definitions specified in A.RS.§ 45-802.01 are applicable to this Agreement. 

The first letters:of terms so defined are capitalized. 

4. This �teernent shall terminate on December 31, 2011 unless the parties agree in
wrJtif!�, tQ extend the term or unless it is sooner terminated or cancelled in

•"'-"".•:; �v 

a.cctlrdance with Section 13. 

5. \ / The delivery and use of water under this Agreement are conditioned on the
following, and the Parties agree that: 

5.1 All uses of Authority Water shall be consistent with Arizona water law and 

with federal law applicable to the CAP. 

Page 2 of 16 



5.2 Authority Water made available pursuant to this Agreement shall be used 

only at the Groundwater Savings Facility for which the Facility Operator has 

obtained and continues to maintain Groundwater Savings Facility Permit, No. 

72-XXXXXXXXXX, or modifications or renewals of that permit. The Facility
,:r:.

Operator shall be responsible for all expenses and admini�trative
. . -� �. 

requirements, including filing annual reports with the ADWR, a.s�<:>ciated with 
<-" _.,:{ 

•.. 

maintaining the Groundwater Savings Facility permit. The Ea<;iliO' Operator's 

use of Authority Water at such Groundwater Savings Facility shall at all times 
·••,, <:;;..,,,.,_;--

, ·� 

comply with the plan of operation of the Groundw��rSavings Facility Permit. 

If such Groundwater Savings Facility Permiti�6ancelled or expires for any 

reason the Facility Operator shall immediately notify the AWBA and 

deliveries of Authority Water to the Faej.lity Operator may, at the option of the 
I <: '-;, 

AWBA, be discontinued immedJately. The Facility Operator shall notify the 
::

(
· : .

AWBA if it files an application with the ADWR to amend its Groundwater 
,_. ___ -/ •. 

Savings Facility permit: 

5.3 Authority Water.fna'\ie �vailable to the Facility Operator pursuant to this 

Agreement shallb� Dsed within the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings 

FacilityJbr Water Storage purposes only. 

5.4 Th� J=='aciJity Operator shall cause the pumping of groundwater within the 
··:, ��::,�•::�/:-· 

, facilify Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility to be reduced by one acre

foot for each one acre-foot of Authority Water received at the Facility. 

;;!i5. > The Facility Operator shall submit to the AWBA a monthly report of water 

use. The monthly report shall be in a form and submitted within a time which 

is acceptable to the AWBA and shall contain a report of water use by amount 

and type of water used. 

5.6 The AWBA shall obtain a Water Storage Permit from the ADWR to store 

water at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. The AWBA 

Page 3 of 16 



shall be responsible for all expenses and administrative requirements, 

including filing annual reports with the ADWR, associated with maintaining 

the Water Storage Permit. 

6. 6.1 On or before September 1, the Facility Operator shall consult with the,AWBA
/;; ··,·,;:,:, 

and provide a written projection of the Facility Operator's wateruse.-by type
-· .... ,,· . 

. . . 

and amount for each month of the following year, which the' 'f\W'i3A may use

to develop its annual plan of operation for the followin;:Ji;ir_,.,··

6.2 On or before December 1, the AWBA shall retufl'llo.fhe Facility Operator a
Z.,. 

final water delivery schedule based on the AV;-if?,,A{s annual plan of operation
�>· 

,❖:-2�

for the following year. 

6.3 The AWBA shall authorize the F�pifity Operator to order Authority Water for 

delivery to the Groundwater\_Sa\/ipgs Facility directly from CAWCD in 

accordance with CAWCQ.water ordering procedures and the AWBA's plan of 

operation. 
· . .;.•,. .·.· 

6.4 The amounts, tirrfes and rates of delivery of Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator during any year shall be in accordance with the current plan of 

operation 9f th�Authority. Authority Water ordered by the Facility Operator 
� :c ;: 

·v -��-

Sh � ll'}n ot �xceed the amounts provided for in the current plan of operation of 

JheAuthority, unless approved in writing by the Authority. 

6.5 Monthly water deliveries may be amended upon the Facility Operator's 

written request to CAWCD with copy to the AWBA. Proposed amendments 

shall be submitted by the Facility Operator to CAWCD with copy to the 

AWBA not less than fifteen (15) days before the desired change is to 

become effective, and shall be subject to review and modification by 

CAWCD and the AWBA. 

6.6 The Facility Operator shall hold the AWBA and CAWCD, their officers, 

Page 4 of 16 



agents, and employees, harmless on account of damage or claim of damage 

of any nature whatsoever arising out of or connected with water delivery 

schedules furnished by or to the Facility Operator. 

7. 7.1 The AWBA may reduce or discontinue deliveries of Authority WatertoJhe

Facility Operator under this Agreement in one or more of the following 

events: 

7.1.1 
•;/--i .\�� '-�{ 

The Facility Operator fails to file the monfhly.r'eport(s) required 

by Section 5.5. 

7 .1.2 The Facility Operator violates the Permit or plan of operation 

associated with the Groundwater Savings Facility or takes any 
((· 

,_ , . 

action that threaten§ thetA.WBA's ability to accrue Long-Term 
,, . .;.,· 

Storage Credits ifqr} Authority Water delivered to the 

Groundwa_t�r S�yi�gs Facility . 
.... ,.-. .,. 

7.2 The AWBA shall notify th� Facility Operator of any determination to reduce 

or discontinue d!:iilive.iies"of Authority Water to the Facility Operator . 

. ·.• 

8. 8.1 On or befQre October 1 of each year, CAWCD and the AWBA shall notify the

Facility Operator of the cost for each acre foot of Authority Water to be 
. �--,. ··-..: 

"' d�l-ivered under this Agreement for the following year ("Facility Operator's 
.. '-.:-....:.·�, 

-'"'" '\J�ontribution"). 

/ 8i2/ The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD directly for all water delivered under 

this Agreement. On or before the first day of each month, the Facility 

Operator shall pay CAWCD the amounts due as the Facility Operator's 

Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery during that month. 

8.3 The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD in advance all amounts due as the 

Facility Operator's Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery 

Page 5 of 16 



under this Agreement; however, CAWCD has agreed to reimburse the 

Facility Operator for any portion of the Facility Operator's Contribution which 

is attributable to Authority Water scheduled for delivery that is not 

subsequently delivered to the Facility Operator or to provide an equi\,alent 

credit against payment in the future of any fees owed CAWCD by the'Facllity 

Operator, should the Facility Operator so desire. 
:'❖• -�--✓ 

required to deliver water scheduled under this Agreer:n�nt'if the Facility 
'·::· :: :;� . .  

Operator is in arrears in payment of any charges due CAWCD for a period of 
, .. � 

60 days or more. 

8.4 CAWCD shall be entitled, as a third party beri�ficiary to this Agreement, to 
.--��·-"·.. ,t,k .·-

,i" _;;, . 

collect from the Facility Operator any charges for water owed under this 

Section 8, along with interest, administrative and penalty charges on 

delinquent installments or paYfllEUJJ�i in accordance with the following: 

8.4.1 The Facility Operaior$h�W pay an interest charge for each day the 
-·f . . '�-

payment is _qelirtq.lJeht beyond the due date. When a payment

becomes sixfy.(60) days delinquent, the Facility Operator shall pay an
. ·- -:,, 

admirli_strati\ie charge to cover additional costs of billing and 

pr�essing the delinquent payment. When a payment is delinquent 

nir)ety (90) days or more, the Facility Operator shall pay an additional 
. -��c-

penalty charge of six percent (6%) per year for each day the payment 
,� is delinquent beyond the due date. Further, the Facility Operator shall 

pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated with a 

delinquent payment. 

8.4.2 The interest charge rate shall be the greater of the rate prescribed 

quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury 

for application to overdue payments, or the interest rate of 0.5 percent 

(0.5%) per month prescribed by Section 6 of the Reclamation Project 

Page 6 of 16 



Act of 1939 (Public Law 76-260). The interest charge rate shall be 

determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the 

delinquent period. 

8.4.3 When a partial payment on a delinquent account is receiveq, the 

amount received shall be applied first to the pe,nalfy·:; �hd 

administrative charges, second, to the accrued interE:�t;.andthird to 

the overdue payment. 

8.5 If the AWBA is not given Long-Term Storage Credits b�ause the Facility 

Operator has violated the Groundwater Saving! fFBOi.lity permit or plan of 

operation, the Facility Operator shall pay to.}��2AWBA any water service 

charges paid by the AWBA to CAWOO for the water delivered to the 
·" ... 

Groundwater Savings Facility wo.i:Chi.9_id not accrue Long-Term Storage
,,��- ; ;' ·-- ""} 

Credits. The payment shall be, m_§l_g� within 90 days of the denial of Long

Term Storage Credits by the· ADWR. 

-,_ .{· 

9. 9.1 Nothing in this _.t\9re�e11t shall be construed as an allocation of water to 
. ..

the Facility Q�eratdr, nor shall this Agreement entitle the Facility Operator 
'-. -.:,.,._" <· 

to any wiit�r other than as provided herein. 
-<�> ·, 

9.2 Nothing �n this Agreement shall be construed as requiring the AWBA to 

provipe Authority Water to the Facility Operator in any year, and nothing in 
•s::;t 

"Jhls Agreement shall be construed as requiring the Facility Operator to

accept deliveries of Authority Water in any year. The Parties agree that in 

any year in which the AWBA desires to provide Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator and in which the Facility Operator agrees to accept deliveries of 

Authority Water, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply. 

10. Neither the AWBA nor CAWCD warrant the quality of any water furnished under

Page 7 of 16 



this Agreement and are under no obligation to construct or furnish water 

treatment facilities to maintain or better the quality of any water. The Facility 

Operator waives its right to make a claim against the AWBA or CAWCD, on 

account of the quality of water or any changes in water quality caused by the 

commingling of water delivered under this Agreement with other water. 
";<-:.. 

11. 11.1 The Parties agree that the AWBA may designate a third par(y �gent to 
/':·, ·,.. •, .. -... 

exercise the right to recover the AWBA's water storedu11,der this 
·,'·;, 

Agreement. The "Designated Recovery Agent,,.st;iaU.be CAWCD, a
., ' ... 

political subdivision of the State of Arizona, q.rid/or a municipal corporation 

formed under the laws of the State of Arizona. The AWBA shall, in 
·, ... / ,  

accordance with Section 15 of this Agrt3ement, notify the Facility Operator
a:·�;•- .',{• 

'•< 

P: ("-

of the appointment of a Designat�q Recovery Agent pursuant to this 

Section 11. 

11.2 The Facility Operatgr �gr�es to cooperate with the Designated Recovery 

Agent in facilitati,ngt�Jri�overy of Long-Term Storage Credits stored by the 
:�. !/ 

AWBA at th�CF�citity Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. 
-,-:,,. } 

11.3 The Facility Ope'rator agrees not to register any objection with the ADWR to 

an,application for a recovery well permit filed by the Designated Recovery 

,.�erit or other entities seeking to recover water stored by the AWBA so long 

s1s the water is to be recovered at the Groundwater Savings Facility at which 

it was stored. 

11.4 The Facility Operator shall use its best efforts to enter into agreements with 

owners of wells within the Facility Operator's boundaries to procure access to 

those wells for the Designated Recovery Agent for the purposes of 

recovering AWBA water stored at the Groundwater Savings Facility. The 

Facility Operator shall provide to the AWBA a description of wells and well 

Page 8 of 16 



sites which the Designated Recovery Agent could utilize for recovery 

purposes, including the necessary authorization for the Facility Operator's 

use of such wells and well sites, within 30 days of entering into each such 

agreement. 

11.5 If agreements for access to wells have been procured under S�ctiotf11.4 

and upon the distribution of Long-Term Storage Credits by the AWBA to a 
.·· , 

Designated Recovery Agent, the Designated Recovery A_gen\may, at the 
'< 2-.:-,-.. ',\;. ·,_,. 

Designated Recovery Agent's sole expense, recover thelohg-Term Storage 

Credits at the Groundwater Savings Facility using those wells upon written 

notification to the Facility Operator. 
"'·/ 

'1 

11.6 The Designated Recovery Agent shalk.not recover Long-Term Storage 
.,,,.{ . <t�>:)t 

Credits within the Facility Operator'.ibQJ{ndaries that were not accrued by the 

AWBA at the Facility Operator'si �roundwater Savings Facility, unless the 

Facility Operator agrees, iq writing to allow the Designated Recovery Agent to

recover other Long:Ierffi�tbrage Credits. 

11. 7 The Designated Re�ov�ry Agent shall be responsible for obtaining and

maintaining t��overy well permits and shall pay all permit fees and other 
-�z�❖,:,,, .,, 

costs and
1
�xpenses of any nature associated with recovery of Long-Term

. �--��-
Storage ,iredits at the Groundwater Savings Facility. 

11.8,; ,,;y.�e.Facility Operator does not warrant the quality of water produced from 
.,p:.:. ·;�,. 

. " •retovery wells and is under no obligation to construct or furnish water 

treatment facilities to maintain or improve the quality of such water. The 

1+ Designated Recovery Agent shall not make a claim against the Facility 

Operator because of changes in water quality caused by underground 

storage or the mixing of recovered water with other water. 

11.9 It is the express intention of the parties that the Designated Recovery Agent 

be a third party beneficiary of the obligations and duties of the provisions of 

Page 9 of 16 



this Section 11, and that the third party beneficiary shall be considered a 

"Party" only for the purposes of this Section 11. The rights of the third party 

beneficiary under this Section 11 shall vest immediately upon notification to 

the Facility Operator by the AWBA of the designation of a Desig�,ated 

Recovery Agent in accordance with this Section 11. The Parties agtee that 
'\ .  

the terms of this Section 11 shall not, in any way, limit the rights or privileges 
/,-· 

'., 
,� ,' 

of the AWBA under this Agreement. 

11.10 The obligations set forth in this Section 11 shall SUrvtV:e,tHe expiration or 
··,: . 

termination of this Agreement and remain in f1Jllforce and effect until all

Authority Water stored at the Facility Operatoifs Groundwater Savings
· .... ·-.. , >-:,:,,,./ 

Facility has been recovered. ' 

'��� 

12. 12.1 Authority Water furnished to thE;} J::�ci!ity Operator pursuant to this Agreement

shall be delivered only t�:t the Facility Operator at such point(s) that have 

previously been approv¢q py CAWCD and only if CAWCD has satisfied itself 
''t/ 

,• 

that the pipelines;'�,�al�. distribution systems, or other conduits that will 

convey Auth9,rity W�ter after delivery will prevent excessive conveyance 

losses an(;! are �onstructed, operated, and maintained in accordance with 
···•,:·,. 

any c9nd:Jtion of applicable laws, regulations or order and to the satisfaction 

,bfCAWCD. 

12.2 ln,the event of damage to CAP facilities due to failure of the Facility Operator 

to operate in a good and workmanlike manner, the Facility Operator shall pay 

the CAWCD within thirty (30) days of Facility Operator's receipt of a 

statement for the costs of repairing any damage to Project facilities or Project 

rights-of-way caused by or arising out of the Facility Operator's activities 

under this Agreement. 

12.3 If the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or Project 

Page 10 of 16 



turnouts constructed by the United States, and if the Facility Operator intends 

to convey water furnished to the Facility Operator pursuant to this Agreement 

through connection facilities owned or operated by others, the use by the 

Facility Operator of such connection facilities shall be the subject of written 

agreement(s) between the Facility Operator and the owner(s) or operator(s) 
. . . � · , ·  

of such connection facilities, and all such agreements shaU,be provided to 

the CAWCD prior to initiation of deliveries. 

12.4 Unless the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or 
.. � .-.,� 

Project turnouts constructed by the United Stat¢s1 �:Water delivered from 
\\ : � 

the Water Supply System shall be measured Jit�.e�uipment furnished and 
;; ,.-t;:''.;;:_ --�;-/-. ·: 

installed by the Facility Operator and opei;�te9 and maintained by the Facility 

Operator at the Facility Operator's sole cost and expense. The results of 

such measurements shall be ceported to CAWCD in such manner and at 
-.'�/::s::�:.;:";�:i 

such time(s) as CAWCDn:,ay·P[escribe. Upon the request of CAWCD or the 
:.?•' · \, ·. ':_, 

AWBA, the accuracy of $uch measurements shall be investigated by the 
;�·-,:./ •· 

Facility Operator/ahd-.any errors which are determined to have occurred 

therein shall ee;d}ll��ed; however, in the event the parties cannot agree on 

the requit�d adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclusive. 

12.5 If thef aaility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or Project 

turnputs constructed by the United States, all water delivered from the Water 

Supply System shall be measured with equipment furnished and installed by 

the United States and operated and maintained by CAWCD. Upon the 

request of the Facility Operator, the AWBA, or CAWCD, the accuracy of 

such measurements shall be investigated by CAWCD and the Facility 

Operator, and any errors which are mutually determined to have occurred 

therein shall be adjusted; however in the event the parties cannot agree on 

the required adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclusive. 

Page 11 of 16 



12.6 The United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA shall not be responsible for the 

control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distribution of water beyond the 

Facility Operator's Project delivery point. The Facility Operator shall hold the 

United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA harmless on account of damclge or 

claim of damage of any nature whatsoever for which there is j�gal 
.. ,:-�;•· 

responsibility, including property damage, personal injury, or qeath arising 

out of or connected with the control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or 

distribution of water beyond the Facility Operator's Proj¢�fdelivery point. 
✓.:... ·,•., 

"'· 

12.7 The AWBA shall not be liable for any action takenpy,MWCD or the Facility 

Operator pursuant to this Section 12 regarding.ttiet:onstruction, operation, or 

maintenance of connection facilities. 

12.8 Deliveries of water scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 
.... ·:· .. ,,?'� ·-:.:··.' 

-� · .. 

interruption and discontinuancedve tfl) investigation, inspection, construction,
:-.. :··� 

testing, maintenance, repc1ir or.replacement of the CAP and its components. 
, ... _, .  
1:;: �-�-\z:;" 

The Facility Operator alS0):lcknowledges that CAP water available to the 

AWBA is only that Wpterwhich would otherwise be unused in Arizona and, 

therefore, d�fivet�es �f water scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 
,G/ '1\, ,i:. 

interruptiOn and discontinuance due to insufficient water or delivery capacity 

to tjeliver all other waters scheduled for delivery through the CAP. The 
-.� 

United States, its officers, agents, and employees, CAWCD, its officers, 

•{;lgents and employees, and the AWBA, its officers, agents, and employees 

shall not be liable for any damages when, for any reason whatsoever, any 

interruption, discontinuance, or reduction in delivery of water scheduled 

under this Agreement occurs. 

13. 13.1 This Agreement may be terminated for any of the following reasons:

13.1.1 If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the payment of the 

Page 12 of 16 



13.1.2 

13.1.3 

13.1.4 

Facility Operator's Contribution for thirty (30) days or more, 

the AWBA may terminate this Agreement, which termination 

shall be effective fifteen (15) days after mailing written notice of 

termination to the Facility Operator; 

If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the reimbursement 

of any portion of the AWBA's Contribution for thirty (30)days 

or more, the AWBA may terminate this A�;�ernJnt, which 
{:':\ ;'"-_:�;�:�. ·.,,1';; 

termination shall be effective fifteen (15)':gays after mailing 

written notice of termination Facility Operator and 

CAWCD; 

If the Excess CAP Water Contract between the AWBA and 

CAWCD providing fo(d�livery of Authority Water is terminated, 
; } , -� \:..�--

-· .. t-

the AWBA may teiu,inate this Agreement, which termination 

shall be effe9tivefifteen (15) days after mailing written notice of 

terminat19h !q .. the Facility Operator; or 

if the 'AVVBA determines in its sole discretion that the Facility 
. 

}. 

,,,;Operator is operating the Groundwater Savings Facility in a 

manner contrary to law or in a manner which is likely to 

jeopardize the ability of the AWBA to earn Long-Term Storage 

Credits for Authority Water delivered to the facility for the 

benefit of the AWBA, the AWBA may terminate this 

Agreement, which termination shall be effective ten (10) days 

after mailing written notice of termination to the Facility 

Operator and CAWCD. 

13.2 The Parties' and CAWCD's rights under this Agreement to collect any 

monies owed under the Agreement shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

Page 13 of 16 



13.3 The rights of the AWBA to terminate this Agreement as provided in this 

Section 13 shall be in addition to all other rights of the AWBA under this 

Agreement and as provided by law. 

14. The Facility Operator shall establish and maintain accounts and other books ahd
•· 

records pertaining to administration of the terms and conditions of tt,is Agreement,

including: the Facility Operator's water supply data, water-u�e ct�t�; and other

matters that the AWBA or CAWCD may require. Reports thereo�shall be furnished
., . � 

-,• -

to the AWBA or CAWCD in such form and on such dat�.pr,dates as the AWBA or 

CAWCD may require. Subject to applicable federalah?f state laws and regulations, 
, 

._, 

,·· 

each party to this Agreement shall have the right during office hours to examine and 

make copies of each other party's books a.l'.ldrecords relating to matters covered by 
.. ·.: '�·. . . 

this Agreement. 

15. Any notice, demand, or request ijuthorized or required by this Agreement shall be in
·,, 

writing and shall be deeme\ite have been duly given if mailed, first class postage
\:.,_ 

,·. 

prepaid, or delivered tct;theparties at the following addresses:

If to the AWBA:
;' ' 

Mijr1�er 
\+\fiizona Water Banking Authority 

••,, 3650 North Central Avenue 
'Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

<��t,;;:·
't 

-4 If to the Facility Operator:

General Manager 
[Address] 

The designation of the address or addressee for the giving of notice may be 

Page 14 of 16 



changed by notice given as provided in this Section 15. 

16. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to and bind the successors and

assigns of the parties hereto, but no assignment or transfer of this Agreememt or

any interest therein shall be valid unless and until approved in writing by the A'f.JBA.
';· ..•.. .,·.· 

17. This Agreement is subject to cancellation in accordance with"the:provisions of

A.R.S. § 38-511.

Page 15 of 16 



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective the 

day and year first above-written. 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

Attest: 
----- - - - - --

Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 

Attest: 
-----------

Manager 

. ··.} 

H�rbert R. Guenther, Chairman 
-..,z:···'/ 

By: __________ _ 
President 

Page 16 of 16 



1. 

AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY, 

AND 
---------

PROVIDING FOR STORAGE OF CENTRAL ARIZONA PROJECT WATER 
AT A GROUNDWATER SAVINGS FACILITY 

The ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY ("AWBA") and ____ ('�acility 
Operator") enter into this Agreement this __ day of , 2foot.

2. 2.1 The purpose of this Agreement is to provide for the·. stotage' of Central
. 

{·.:· 
•. 

Arizona Project water, which the AWBA is legall{entjtleJtlo store, at the
Groundwater Savings Facility operated by the Facility Operator.

2.2 The Parties recognize that this AgreementJs one of a series of agreements
entered into by the AWBA to provid� '{Qr>ttie storage of Central Arizona
Project water. These agreementsjn�iu1f�fi,Ei/1ntergovernmental Agreement

.---- ", 
.,._ . .  :-;:• . .. >· 

among the Arizona Department of Water Resources, Arizona Water Banking
Authority, and Central Arizdfl;W��r Conservation District, dated January

.-
···<>.-\·>

28, 2009, and the Agreement between the Central Arizona Water
Conservation Distl"ict and the Arizona Water Banking Authority Providing for

,•.,/.,_;", 

the Delivery ofE:xc��s Central Arizona Project Water, dated July 14, 2005.
,:c;c,,. 

These agreement$, inturn, are subject to certain agreements entered into by
the Central Arizona Water Conservation District regarding the operation of

/<;::--
. :�' . -, 

tne'C�fflra!Arizona Project. These agreements include Contract No.
sc·:•·, \ ,:. 

•\14�06-W'-245, Amendment No. 1, dated December 1, 1988, between the 
United States and the Central Arizona Water Conservation District, and 
Stipulation Regarding a Stay of Litigation, Resolution of Issues During the 
Stay and for Ultimate Judgment upon the Satisfaction of Conditions, filed 
with the United States District Court on May 3, 2000, in Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District v. United States, No. CIV 95-625-TUC-WDB 
(EHC), No. CIV 95-1720-PHX-EHC (Consolidated Action). The Parties to 
this Agreement recognize and agree that this Agreement is subject to the 
agreements referenced in this Section 2.2 and that in the event of any 

Page 1 of 17 



inconsistency between this Agreement and agreements referenced, the 
provisions of the agreements referenced shall be controlling. 

2.3 The Parties agree that the Central Arizona Water Conservation District shall 
have rights as a third party beneficiary to enforce certain provisions that are 
specified in this Agreement. 

3. In this Agreement, the following terms shall have the following meal')jpgs: .

3.1 "ADWR" shall mean the Arizona Department of Water-)Re§purces .
.,_,•' ' .. 

3.2 "Authority Water" shall mean water made available Q/CAWCD to the AWBA

on an annual basis for underground storagepJr�ua11t to the terms of the 

Excess CAP Water Contract between th� AWBA and CAWCD, which water 
' ,.• -

would not otherwise have been used�ithin f\�zona. 
"-. ',_ ···1.,, 

3.3 "CAP" shall mean the Central Ariz"b�aPtt>ject. 

3.4 "CAWCD" shall mean the qentfat Ar;��na Water Conservation District. 

3.5 "Party or Parties" shall .rileJheither one, or in the plural, both of the parties to 

this Agreement. 

3.6 Definitions spe9lfied in A.RS.§ 45-802.01 are applicable to this Agreement. 

The firstJetters of terms so defined are capitalized. 

4. This Agreei'nehtshali terminate on December 31, 2011 unless the parties agree in
writing to extend the term or unless it is sooner terminated or cancelled in

-� ·:·-
-. 

i:�. 

accordance with Section 13.

5?:, Tlie.
1

delivery and use of water under this Agreement are conditioned on the 
following, and the Parties agree that: 

5.1 All uses of Authority Water shall be consistent with Arizona water law and 

with federal law applicable to the CAP. 

5.2 Authority Water made available pursuant to this Agreement shall be used 

Page 2 of17 



only at the Groundwater Savings Facility for which the Facility Operator has 

obtained and continues to maintain Groundwater Savings Facility Permit, No. 

72-XXXXXXXX, or modifications or renewals of that permit. The Facility

Operator shall be responsible for all expenses and administrative

requirements, including filing annual reports with the ADWR, assoqi9tedyvith
• • 

>� 

maintaining the Groundwater Savings Facility permit. The Facility 0Rerator's

use of Authority Water at such Groundwater Savings Facility shall.at all times-' '•t�::., 

comply with the plan of operation of the GroundwaterS�vingsFacility Permit.

If such Groundwater Savings Facility Permitjs b�ncelled or expires for any 
v.�. 

reason the Facility Operator shall imn,ediately notify the AWBA and

deliveries of Authority Water to the Facility0p�rator may, at the option of the
. . ·'• 

AWBA, be discontinued immedi�!�-1¥::r tb�
1

�acility Operator shall notify the 
... ' ;. 

., ' ::::,.,. 

AWBA if it files an application __ with the ADWR to amend its Groundwater

Savings Facility permit 

5.3 Authority Water made evail�ble to the Facility Operator pursuant to this 

Agreement shall belJsed within the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings 
' 

Facility for \Nater pto;age purposes only. 

5.4 The Faqility Operator shall cause the pumping of groundwater within the '•·· ··. >�

��tilrtybp�fator's Groundwater Savings Facility to be reduced by one acre-
-- footfor each one acre-foot of Authority Water received at the Facility. 

5 .. 5 The Facility Operator shall submit to the AWBA a monthly report of water 

use. The monthly report shall be in a form and submitted within a time which 

is acceptable to the AWBA and shall contain a report of water use by amount 

and type of water used. 

5.6 The AWBA shall obtain a Water Storage Permit from the ADWR to store 

water at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. The AWBA 

shall be responsible for all expenses and administrative requirements, 

Page 3 of 17 



including filing annual reports with the ADWR, associated with maintaining 

the Water Storage Permit. 

6. 6.1 On or before September 1, the Facility Operator shall consult with the AWBA

and provide a written projection of the Facility Operator's water U$f3 t;,ytype 

and amount for each month of the following year, which the AWBA rr,ay use 

6.2 

6.3 

.. /�'} 

to develop its annual plan of operation for the following ye€1r.

On or before December 1, the AWBA shall return tp the Facility Operator a 
�-�·. ·--:< ·· ,� /,{

final water delivery schedule based on the AV)(��fatjJ:!,ual plan of operation 

for the following year. 
: ·' ... ,::f -�

The AWBA shall authorize the Facility,Opera��r to order Authority Water for 
"< ·-

('- ,,, 

,,> 

delivery to the Groundwater SJv{6gs. racility directly from CAWCD in 
. ·-:;,�;__. 

accordance with CAWCD wat��ocdering procedures and the AWBA's plan of 

operation. 

6.4 The amounts, tim�� ant1.rat¢s of delivery of Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator during an¥ year shall be in accordance with the current plan of 

operation of,the Authority. Authority Water ordered by the Facility Operator 

shaUpotex��dlhe amounts provided for in the current plan of operation of 

the AuthOfity, unless approved in writing by the Authority. 
-':.···· 

,' 

6.5 Mo11thly water deliveries may be amended upon the Facility Operator's 

wtitten request to CAWCD with copy to the AWBA. Proposed amendments 

-- shall be submitted by the Facility Operator to CAWCD with copy to the 

AWBA not less than fifteen (15) days before the desired change is to 

become effective, and shall be subject to review and modification by 

CAWCD and the AWBA. 

6.6 The Facility Operator shall hold the AWBA and CAWCD, their officers, 

agents, and employees, harmless on account of damage or claim of damage 

Page 4 of 17 



of any nature whatsoever arising out of or connected with water delivery 

schedules furnished by or to the Facility Operator. 

7. 7.1 The AWBA may reduce or discontinue deliveries of Authority Water to the
,(

., ;, 

Facility Operator under this Agreement in one or more of the,'fqH�ing 
... ·,/··· • •;· 

events:

7.1.1 

7.1.2 

The Facility Operator fails to file the monthl/teport{S ). required
_, .. ,(� "( ,

· 
./ •. ·

·
<

.
\::_:: ·,, -:,'> ' 

by Section 5.5. 

The Facility Operator violates the ··permit or plan of operation 

associated with the Groundwater SaVJngs Facility or takes any 

action that threatens th�,�WBA;� ability to accrue Long-Term 
,...., . 

"-.'-•, 

Storage Credits f6t;/ Atithority Water delivered to the 
' -�-

··\ \ . ., 
·: ... _ :;_ 

·
, . � 

Groundwate�,0Sa"'7hg� Facility .
. :-. ', \. 

7.2 The AWBA shall notify the F�ci1lty Operator of any determination to reduce 

or discontinue deliveries 9fl\uthority Water to the Facility Operator. 

·
-;,· .. 

/ "-
.
::-

8. 8.1 On or beforj October 1 of each year, CAWCD and the AWBA shall notify the 
<�- , -:' 

Facility ()pe�atoi- of the cost for each acre foot of Authority Water to be 
. . ' . . . 

delivered under this Agreement for the following year ("Facility Operator's 

Contribution"). 

8.2'' The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD directly for all water delivered under 
\(,'., .; ·, this Agreement. On or before the first day of each month, the Facility

Operator shall pay CAWCD the amounts due as the Facility Operator's 

Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery during that month. 

8.3 The Facility Operator shall pay CAWCD in advance all amounts due as the 

Facility Operator's Contribution for Authority Water scheduled for delivery 

under this Agreement; however, CAWCD has agreed to reimburse the 

Page 5 of 17 



Facility Operator for any portion of the Facility Operator's Contribution which 

is attributable to Authority Water scheduled for delivery that is not 

subsequently delivered to the Facility Operator or to provide an equivalent 

credit against payment in the future of any fees owed CAWCD by the Facility 

Operator, should the Facility Operator so desire. CAWCD shaU-;mot. be 
•· 

::": -: ' -<�_ft> required to deliver water scheduled under this Agreement<j.f the Facility 
.. ,::;., 

Operator is in arrears in payment of any charges due Cf\W-CD for:ki period of 
-.-� . : .. ;{ '; ;_,/,, 

60 days or more. 
·,. 

8.4 CAWCD shall be entitled, as a third party beoefi¢1aryto this Agreement, to
·::,:-,_ \- . "J 

collect from the Facility Operator any qparge�
)

or:,water owed under this
. --�-- . .., 

Section 8, along with interest, administrative and penalty charges on 
,;, :· �- " . _,..• ·, 

delinquent installments or paymentj;:,n·accordance with the following: 
' \�_;;. ···--<·: ).t-

8 .4. 1 The Facility Operator st,raU:·pa{an interest charge for each day the 
. .

payment is deli11quenf'h�yond the due date. When a payment 
-'··• 

·-:z-; 
�:,; 

becomes sixty (60), dqys delinquent, the Facility Operator shall pay an 

administrative charge to cover additional costs of billing and 

pr�c,ssing th�
>

delinquent payment. When a payment is delinquent 

ni�et�tt�lO) days or more, the Facility Operator shall pay an additional 

.penalty charge of six percent (6%) per year for each day the payment 

. is delinquent beyond the due date. Further, the Facility Operator shall 

pay any fees incurred for debt collection services associated with a 

delinquent payment. 

8.4.2 The interest charge rate shall be the greater of the rate prescribed 

quarterly in the Federal Register by the Department of the Treasury 

for application to overdue payments, or the interest rate of 0.5 percent 

(0.5%) per month prescribed by Section 6 of the Reclamation Project 

Act of 1939 (Public Law 76-260). The interest charge rate shall be 

Page 6 of17 



9. 

8.5 

9.1 

determined as of the due date and remain fixed for the duration of the 

delinquent period. 

8.4.3 When a partial payment on a delinquent account is received, the 

amount received shall be applied first to the penalty and 

administrative charges, second, to the accrued interest, arid tllircl to 
. 

-"{ 

the overdue payment. ,, .... 
. .... � , 

If the AWBA is not given Long-Term Storage Credits bec�mse the Facility 
,•.,·. ,;( _ 

Operator has violated the Groundwater Savings Facility permit or plan of 
� •i ",� . . 

··�· · 

operation, the Facility Operator shall pay to_ the AWBA any water service 

charges paid by the AWBA to CAWCO.Jor i'he water delivered to the 

Groundwater Savings Facility which didtno�iaccrue Long-Term Storage 

Credits. The payment shall be rnaije �ifbin 90 days of the denial of Long-
<:/;.

Term Storage Credits by the j;[)\l\fij. 
'; ·,: .;.•;, 

Nothing in this Agr�ement shall be construed as an allocation of water to 
•' ·v,:.,,_,. ,"' 

the Facility Operatqr, nor shall this Agreement entitle the Facility Operator 
.,:-_,. " 

.•·•.· ............. -. !/ 

to any water other.than as provided herein. 
{. \"\' �-

9.2 Not�illff,in•ttil� Agreement shall be construed as requiring the AWBA to 

provideiA�thority Water to the Facility Operator in any year, and nothing in 
'.?c·-'· ' 

this'<l\greement shall be construed as requiring the Facility Operator to 

8-.Qcept deliveries of Authority Water in any year. The Parties agree that in 

any year in which the AWBA desires to provide Authority Water to the Facility 

Operator and in which the Facility Operator agrees to accept deliveries of 

Authority Water, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall apply. 

10. Neither the AWBA nor CAWCD warrant the quality of any water furnished under

this Agreement and are under no obligation to construct or furnish water

Page 7 of 17 



treatment facilities to maintain or better the quality of any water. The Facility 

Operator waives its right to make a claim against the AWBA or CAWCD, on 

account of the quality of water or any changes in water quality caused by the 

commingling of water delivered under this Agreement with other water. 

11. 11.1 The Parties agree that the AWBA may designate a third party agentto
,, 

exercise the right to recover the AWBA's water storeduna�r t�is; 

Agreement. The "Designated Recovery Agent" shall t;>e<CAWCD, a
. ...\ .. . ··. :_:,.-,: .. ,./:'' 

political subdivision of the State of Arizona, and/or a· !Tlu�icipal corporation ·-.- . ·; ' ;: ·, 

formed under the laws of the State of Arizona. Tn� AWBA shall, in 

accordance with Section 15 of this Ag�eerfterit, notify the Facility Operator 

of the appointment of a Designat¢d ��very Agent pursuant to this 

Section 11. 

11.2 The Facility Operator agree� tci cooperate with the Designated Recovery 

Agent in facilitating the recovery of Long-Term Storage Credits stored by the 
,1:( AWBA at the Fac1fity Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility. 

11.3 The Facility:operator�grees not to register any objection with the ADWR to 

an applicatiqn for a recovery well permit filed by the Designated Recovery 

Agertterother entities seeking to recover water stored by the AWBA so long 

. as fhe water is to be recovered at the Groundwater Savings Facility at which 
·v 

it'was stored.

11.4, Upon the distribution of Long-Term Storage Credits by the AWBA to a 
.,,,. ' Designated Recovery Agent, the Designated Recovery Agent may, at the 

Designated Recovery Agent's sole expense, recover the Long-Term 

Storage Credits at the Groundwater Savings Facility upon written notification 

to the Facility Operator. 

11.5 The Designated Recovery Agent shall not recover Long-Term Storage 

Page 8 of 17 



Credits within the Facility Operator's boundaries that were not accrued by the 

AWBA at the Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings Facility, unless the 

Facility Operator agrees in writing to allow the Designated Recovery Agent to 

recover other Long-Term Storage Credits. 

11.6 To recover Long-Term Storage Credits pursuant to this Secticin J1,)he 

Facility Operator shall allow the Designated Recovery Agenftp recover the 
'':""·• T 

AWBA's Long-Term Storage Credits using the Facility Qp�r@tor'sj,v�lls. Such 
,.(··' ,. '-:·\t�,,. >.,. 

use shall be subject to the Facility Operator's operatibq�l control of the wells 
. ·, 

:: ;, 

and shall be made only when, in the discretion. of the Fadfity Operator, there 
·,. : 

·.·.>
,, '·, 

is sufficient well capacity and water trc1nsportation facilities available to 
: . .  ,. 

recover the Long-Term Storage C{edits< Wlthout disrupting delivery of 

irrigation water to the Facility Op�rat�rs customers; however, such discretion 

shall not be unreasonably exet¢t�(i.so as to defeat the intent of this Section 
.��r· . . . 

11. The Facility Operator·�fiatLprovide to the AWBA within 1 year after

execution of this j\greementa description of wells and well sites which the
. - ' 

., - � . 

Designated Recovecy Agent could utilize for recovery purposes, including the

necessary •uthorization for Facility Operator's use of such wells and well

sites.<·

11,7 ;: If insufficient well capacity is available within the Facility Operator's 

boundaries to meet a recovery request, the Designated Recovery Agent 

may install, own, operate and maintain new wells and related facilities or, at 

the Designated Recovery Agent's request, the Facility Operator may, under a 

separate agreement, install, own, operate and maintain new wells and 

related facilities, provided that the Designated Recovery Agent pays the 

Facility Operator in advance all construction costs associated with such new 

wells and facilities. All of the fixed and variable operating costs of such 

Page 9 of17 



facilities attributable to the recovery of Long-Term Storage Credits shall be 

the sole responsibility of the Designated Recovery Agent. Nothing herein 

requires the Facility Operator to construct facilities that, in their judgement, 

would interfere with the operation of existing wells within the Facility 

Operator's water delivery system. The Designated Recovery Ae�pt�hall 
_., o• 

;.• 

reimburse the Facility Operator the cost of obtaining all permit� required to 
., 

drill new recovery wells identified by the Designated Recovery '.Agent for 
/, ·· '" · . 

purposes of this Agreement. .. :1 ;,( .. ;/. '<:/

'"· \., '\ .. 
11.8 The Designated Recovery Agent shall be respo'tisi�l_e' for obtaining and

maintaining recovery well permits and shall pay alt permit fees and other 

costs and expenses of any nature asst>ciat�q'with recovery of Long-Term 
·• ,t ,. 

;;:� 

Storage Credits at the Groundw�terSa�tt,gs Facility. 

11.9 The Designated Recovery Agem�h.all reimburse the Facility Operator for all 
<\ ·:.. . . 

reasonable costs incurred by. the; Facility Operator in the recovery of Long-
-. ··,·-; 

i!,:_ 

Term Storage Cre9its inaccordance with this Section 11. These costs may 

include, but are, �ot limited to wheeling services, scheduling costs, 

incremental; increased cost of power, and incremental increased cost of 
·- •;,_ ··; :-t:,�··.,•ffi . . oper�t,011, maintenance, and replacement of wells and/or pumps within the 

.·.y ·.r; _  ., 

F.acilityOpefator's Groundwater Savings Facility. Prior to any recovery under 

this Section 11, the Designated Recovery Agent and the Facility Operator 
V 

'• f sJ)all agree upon the costs for which the Designated Recovery Agent shall be 
4· ,·:s--· 

¾ responsible. The Designated Recovery Agent and the Facility Operator may 

agree that the Designated Recovery Agent will provide power to operate the 

wells to offset part of the agreed upon costs. 

11.10 The Facility Operator does not warrant the quality of water produced from 

recovery wells and is under no obligation to construct or furnish water 

treatment facilities to maintain or improve the quality of such water. The 

Page 10 of 17 



Designated Recovery Agent waives its right to make a claim against the 

Facility Operator because of changes in water quality caused by 

underground storage or the mixing of recovered water with other water. 

11 .11 It is the express intention of the Parties that the Designated Recovery Agent 

be a third party beneficiary of the obligations and duties of the prqvii;i0�$ of 

this Section 11, and that the third party beneficiary shall be, 9pnsidefed a 
···<·· .··· 

"Party" only for the purposes of this Section 11. The rights of th�third party

beneficiary under this Section 11 shall vest immedi�tely uppn notification of
_.'--� ,• .. \.... •. ·{�; . ._ < 

the Facility Operator by the AWBA of the de�ig�'tjon of a Designated
· .. ';,,., 

.. ' 
·"'•:,· 

Recovery Agent in accordance with this $E:;l9tion 11> The Parties agree that 
",·, .. ·- ·,. 

the terms of this Section 11 shall not, in �rtyw�y, limit the rights or privileges 
....... �-

. 

of the AWBA under this Agreement."_·, i'. ·

11.12 The obligations set forth in this $Et9tidn 11 shall survive the expiration or 
. :. > -

termination of this Agreem�_nfand remain in full force and effect until all 

Authority Water 9tored �tJhe Facility Operator's Groundwater Savings 
:·· � 

Facility has beeh recovered. 

12. 12.1 AuthQfity Wateffurnished to the Facility Operator pursuant to this Agreement
/ . . 

·-..:,··, 
·'.··-:-.•·· '• .. 

shall Qe defivered only to the Facility Operator at such point(s) that have 
.;'\ 

,> previpusly been approved by CAWCD and only if CAWCD has satisfied itself 
"<..•" 

t_hat the pipelines, canals, distribution systems, or other conduits that will 

( 
convey Authority Water after delivery will prevent excessive conveyance 

losses and are constructed, operated, and maintained in accordance with 

any condition of applicable laws, regulations or order and to the satisfaction 

of CAWCD. 

12.2 In the event of damage to CAP facilities due to failure of the Facility Operator 

to operate in a good and workmanlike manner, the Facility Operator shall pay 

Page 11 of 17 



the CAWCD within thirty (30) days of Facility Operator's receipt of a 

statement for the costs of repairing any damage to Project facilities or Project 

rights-of-way caused by or arising out of the Facility Operator's activities 

under this Agreement. 

12.3 If the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnouto{f>otqject 

turnouts constructed by the United States, and if the Facility Operatorfr1tends 

to convey water furnished to the Facility Operator pursu�n�:t'9: thi�/�greement 
/· . ·--�·· ' 

through connection facilities owned or operated b{�hers
f 
the use by the

Facility Operator of such connection facilities sh�llbethe subject of written 
' . .,;., .. ._ 

;,�; :_ ,____ ', i-

agreement( s) between the Facility Opera,tqr and'thiowner(s) or operator(s) 

of such connection facilities, and all �uch agr�ements shall be provided to 
�(\::ii.·· 

the CAWCD prior to initiation of .gel.iverie�,
-; .· ,-··-: 

12.4 Unless the Facility Operatqr's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or 

Project turnouts construe� bythe United States, all water delivered from 
{: ". 'c 

the Water Supply Syst� sh�U be measured with equipment furnished and 
.·.·:.' 

installed by th�Facility Operator and operated and maintained by the Facility 
. ·-::.,•\. 

Operator at the Ff:lcility Operator's sole cost and expense. The results of 

such meaittrerri�nts shall be reported to CAWCD in such manner and at . . ;} 
·- -• .. __ . .,. :ft\.�-.-·:•, ... ·-._

§UChti.me(s)as CAWCD may prescribe. Upon the request of CAWCD or the

A�t,:·the accuracy of such measurements shall be investigated by the

Ffcility Operator, and any errors which are determined to have occurred

therein shall be adjusted; however, in the event the parties cannot agree on

the required adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclusive.

12.5 If the Facility Operator's Project delivery point is a Project turnout or Project 

turnouts constructed by the United States, all water delivered from the Water 

Supply System shall be measured with equipment furnished and installed by 

the United States and operated and maintained by CAWCD. Upon the 

Page 12 of 17 



request of the Facility Operator, the AWBA, or CAWCD, the accuracy of 

such measurements shall be investigated by CAWCD and the Facility 

Operator, and any errors which are mutually determined to have occurred 

therein shall be adjusted; however in the event the parties cannot agree on 

the required adjustment, CAWCD's determination shall be conclllsiv_ef',.: 

12.6 The United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA shall not be respt)psibl� for the 

control, carriage, handling, use, disposal, or distributiop Of Water beyond the 
• .. , . . 

Facility Operator's Project delivery point. The FacilityQp�ra,tor shall hold the 
. . . . . 

United States, CAWCD, and the AWBA harmless OQ tccount of damage or 
,. �· ' •. 

claim of damage of any nature what�9ever."'fdr which there is legal 

responsibility, including property damage, petsonal injury, or death arising 
• 

'2-· 

out of or connected with the co�lrof; oa:n:iage, handling, use, disposal, or 

distribution of water beyond the Facility Operator's Project delivery point. 
�: �,; . .. ·, ; ; .  

12.7 The AWBA shall not be liabl;fb;an; action taken by CAWCD or the Facility 

Operator pursuantto this Seqtion 12 regarding the construction, operation, or 

maintenance of connection facilities. 
,:;··. 

12.8 Deliveries 1.of Wc\ter scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 
,(::\ ·, .. ·-·<q/ _:. >· ... ·5 �:· interrupti9nar.Bdiscontinuance due to investigation, inspection, construction,

testing, maintenance, repair or replacement of the CAP and its components. 

·:. The f adlity Operator also acknowledges that CAP water available to the

<:·"if.,.WBA is only that water which would otherwise be unused in Arizona and,

therefore, deliveries of water scheduled under this Agreement are subject to 

interruption and discontinuance due to insufficient water or delivery capacity 

to deliver all other waters scheduled for delivery through the CAP. The 

United States, its officers, agents, and employees, CAWCD, its officers, 

agents and employees, and the AWBA, its officers, agents, and employees 

shall not be liable for any damages when, for any reason whatsoever, any 

Page 13 of 17 



interruption, discontinuance, or reduction in delivery of water scheduled 

under this Agreement occurs. 

13. 13.1 This Agreement may be terminated for any of the following reasons:

13.1.1 

13.1.2 

13.1.3 

If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the payrnentofthe 

Facility Operator's Contribution for thirty (30) tipys of fnore, 

the AWBA may terminate this Agreemen(.Vi(hic� :i�'t-�ination 
:/ ,-:-. : \ '.· 

shall be effective fifteen ( 15) days after iltl9illng written notice of 

termination to the Facility Oper��of;" . : .,, .. ·.·· 
•:i i 

If the Facility Operator remains in arrears in the reimbursement 

of any portion of the AW.�A}s Cpntribution for thirty (30) days

or more, the AWSAfflayit�rminate this Agreement, which 
\'> 

•. 

termination shaU;btf'effective fifteen (15) days after mailing 

written notice.,.of t�rmination to the Facility Operator and 

CAWCD;· 

If :th� Excess CAP Water Contract between the AWBA and 

CAV'fCD providing for delivery of Authority Water is 

•_. terminated, the AWBA may terminate this Agreement, which 

termination shall be effective fifteen (15) days after mailing 

written notice of termination to the Facility Operator; or 

if the AWBA determines in its sole discretion that the Facility 

Operator is operating the Groundwater Savings Facility in a 

manner contrary to law or in a manner which is likely to 

jeopardize the ability of the AWBA to earn Long-Term Storage 

Credits for Authority Water delivered to the facility for the 

benefit of the AWBA, the AWBA may terminate this 

Agreement, which termination shall be effective ten (10) days 

Page 14 of 17 



after mailing written notice of termination to the Facility 

Operator and CAWCD. 

13.2 The Parties' and CAWCD's rights under this Agreement to collect any 

monies owed under the Agreement shall survive the termination of this 

Agreement. 

13.3 The rights of the AWBA to terminate this Agreement as ptQvided iri this 
. � . -. <)�_ ,.,__<;�:· Section 13 shall be in addition to all other rights of �!le x..;AY'JB1).lnder this 

Agreement and as provided by law. 
? ···•:.'•·:·;:.i�

14. The Facility Operator shall establish and maint�il) ac�difrtts and other books and

records pertaining to administration of the teri;rs an'd'eonditions of this Agreement,

including: the Facility Operator's watelsµpply data, water-use data, and other
-.. , ': --�,:,:-.:•·-

[' 
. '·;\_ 

matters that the AWBA or CAWCQ m�y-require. Reports thereon shall be furnished
.. . . .,: •' 

to the AWBA or CAWCD in suehforrn �nd on such date or dates as the AWBA or
'

CAWCD may require. Subjecho applicable federal and state laws and regulations,
.-· . ._.· ;._,: -:, 

each party to this Ag�e.:_ement shall have the right during office hours to examine and
· .. 

make copies of ea�h other party's books and records relating to matters covered by 

this Agreement., 

15. Any.notic�;ge�and, or request authorized or required by this Agreement shall be in

�ritihg citld shall be deemed to have been duly given if mailed, first class postage

pf�paid, or delivered to the parties at the following addresses:

If to the AWBA:

Manager 
Arizona Water Banking Authority 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

Page 15 of 17 



If to the Facility Operator: 

General Manager 
[Address] 

The designation of the address or addressee for the giving of notice may be 

changed by notice given as provided in this Section 15. 

16. The provisions of this Agreement shall apply to and t:>i�d-tqE?.<.successors and
.· ,, .. , ·,,r 

�;', '•• 

assigns of the parties hereto, but no assignment or trf,ittsfer bf this Agreement or
,,:CJ-·.·· 

any interest therein shall be valid unless and until approved-in writing by the AWBA.

17. This Agreement is subject to cancellatip� in accordance with the provisions of

A.RS.§ 38-511.

Page 16 of 17 



.:· · . 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effectivethe 
. ___ ;_.,./ ·•·. 

day and year first above-written. 

Attest: 
----------- By: _ __ _______ _ 

,. 

Tom Buschatzke, $ecretary Herbert R. Guenther, Chairman 
·:•.\.-". , 

.:;•, '�J:;, },, .. .. -�, .. :· ... .,_. 

�\:ilSTRICT 
(. . •· .. . �-

J;'::-

.- °%:;1:-'·",,·::::i 
Att,st}

"""'
:.:..,... -·+'·-.. ________ _ 

�@nager 
By: ___________ _ 

President 

Page 17 of 17 



P.O. Box 43020 • Phoenix, AZ 85080-3020 

23636 N. 7th Street• Phoenix, AZ 85024-

623-869-2333 • www.cap-az.com

2011-2012 Tax Levy for Water Storage 

The Central Arizona Water Conservation District, pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, 
Subsection B, hereby establishes the tax levy for water storage for the 2011-2012 tax year at four 
cents (04¢) per one hundred dollars ($100) of assessed valuation. Said tax rate was approved by 
the Board of Directors of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District at the Regular 
Meeting held June 2,2011, in Phoenix, Arizona as indicated in the official transcript prepared by 
Driver and Nix, certified court reporters. 

CERTIFICATE 

I certify that the above statement is a true and correct statement of the referenced action. 

DATED this 2nd day of June 2011. 

� 
. - /G 

TimotlzyR ray, s� 
Board of Directors 
Central Arizona Water Conservation District 



r 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OFTHE 

CENTRAL ARlZONA WATER CONSERVATION DISTRICT 
REGARDING AD VALOREM TAX FOR WATER STORAGE 

(June 2, 2011) 

WHEREAS, House Bill 2494 adopted by the Arizona Legislature in 1996 (Chapter 308, 

Laws of Arizona 1996, Forty-second Legislature, Second Regular Session) established the Arizona 

Water Bank and amended A.R.S. § 48-3715.02 relating to the tax levy for water storage; and 

WHEREAS, A.RS.§ 48-3715.02, subsection B, provides that the Board of Directors (the 

"Board") of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District (the "District") shall fix the amount to 

be raised by direct taxation pursuant to its provisions, which amount shall not exceed four cents per 

one hundred dollars of assessed valuation; and 

WHEREAS, the Board by separate action has fixed the tax rate pursuant to A.R.S. § 48-

37 I 5 .O2, subsection B, for the 2010-2011 tax year at four cents per one hundred dollars of assessed 

valuation; and 

WHEREAS, A.R.S. § 48-3715.03 further provides that the Board shall determine annually 

by resolution whether any or all of the tax levied pUrsuant to A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, subsections Band 

C, shall be applied to the repayment of the construction costs of the Central Arizona Project ("CAP" 

or the "Project") or.to the annual operation, maintenance, and replacement costs of the Project; and 

WHEREAS; A.RS. § 48-3715.03 further provides that those monies specified in such 

resolution for repayment of the construction costs or payment of the annual operation, maintenance, 

and replacement costs of the Project shall. be deposited in the District fund established pursuant to 



A.R.S. § 48-3712; subsection A, paragraph 5;.and 

WHEREAS, A.RS. § 48-3715.03 further provides that a certified copy of such resolution 

shall be delivered to the Arizona Department of Water Resources; 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RE�OLVED by the Board of Directors of the Central Arizona 

Water Conservation District, as follows: 

1. That all of the taxes levied pursuant to A.RS. § 48-3715.02, subsections B and C, in

the 2011-2012 tax year shall be applied to the annual operation, maintenance,,and replacement

costs of the Project; and

2. That all taxes leviedpursuantto A.R.S. § 48-3715.02, subsections BandC, in the20I 1-2012

tax year be deposited in a designated District account in the District fund established pursuant to 

A.R.S. § 48-3712, subsection A, paragraph 5, to be used by the District to defray annual operation, 

. maintenance, and replacement costs; and 

3. That a certified copy of this resolution be delivered to the Arizona Department of Water

Resources.

I, the undersigned, as Secretary ofthe Central Arizona Water Conservation District, hereby 
certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolutions duly adopted by the Board of 
Directors of the Central Arizona Water Conservation District at a meeting thereof, duly called and 
held on June 2, 2011, at which a quorum was present and acting throughout. I further certify that 
said resolutions have not been modified or revoked since their adoption and are still in full force and 
effect. 

SIGNED THIS 2nd DAY OF JUNE 2011. 

By:� J,?6v Timothy R. Bray 
Secretary 



June 7, 2011 

Arizona Water Banking Fund 

Fiscal Year 2011 Legislative Transfers: 

Pursuant to H.B. 2001, Section 148, 49th Legislature, Seventh Special Session, an
amount of $10,300 was transferred from the Arizona Water Banking Fund's 
Administration subaccount on March 3, 2011. This transfer accounted for reductions in 
personnel expenses and related benefit costs. An additional $1,200 was transferred on 
June 2, 2011 as part of the "Uncaptured Pay Savings" for FY 2011. 

Fiscal Year 2012 Legislative Transfers: 

Senate Bill 1612, Section 108, signed April 6, 2011, identified a fund balance transfer of 
$312,000 from the Arizona Water Banking Fund for FY 2012. The JLBC has since 
increased this amount to $315,800, which reflects a baseline adjustment of $3,800. 

The following table identifies the distribution of this transfer among the three withdrawal 
fee subaccounts: 

Water Banking Fund 2011 Withdrawal Pro Rata Share of Transfer 
Fee Revenues Transfer based on Amount 

2011 Revenues 

Phoenix AMA $1,500,000 49% $154,740 

Pinal AMA $1,200,000 39% $123,160 

Tucson AMA $387,000 12% $37,900 

Total $315,800 



United ,States Senate 
• V 

WASHINGTON. DC 20510 

June 9, 2011 

Director Sandy Fabritz-Whitney 
Arizona Department of Water Resources 
3550 North Central Avenue 
Phoenix, Arizona 85012 

RE: The Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement Agreement 

Dear Director Fabritz-Whitney: 

On June 3, the Navajo Nation, the Hopi Tribe (collectively, the "Tribes"), and a host of 
state parties both public and private transmitted to me a proposed settlement agreement intended 
to resolve the Tribes' Little Colorado River claims, draft federal legislation implementing that 
agreement, and an agreement among the parties' attorneys to recommend approval of the 
settlement to their respective clients. Please share this letter with those negotiating parties. 

My purpose here is twofold. First; I commend the parties for their tireless efforts to 
refocus negotiations and craft the settlement documents. I know it was not an easy process. 
Second, I caution that transmitting those documents to me marks the next phase of our 
conversation, rather than the culmination of the parties' efforts. As I have repeatedly counseled, 
the legislative component of this settlement must not only comport with the parties' negotiated 
agreement, but must also be able to win sufficient support from Congress and the Administration 
as well as satisfy policy concerns. It will take time for me and my staff to conduct that analysis. 
Likewise, the Department of the Interior will undoubtedly have to further scrutinize the proposed 
agreement. 

At a minimum, that analysis will include detailed consideration of overall project costs 
relative to the benefits conferred. It is quite possible that those costs will have to be further 
reduced. In addition, the parties have identified a select few issues that may require more 
attention. I appreciate your patience during that review process. Meanwhile, I recommend that 
the parties refrain from seeking formal approval from their principals, boards, and councils until 
both Interior and I have an opportunity to conduct our review and respond to the parties. 

Thank you again for your hard work on these difficult issues. I look forward to 
continuing this conversation in the near future. 

Sincerely, 

d�GL 
JONKYL '1_ 
United States Senator 



Attachment 2011-1 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

(FY 2011 - July 2010 thru June 2011) 

FY 2011 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

Administration Account Balance 

Projected End-of-FY10 

Projected End-of-FY11 

1 $345,062 transferred into Administrative Subaccount from CAWCO and SNWA 

$536,909 

$336,242 

($120,131) 

Actual 

$588,734 

$333,756 

$78,500 1 



ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2011 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 
Water Bank Manager 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 

Attorney 

Total FTE 

2.5 

Employee Relat ed Expenditures (at 34.1 % of Personnel Services) 

Permanent Part Time 0.5 
Accountant 

Indirect Cost (at 56% of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Project Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE 
Water System Engineer 

Customer Service Coordinator 

Hydrologist 

Administrative Support 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 

Travel 
Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Other Operating Expenses 
Standard per employee 3.0 

Miscellaneous 

Equipment 

Subtotal Other Costs 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$500 

$536,909 $588,734 

Cost Actual Cost 
$426,559 $477,156 

$185,159 $ 208,824 

63,139 $ 77,675 

25,137 $ 23,160 

153,124 $ 167,497 

$21,000 $21,000 

$21,000 $21,000 

$447,559 $498,156 

$80,000 $ 81,256 

$4,500 $318 
$3,500 $318 
$1,000 $0 

$4,100 $ 9,004 
$1,500 

$2,600 

$750 $0 
$750 

$89,350 $90,578 



DRAFT 6/1/11 

Attachment 2012-1 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

(FY2012 - July2011 thru June2012) 

FY 2012 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET $605,794 



DRAFT 6/1/11 

,&..ttachment 2012-2 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

FY 2012 ADMINISTRATIVE BUDGET 

STAFFING 

Department of Water Resources Cost of Services 

Personnel Services 
Water Bank Manager 

Water Bank Technical Administrator 

Attorney 

Total FTE 

2.5 

Employee Related Expenditures (at 40% of Personnel Services) 

Permanent Part Time 
Accountant 

Indirect Cost (at 56.1 % of Personnel Service & ERE) 

Central Arizona Project Cost of Services 

Personnel Services & ERE 
Water S ystem En gineer 

Customer Service Coordinator 

Hydrologist 

Administrative Support 

Subtotal Staffing 

OTHER COSTS 

Professional & Outside Services 

Travel 
Instate Travel 

Out of State Travel 

Operating Expenses 

Equipment 

Standard per employee 

Miscellaneous 

Subtotal Other Costs 

0.5 

3.0 

$605,794 

Cost 
$483,869 

$201,370 

$ 80,548 

$ 28,056 

$ 173,895 

$21,000 

$21,000 

$504,869 

$90,000 

$4,500 
$3,500 

$1,000 

$6,425 
$500 $1,500 

$4,925 

$0 

$100,925 



DRAFT 6/1/11 

,a.rtachment 2012-3 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

TRAVEL 

Meetings $/Meeting Cost 

INSTATE TRAVEL 

Authority Members 

Tom Buschatzke 5 $0 $0 

Maureen George 5 $0 $0 

Sandra Fabritz-Whitney 5 $0 $0 

John Mawhinney 5 $100 $500 

Lisa Alkins 5 $0 $0 

Subtotal $500 

Authority Staff 

Manager 5 $0 $0 

3 $600 $1,800 

Technical Administrator 5 $0 $0 

2 $400 $800 

Other Support 1 $400 $400 

Subtotal $3,000 

Motor Pool $0 

Instate Total $3,500 

OUT OF STATE TRAVEL 

Authority Members No out of state travel is anticipated for Authority Members 

Authority Staff 

Manager 1 $1,000 $1,000 

Technical Administrator 0 $0 

Other Support 0 $0 

Total Out of State $1,000 

Total Travel $4,500 



Attachment 2012-3 (continued) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Miscellaneous 

Web Domain 

Telecomm 

Other 

Permits (2 @$2,000) 

Total Operating Expenses 

EQUIPMENT 

Subtotal 

Total Equipment 

Units Unit Cost 

Cost 

$125 

$200 

$600 

$4,000 

$4,925 

$4,925 

Cost 

$0 

$0 

$0 



MEMORANDUM 

To: AWBA Commission Members 

From: Virginia O'Connell 

Subject: Summary of Distribution of AWBA Long-term 
Storage Credits Meeting dated May 17, 2011 

Date: June 9, 2011 

AUTHORITY MEMBER.s 
Sandra Fabritz-Wbitney, Chairman 

Maureen R. George, Vice-Chairman 

Tom Buschatzke, Secretary 
John Mawhinney 
Lisa Atkins 

EX OFFICIO MEMBERS 
Senator Steve Pierce 
Representative Andy Tobin 

As requested by the AWBA Commission members at the March 30, 2011 meeting, 
AWBA staff held a meeting to initiate discussion regarding the development of policies 
and procedures associated with the transfer of AWBA long-term storage credits during 
declared shortages. As this was the first meeting with interested parties, the primary 
goal was to solicit input, particularly with respect to issue identification. A draft 
discussion paper was distributed prior to the meeting to assist in facilitating the 
discussion. The draft discussion paper is attached. 

The meeting was attended by 43 entities and included representatives from ADWR, 
CAWCD, the Bureau of Reclamation, AMWUA, Indian tribes, CAP M&I subcontract 
holders, irrigation districts, Maricopa and Pinal counties, and consultants. The meeting 
attendance list is attached. 

The following are the salient points from the discussion, not in any priority order: 

1. It is recognized that some issues are more administrative in nature while others are
more policy oriented. Additionally, the issues are different when discussing credits that
were developed using 4- cent ad valorem tax revenues versus withdrawal fees, and
even more so when discussing the use of withdrawal fee credits for Indian firming
purposes. AWBA, CAWCD, and AWBA staff are currently discussing concepts
regarding the use of withdrawal fee credits for Indian firming purposes. Until the
outcome of these discussions is known, it is premature to discuss issues associated
with the distribution of withdrawal fee credits. Therefore, the consensus of the group
was that initial discussions should focus on the issues associated with credits
developed using 4- cent ad valorem tax revenues.

It is also recognized that some policy issues are solely the AWBA's and some are solely 
CAWCD's, however, some need to be addressed cooperatively by the AWBA, 
CAWCD, ADWR and, to some extent, Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation). 

2. AWBA and ADWR staff recommend that long-term storage credits be distributed (or
assigned) to CAWCD at the end of the year or after the recovery has already been
completed for improved efficiency and accuracy. CAWCD staff noted that there is a
need for CAW CD to have certainty that the credits will be transferred because of the
costs associated with the recovery of the credits. It was noted that AWBA staff works



cooperatively with CAP staff to develop its Annual Plan of Operation (Plan) for the 
following year, which is approved in December. As part of the Plan, the AWBA must 
project the amount of long-term storage credits that will be distributed the following year
for shortage purposes. CAP staff noted that they had anticipated the credits would be 
transferred beforehand to provide certainty and assurance regarding the AWBA's 
commitment. An alternative suggested was that the AWBA could potentially set aside 
the number of credits identified in the Plan for the shortage year by resolution and then 

assign the credits at the end of the year based on actual use. 

Regardless of the timing of the distribution of credits, a reconciliation process will need 
to be developed to determine the final amount of credits needed. This process should 
also allow reconciliation in the longer-term (two or more years) because of unintentional 
reporting errors that may be found in that time frame. Depending on the procedure 
developed, it may require statutory change. The statutes governing the assignment o f  
credits and recovery are recharge statutes, not AWBA statutes. 

Potential Action: Determine/develop process that provides CAWCD security regarding 
distribution of credits. 

3. There are questions regarding the amount of water the AWBA will firm during
shortages i.e. in any shortage year, what volume will M&I subcontractors actually
receive from the AWBA? This question has been raised because the statute is vague
and merely states "to the extent necessary to meet the demands of M&I
subcontractors". This is one of the primary policy questions that will need to be
answered. It was suggested that AWBA, CAW CD and ADWR staff have further
discussions to determine who should be responsible for making this determination and
developing any potential policies. The policies should then be developed with input
from M&I subcontractors.

The question of volume is directly tied to the length of time that the credits will be 
available for distribution. There are a finite number of credits and the underlying policy 
question is how many and for what purpose will the credits be distributed. The policy 
that is developed will determine how quickly the credits are utilized and how long they 
will last. 

There was a statement regarding credits being a "common good" and the idea that 
there is some concern about eroding the benefit of the collective. Modeling results 
would be helpful to define the impact to the greater good, i.e. what is the actual 
scale/extent of the problem. It was also stated that the potential for unintended 
consequences needed to be taken into consideration in all discussions regarding the 
distribution of the credits. 

4. Should accruing additional long-term storage credits by M&I subcontractors during
times of shortage be a demand that is met by the AWBA?

It was noted that there are sometimes water management reasons for recharging water 
and that those would exist even during times of shortage. The City of Scottsdale's 
water gradient issue was described as an example. They also noted that they use 



recharge to mitigate potential subsidence issues with the CAP canal. It is recognized 
that these situations do exist. The first test of whether storage is actually for a water 
management purpose would likely be location, i.e. is the storage actually taking place 
within the service area in a location that provides water management benefits. 
Protecting the physical availability of groundwater was also discussed. 

Philosophy and politics were noted to be of high importance. From the philosophical 
viewpoint, it is recognized that at this level of shortage, many individuals will have had 
cuts to their CAP supplies and it will be difficult for some to justify the delivery of water 
for recharge purposes when others are going without water, potentially for direct uses. 
With respect to politics, it was noted that it is a reality that by the time this condition is 
reached, that water users are going to be curtailing water uses. There are too many in
state and interstate political ramifications for curtailment to not occur. 

5. Is the CAP water that was stored and then recovered actually CAP M&I subcontract
or Project water? This is a CAWCD policy decision that must be made. If it is not
subcontract water, then CAP has a great deal of discretion. If it is subcontract water,
then decisions need to be made in consultation with the M&I subcontract holders.
Reclamation is currently also developing a position on whether recovered CAP credits
are Project water. They are planning to have discussions with CAWCD once
consensus within Reclamation is reached.

6. Developing these types of policies will be difficult because no two water service
areas have the same supplies, distribution systems, treatment facilities, capacity for
storage, canals, etc.

7. Should the AWBA be concerned about an equitable distribution of credits? For
example, if some subcontractors have more access to non-CAP supplies, should they
be required to use those· first? Discussion primarily seemed to be opposed to this
because the statement was made that it actually penalizes those that developed
alternative supplies. Additionally, as noted above, it will be difficult to evaluate equity
when all service areas are so different.

8. The issues associated with Indian firming are very different. There are many
components of the settlements that must be incorporated into the discussion, including
how CAP delivers water to Indian contracts. For these reasons it was suggested that
Indian firming be addressed separately. Reclamation recommended having the Indian
firming discussions after the M&I firming issues have been addressed.

At the end of the meeting it was decided that the AWBA would meet with CAWCD, 
ADWR, and Reclamation staff to reach clarity on some definitions and to resolve some 
of the issues regarding authorities and responsibilities. AWBA staff committed to 
schedule another stakeholder meeting following these meetings and the June 15th

AWBA meeting. Interested parties that had additional issues, questions, or concerns 
were asked to submit those in writing to AWBA staff. 

Subsequent, to the meeting one letter of comment was received and it is attached. 



Draft 5-13-11 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Discussion Paper for Distributing Long-term Storage Credits for CAP M&I Firming

Background 

The Intergovernmental Agreement (IGA) among ADWR, AWBA, and CAWCD identifies certain 
cooperative activities and joint planning processes that the parties must participate in 

periodically. These activities include developing a coordinated and cooperative planning 

process that addresses issues such as: 1) the future distribution and use of water stored by the 
AWBA, and 2) the recovery of water stored by the AWBA and CAW CD for water·management 

objectives set forth in Title 45, Chapter 2, Arizona Revised Statutes. 

CAWCD has a good understanding of the physical aspects of recovering credits and delivering 

water during shortages. However, during its recovery planning process, which has focused 
more on the location, timing, and purpose of recovering credits, several process and policy 

questions have been raised. AWBA staff identified these questions in a preliminary draft on 
Potential Policies Regarding Distribution of Long-Term Storage Credits for M&I Firming, which 

was provided at the AWBA Commission meeting on March 30, 2011. AWBA, CAWCD, and 

ADWR staff have since had initial discussions on these questions, which differ with regard to the 

source of funding the AWBA used to accrue the credits. 

Some of these questions concern the "use" of AWBA credits. Pursuant to A.R.S. § 45-2457(0), 

except for the distribution of four-cent tax credits for M&I firming and agreements entered into by 

the Authority, the decision to distribute or extinguish AWBA credits is at the complete discretion 

of the Authority. Some of these questions will need to be answered, if the Authority is to develop 

guidelines on the distribution of its credits. 

Four- Cent Tax Credits 

The AWBA's role is fairly specific concerning the distribution of credits accrued with the four

cent tax. However, additional discussion is needed regarding the appropriate use of these 

credits during Colorado River shortage operations . 

. . . shall distribute long-term storage credits accrued with monies deposited in the fund in 
accordance with section 48-3715.03, subsection B only for the benefit of the county in 
which the monies were collected. The authority shall distribute these long-term storage 
credits to CAWCD to the extent necessary to meet the demands of CAWCD's municipal 
and industrial subcontractors during times in which CAWCD's diversions from the 
Colorado River have been or will be disrupted by shortages on the Colorado River or by 
disruptions in operation of the central Arizona project. 

Based on the plain reading of the statute, several of the questions identified in the preliminary 
draft paper discussed above can be resolved fairly easily since they are administrative in nature: 



Draft5-13-ll 

When are the credits distributed (assigned) to CAWCD? 

CAW CD will have estimates in October of the amount of CAP water that will be available 
for delivery in the following shortage year and the amount of M&I demand it has for that 
water. Based on this information, CAWCD can estimate the amount of credits that will 
need to be recovered in order for CAWCD to meet its CAP M&I subcontract demands 
during the shortage year. CAWCD could provide these estimates to the AWBA so that 
they can be included in the AWBA's Annual Plan of Operation as required by statute. 
After the shortage year end, CAWCD can determine the number of credits necessary to 
cover the M&I shortage volume that will be reported to ADWR for recovery well permits 
held by CAWCD, as well as its recovery partners, along with any credits that will be 
needed for credit exchange. Based on the CAWCD year end report, the AWBA would 
request that ADWR assign the appropriate credits to CAWCD. 

Are credits returned to the AWBA if CAWCD did not actually need them or do they 
stay with CAWCD until they are needed? 

By requesting that ADWR assign credits at the end of the calendar year based on actual 
recovery, there is no need for CAWCD or recovering agents to return credits because 
only those credits that were used would be assigned. However, a mechanism for credit 
reconciliation would need to be established to address reporting errors that are not 
discovered until the following year. 

What accounting is required for the AWBA to be sure the credits are used for the 
benefit of the county where the money is collected? 

Likewise, by waiting to assign credits at the end of the calendar year, CAWCD can base 
its notification on the actual amount of credits recovered and water delivered to its 
customers. The wells from which those credits were recovered must be reported to 
ADWR as part of the annual reporting requirements. Furthermore, under current ADWR 
reporting requirements, the place of use of those credits can be verified if they were 
recovered by an M&I subcontractor pursuant to an agreement with CAWCD and used 
within that M&I subcontractor's service area or if that subcontractor delivered the 
recovered water to another M&I subcontractor. 

Does the AWBA retain any control over the credits once distributed to CAWCD? 

The AWBA would be assigning credits to CAWCD based on end-of-year reporting. 
ADWR can verify the recovery of these credits as part of its annual reporting review. 

The following questions are related more towards policy and require additional discussion. The 
AWBA is seeking stakeholder input prior to resolving these questions. There may also be a 
need for additional AWBA policies before a procedure can be implemented. Points for 
discussion have been included under each question. 

Should credits be distributed for water that is requested for the purpose of 
accruing long-term storage credits? 

• The AWBA is required by statute to distribute four-cent tax credits to CAWCD "to
the extent necessary" to meet M&I demand during shortages. Should the accrual
of long-term storage (L TS) credits be considered "necessary" during times of
shortage?

2 



Draft 5-13-11 

• Should direct use demand be met first before future water needs are considered?
[Annual storage and recovery is considered a direct use]

• A leading rationale for establishing M&I firming goals was to assist in protecting a
water provider's Designation of Assured Water Supply during shortages.
Pursuant to the AWS rules, when a provider's surface water supply falls below
the drought volume (80% of normal), a provider can apply to ADWR to qualify for
a drought exemption. If approved, the provider's groundwater use would be
considered consistent with the mangement goal of the AMA. Thus the firming
goal was estimated to provide a replacement water supply up to 20% of CAP
M&I supplies during shortages.

o If shortages are equal to or greater than 20%, would it be reasonable to
distribute credits for long-term storage if groundwater is also being
pumped? Would there still be some subcontractors that are storing their
subcontract water for L TS credits at this point?

o There is an additional benefit associated with the distribution of AWBA's
credits for accruing LTS credits because they could be sold to other
entities. Should the AWBA allow its credits to be used for this purpose?

• If credits are distributed for the purpose of accruing L TS credits, would the AWBA
distribute 5% less to account for the cut to the aquifer? Would there be an
additional cut to account for losses? If so, how would the losses be calculated?

• Distributing credits for the purpose of accruing L TS credits could increase the
pace at which four-cent tax credits are utilized. Does this also create issues
concerning the equitable distribution of credits?

Should the AWBA be concerned about an equitable distribution of the credits 
within the county? 

• Some M&I subcontractors may not need the full use of their subcontract at the
time a shortage is declared because they either have access to other sources of
water, have reduced their demand through drought planning, or do not have the
demand to make full use of their subcontract.

o If credits are distributed on a first come, first served basis, will credits be
available to those providers in the future when they do make use of their
full subcontract?

o Likewise, if credits are distributed for the purpose of accruing LTS credits
early, will credits be available in the future to meet direct use demands?

• How would the AWBA distribute credits to CAWCD to insure that there is
equal/fair access to the credits? Would this reduce CAWCD's flexibility in
meeting the demand of its M&I subcontractors?

• Does it matter if credits are distributed equitably as long as demand is being
met?

3 



Draft 5-13-11 

Withdrawal Fee Credits 

The Authority's role is not as specific in the distribution of the credits accrued with the 
withdrawal fees: 

... shall distribute or extinguish long-term storage credits accrued with monies collected in 

accordance with section 45-611, subsection C, paragraph 3 only for the benefit of the 

active management area in which the monies were collected. The authority may 

distribute or extinguish these long-term storage credits to the extent necessary to meet 

the demands of CAWCD's municipal and industrial subcontractors during times in which 

CAWCD's diversions from the Colorado river have been or will be disrupted by shortages 

on the Colorado river or by disruptions in operation of the central Arizona project, to 

implement the settlement of water right claims by Indian communities in this state or, on 

request from the director, to meet the other water management objectives set forth in 

chapter 2 of this title. 

What is clear is that withdrawal fee credits can be used for M&I firming and Indian settlements. 
The AWBA is currently participating in discussions with CAWCD and ADWR concerning the 
firming of Indian and CAP M&I Priority water. The following questions pertain to the concepts 
being discussed as part of this process: 

Should the AWBA establish a priority for the use of withdrawal fee credits? 

Absent the availability of general appropriation funds for the development of Indian 
firming credits, withdrawal fee credits remain the AWBA's only alternative for meeting its 
Indian settlement obligations, including Indian leases that have a CAP NIA Priority water 
firming requirement. 

• If Indian firming is identified as the highest priority for the use of withdrawal fee
credits, should there be a specific amount of credits identified before credits can
be used for other water management goals?

• Withdrawal fee credits in the Pinal AMA may also be needed to meet a
replenishment obligation in the southside protection zones.

Should the A WBA reserve a quantity of withdrawal fee credits that will be 
available for M&I firming? 

• How would the quantity of reserved credits be determined?

• Should credits be reserved to meet other water management goals?

• If credits are reserved for M&I firming or other water management goals there
could be a risk that they may be needed to meet the Indian settlement
obligations.

Should the A WBA wait until there is an actual demand for the credits before they 
are dedicated for a specific use? 

• Given that withdrawal fees are the only credits available to the AWBA for meeting
its Indian firming obligations, is it necessary for the AWBA to formally prioritize
the use of these credits?

4 



Draft 5-13-11 

• Would such prioritization provide comfort (to the legislature, settlement
participants and/or CAP subcontractors) that the State can meet (has met) its
Indian firming obligations?

Does the AWBA distribute withdrawal fee credits for M&I firming in conjunction 
with the use of the four-cent tax credits or wait until the four-cent tax credits are 
fully utilized? 

The conditions and restrictions regarding use of four-cent tax credits have been 
identified in statute. Would it make sense to fully utilize those credits for M&I firming 
before withdrawal fee credits are used for the same purpose since withdrawal fee credits 
can be used for other purposes and are the only credits currently available for meeting 
Indian settlement obligations? 

If withdrawal fee credits are dedicated, who does the AWBA distribute those 
credits to? 

This would depend on what the credits are used for: 

• There would be no need to distribute credits if they are extinguished to meet
certain Indian settlement obligations and/or water management goals.

• Credits recovered for Indian firming purposes could be distributed to an entity
(including, but not limited to, CAWCD) that has agreed to recover the credits and
deliver the water or is accepting the credits pursuant to an exchange.

• If the credits are dedicated for M&I firming, should they be distributed in the same
manner as four-cent tax credits are distributed?

Should the A WBA treat withdrawal fee credits similar to the four-cent tax credits 
and distribute to CAWCD? 

If the credits are being used for M&I firming purposes it might be reasonable to follow the 
same procedure for distributing four-cent tax credits, which may include the assignment 
of credits directly to a subcontractor that has entered into an agreement with CAWCD. 

The following questions are administrative in nature and can be addressed using procedures 
similar to those identified under the distribution of four-cent tax credits: 

Once distributed for M&I firming, how does the AWBA insure the credits are used 
for the benefit of the Active Management Area where the fees are collected? 

By requesting that ADWR assign AWBA credits at the end of the calendar year, the 
entity receiving the credits can notify the AWBA of the actual amount of credits 
recovered and used. The wells from which those credits were recovered must be 
reported to ADWR as part of the annual reporting requirements. Under current ADWR 
reporting requirements, the place of use of those credits can be verified if they were 
recovered by an M&I provider and used within that provider's service area. 

How are credits returned to the AWBA if they are not fully utilized by the entity 
that received the credits? 

By requesting that ADWR assign credits at the end of the calendar year based on actual 
recovery, there would be no need to return credits. 

5 



...:.-:,-,-• -�-

2 

3 

4 

5 

9 

11 G P/t/VT /?_/<

12 VR Ve.-- C-R-�c.-1� � 

13 & 
14 

15 

Distribution of Credits Meeting 

May 17, 2011 

Affiliation E-mail 

r✓ 



.-

Name (Please erint 

/&tm -/,; ;nH'(,t;,.,..(.f 

2 G�n.-<:., r V d Vf "t-<)--;

3 - �LA-v' v 11 Mf::'-lliiA-.U

Distribution of Credits Meeting 

May 17, 2011 

Affiliation 

�er'.£& 

c;.. )(_ i C-

6tV(JA 

E-mail

'Ct:ll11i/m ,,.,.. "NJ: (! /1'JaJ. I, ,)?J lfYi C�

f'Ytl_vt"t.<:>'t e..e> I'( s V (+I><

: 1;�� ���::. 
(2.../1,l,f 

6 11. C. r\ AAid <

7 

8 

9 
, 

I (',/. t:,._ 

10 

11 

12 

/QrJJ_y e>EM A QAAl".4 

fC.vJ/htl-

(.,.,( 

bhe,..,,,,, ,�-.._ � c�/? --r-:i.-z: , r.., M-

-th e.. 't'I. J .e.. r ..f 0,1 (£ iJ1 IJ MP.A . ec7 111

,..J 

113 vr=A ,vuUS IQ IV\ t::::1 e.wifib � I 1- IQ --r-e 'jc,_fi rrA�V�. TQ&if::.-1f..i..,1C.-\ 12'. :t:::1Vir��A2., qt7\.
- , � .,, ., 0 'r JD - � I •� - I ' - • 

/ 

._,,I 

.,,,Cf. .I I - • 
14 

15 n:::: /J, Cc:t n.t:�f (2 



............ 
... 

16 

17 

18 

19 

2 l n...

22 

23 

24 

!' 
25 

26 Se+h. M ·1 1 �
27 

30 

31 

32 

33 

-6-'"jOV 



Gerry L. Wildeman 

From: 

Sent: 
To: 

Subject: 

Virginia Oconnell 
Wednesday, June 01, 2011 1 :06 PM 
Tim J. Henley; Gerry L. Wildeman 
FW: Policy questions regarding distribution of AWBA credits 

From: Miller, Elizabeth [rnailto:E.Miller@scottsdaleaz.gov]
Sent: Wednesday, June 01, 2011 1:14 PM
To: Virginia Oconnell 
Subject: Policy que stions regarding distribution of AWBA credits 

Virginia-

I'm glad you had the meeting on the 1lh - it's goo� to get things moving forward a little faster. At the en·d of
the meeting, you asked for written comments from the stakeholders in attendance to further document the 
discussion at the meeting. I've put together some qLJick thoughts/comments on the·stuff that was discussed 
@ the meeting on the 1l. I hope that they will be helpful. Please let me know if you'd rather have th-�m 
show up as some kind of formal letter. It seemed more straightforward just sending them to you via email. 
Also, if you would pis forward to Gerry and Tim. I can't find either of their emails in my contact list. Thanks! 

I'm concerned mainly about the question of whether it is appropriate to distribute credits for water that is 
requested for accruing long-term storage credits. Scottsdale believes that there may be circumstances 
where this may be appropriate. However, the baseline decision that must be made before it is possible to 
answer this question is the degree to which we want to 'save'the ad valorem credits for future M&I firming 
needs. In order to have enough information to make that decision, we need to know how often M&I shortage 
is expected, and how long the AWBA credits can be expected to last given that shortage level. The AWBA 
Supply and Demand Analysis that is currently underway will be invaluable in helping to answer this threshold 
question. I would hope that no final policy decisions are made re the distribution of credits until this study is 
completed. 

There may be circumstances where underground storage of AWBA credits may be determined to be 
"necessary" to meet certain water management objectives. For example, a municipal provider might want to 
store water to protect the physical availability of its groundwater against the increased groundwater pumping 
that would likely result in times of shortage. Scottsdale is particularly interested in preserving our ability to 
store water, due to our location at the topmost end of the hydrologic gradient in the ESRV basin. Increased 
groundwater pumping in any situation would result in an increase in the hydrologic gradient and therefore an 
increase in the rate that groundwater flows away from the City of Scottsdale. Being able to recharge water in 
strategic locations will help stabilize water levels at a level where we will be able to pump if it is necessary. 

The hydrologic conditions within the northern part of our service area also make it very unlikely that we 
wou Id be in a position to increase our groundwater pumping pursuant to ADWR's assured water supply 
drought exemption: Your discussion paper raises the question of whether it is appropriate to distribute 
AWBA credits for storage if a provider is also pumping (or is legally allqwed to pump?) groundwater pursuant 
to their assured water _supply drought exemption. I urge you to not apply a blanket prohibition on distribution 

1 



of recovered AWBA credits to all water providers that would considered eligible for the drought exem t' b · · · k f. p ton, 
sine some of us may not e in a pos1t1on to ma e use o rt. 

:>ur hydrologic situation also limits the ways that we would be able to take delivery of recovered AWBA 
credits. We simply would not be able to pump the credits and maintain physical availability should the b 
assigned to us for recovery from our own wells. Scottsdale's need is for direct delivery of AWBA credit: e
through the CAP canal system to our surface water treatment plant. 

These comments are my initial thoughts on some of the policy issues raised in your discussion pa per and at
the meeting on May 17

111
. I'm glad that Tim committed at the end of the meeting to work with CAP and

ADVVR to begin to clarify the relative roles of the various agencies. I'm sure that the policy framework 
(perhaps a 'straw man') that comes out of those discussions will help focus our discussions toward that 
reso I ution. 

Again, thanks for the chance to comment. I look forward to working with the AWBA, CAP, and other 
stakeholders to discuss and resolve the many issues associated with planning for the distribution and use of· 
A WBA's stored water. 

Please let me know if you have any questions or would like clarification re these comments. 

Beth M. 

2 



Final Draft 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY 

ANNUAL REPORT 
2010 

Submitted 

July 1, 2011 



Final Draft 

Arizona Water Banking Authority 

Annual Report 
2010 

Honorable Janice K. Brewer 

Governor of Arizona 

Members 

Herbert R. Guenther 
Chairman 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-chairman 

Tom Buschatzke 
Secretary 

John T. Mawhinney 
Member 

Lisa A. Atkins 
Member 

Ex officio 
Senator Steve Pierce 

Representative Kirk Adams 



Final Draft 

Table of Contents 

Summary ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

Annual Report Requirement .............................................................................................................. 5 

Organizational Chart .......................................................................................................................... 6 

CAWCD Support ................................................................................................................................. 6 

Update ................................................................................................................................................. 7 

Activities and Projects - 2010 ............................................................................................................ 9 

Legislative Transfers from the Arizona Water Banking Fund .............. Error! Bookmark not defined.

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund ..................................................................................... 14 

Long-term Storage Credits .............................................................................................................. 16 

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority .................................. 21 

Ten-Year Plan .................................................................................................................................... 22 

Appendices ....................................................................................................................................... 30 



Final Draft 

List of Tables 

Table 1. Monies Collected and Expended in 2010 by Source of Funds ...................................... 15 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2010 and Monies Remaining 
Available ..................................................................................................................................... 15 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2010 ........................ 16 

Table 4. Cumulative Total and Location of Long-term Storage Credits ...................................... 17 

Accrued through December 2010 ................................................................................................... 17 

Table 5. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2010 and 
Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved ..................................................................................... 19 

Table 6a. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
Intrastate Storage ...................................................................................................................... 20 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit for 
Storage on Behalf of Nevada .................................................................................................... 20 

Table 7. Ten-year plan ...................................................................................................................... 24 

Table 8. AWBA Percentage of Goals Achieved through 2021 ..................................................... 25 



Final Draft 

Acronyms and Abbreviations 

ADWR Arizona Department of Water Resources 
AF Acre-foot 
Agreement to Firm Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed February 4, 

2005 between the Arizona Water Banking Authority and the 
Mohave County Water Authority 

Amended Agreement to Amended Agreement to Firm Future Supplies executed 
Firm March 17, 2010. 
AMA Active Management Area 
AWBA Arizona Water Banking Authority 
AWB Fund Arizona Water Banking Fund 
AWRSA Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act 
CAGRD Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District 
CAP Central Arizona Project 
CAWCD Central Arizona Water Conservation District 
GSF Groundwater Savings Facility 
ICUA Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 
IGA Intergovernmental Agreement 
JLBC Joint Legislative Budget Committee 
M&I Municipal and Industrial 
MAF Million acre-feet 
MCWA Mohave County Water Authority 
MDWID Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement District 
Metropolitan Metropolitan Water District of Southern California 
NIA Non-Indian Agriculture 
Plan Annual Plan of Operation 
Reclamation U.S. Bureau of Reclamation 
Recovery Agreement Recovery Agreement executed June 9, 2010 among the 

Arizona Water Banking Authority, the Central Arizona 
Water Conservation District, the Southern Nevada Water 
Authority and the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 

Second Amended Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking 
Agreement signed December 9, 2010 between the Arizona Water 

Banking Authority and the Southern Nevada Water 
Authority and the Colorado River Commission of Nevada 

SNWA Southern Nevada Water Authority 
SSRB Southside Replenishment Bank 
USF Underground Storage Facility 
WMAT White Mountain Apache Tribe 

2 



Final Draft 

Summary 

The Arizona Water Banking Authority (AWBA) was created in 1996 to store the unused portion of 
Arizona's annual allocation of Colorado River water. Until the AWBA was created, Arizona had not 
fully utilized its 2.8 million acre-foot (MAF) allocation of Colorado River water and the state's leaders 
recognized that leaving a portion of Arizona's allocation in the river was a lost opportunity. The 
AWBA was created to provide assurances that water users within the state had secure, long-term 
water supplies. 

The AWBA stores Colorado River water that would have otherwise been unused to accomplish the 
following goals: 

■ To firm (insure the availability of) water supplies for municipal and industrial users in the
Central Arizona Water Conservation District (CAWCD) service area and along the Colorado
River in times of shortages;

■ To fulfill the management plan objectives of the Arizona Groundwater Code;
■ To assist in the settlement of Indian water rights claims; and
■ To assist Nevada and California through interstate water banking.

Each year, the AWBA pays the water delivery and storage costs to bring Colorado River water into 
Central and Southern Arizona through the Central Arizona Project (CAP) canal. The water is either 
stored underground in aquifers (direct recharge) at underground storage facilities (USF) or is used by 
irrigation districts in lieu of pumping groundwater (indirect or in lieu recharge) at groundwater savings 
facilities (GSF). The AWBA accrues a long-term storage credits that can be recovered and used in 
the future during times of a shortage in supply, either by Arizona or by Nevada. 

The funding for water storage that benefits Arizona (intrastate storage) comes from three sources. 
There are restrictions regarding the manner in which these funds can be expended based on the 
source of the monies, which currently include: 

■ Fees for groundwater pumping currently collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson Active
Management Areas (AMA). These monies can only be used to benefit the AMA in which the
fees are collected.

■ A four cent ad valorem property tax collected in the three county CAWCD service area. These
monies can only be used to benefit the county in which the tax is levied.

■ A general fund appropriation received at the discretion of the Legislature.

In addition to these three sources of funding, an additional $8 million for intrastate storage was made 
available from the Southern Nevada Water Authority (SNWA) pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada 
Shortage Sharing Agreement. This fund, referred to as the Shortage Reparation Fund, is intended to 
assist Arizona in storing water to offset impacts from Colorado River shortages that may occur during 
the Interim Period (2008 through 2026). Water was stored in 2010 using just under $700,000 in 
Shortage Reparation Funds. In addition to the funding sources for intrastate storage, the AWBA also 
uses funds provided by Nevada pursuant to the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water 
Banking (2nd Amended Agreement) to create credits for the benefit of Nevada. 

In calendar year 2010, the AWBA delivered for recharge a total of 211,712 acre-feet at a cost of 
$29.9 million. Of that amount, 192,712 acre-feet were for intrastate storage at a cost of $26.1 million 

3 



Final Draft 
and 19,000 acre-feet were for interstate storage at a cost of $3.8 million. The AWBA paid for the 
delivery of 1,000 acre-feet to the Gila River Indian Community for the Southside Replenishment Bank 
(SSRB) as mandated by the intergovernmental agreement between the AWBA and the Gila River 
Indian Community. 

From inception through calendar year 2010, the AWBA has accrued approximately 3,515,926 acre
feet of credits at a cost of $272,164,583. Of this total volume, intrastate credits totaled 2,965,275 
acre-feet at a cost of $163,076,761 or $55.00 per acre-foot and interstate credits totaled 550,651 
acre-feet at a cost of $109,087,822 or $198.10 per acre-foot. In addition to the credits accrued by the 
AWBA, 50,000 acre-feet of credits previously accrued by CAWCD were transferred to the account 
creating a total of 600,651 acre-feet of credits available for Nevada. 

4 



Final Draft 

Annual Report Requirement 

Arizona Revised Statutes § 45-2426 mandates that the AWBA file an annual report with the 
Governor, President of the Senate, and Speaker of the House of Representatives on or before July 1 
of each year for the previous calendar year. The report is required to be a full and complete account 
of the AWBA's transactions and proceedings and must include the following: 

1. An accounting of all monies expended from the banking fund.

2. An accounting of all monies in the banking fund remaining available to the AWBA.

3. The amount of water stored by the AWBA.

4. The number of long-term storage credits distributed or extinguished by the AWBA.

5. The purposes for which long-term storage credits were distributed or extinguished by the AWBA.

6. A description of the water banking services and interstate water banking to be undertaken by the
AWBA during the following ten-year period and a projection of the capacity of the AWBA during
that period to undertake those activities in addition to storing Colorado River water brought into
the state through the CAP for all of the following purposes:

a. Protecting this state's municipal and industrial (M&I) water users against future water shortages
on the Colorado River and disruptions of operation of the CAP.

b. Fulfilling the water management objectives of the state.

c. Making water available to implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian
communities within Arizona.

7. Any other matter determined by the authority to be relevant to the policy and purposes of the
AWBA.

5 



Final Draft 

ADWR Support 

Organizational Chart 

Herbert R. Guenther 
Chairman 

Tom Buschatzke 
Secretary 

Maureen R. George 
Vice-Chairman 

John Mawhinney Lisa A. Atkins (Designee) 
Ex officio Members 

Senator Steve Pierce (Designee) Representative Kirk Adams 

Virginia O'Connell 
Tech. Administrator 
Ajita Athalye 
Financial Reports 

Kim Mitchell 
Manager 

Tim Henley 
Contract Consultant 

Ken Slowinski and Gregg Houtz 
Legal Counsel 

6 

CAWCD Support 



Final Draft 

Update 

On June 4, 2009, the CAWCD Board adopted the Procedure to Distribute Excess Water in 2010 
through 2014. This policy, also termed Access to Excess, was developed due to the ever-increasing 
demand for water in the Excess class. The policy created four pools, one of which is 175,000 acre
feet shared between the AWBA, the Central Arizona Groundwater Replenishment District (CAGRD) 
for replenishment reserve, and the Bureau of Reclamation (Reclamation) for Indian firming. 

The original AWBA Plan of Operation for 2010 (Plan) identified 152,600 acre-feet available for 
intrastate storage from within the 175,000 acre-foot pool. There was no component for interstate 
storage in the original Plan due to limitations on water. In September, due to decreased demands 
along the Colorado River and the remarketing of previously allocated CAP supplies, CAWCD was 
able to make additional water available to the AWBA. The AWBA approved an Amended Plan that 
included an additional 57,000 acre-feet. The Amended Plan included 19,000 acre-feet scheduled for 
interstate storage to be done in the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs and utilized all storage facility 
capacity available to the AWBA. In 2010, the AWBA delivered 211,712 acre-feet of water for storage, 
106,018 acre-feet for intrastate storage and 19,000 acre-feet for interstate storage. Additional 
information regarding water deliveries, is provided later in this section. 

In 2010, the AWBA continued its quarterly meeting schedule with meetings on March 17, June 16, 
September 15, and December 8, 2010. There were no special meetings held by the AWBA. AWBA 
staff attended recovery planning meetings at CAWCD that continued throughout 2010. CAWCD's 
most recent efforts focused on methods for recovering long-term storage credits and identification of 
recovery opportunities within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson Active Management Areas. At the 
August 2010 meeting, CAWCD staff briefed attendees on CAWCD's Draft Guiding Principles for 
Recovery of Stored CAP Water that outlined basic recovery concepts. It is anticipated that 
refinement of those concepts and development of recovery policies will continue in 2011. 

There were no membership changes within the AWBA Commission in 2010 which is the time period 
covered by this Annual Report. [While Chairman Guenther served in 2010, he retired in January 
2011 and Sandra Fabritz-Whitney was appointed Director of the Arizona Department of Water 
Resources (ADWR) and became the new Chair of the AWBA]. Senator Steve Pierce continued to 
serve as ex officio member pursuant to his designation by President of the Senate, Robert Burns. 
Speaker of the House of Representatives, Kirk Adams, also continued serving as ex officio member 
of the Commission. Lisa Atkins continued to serve in her role as designee of Susan Bitter Smith, 
President of the CAWCD Board. The AWBA was greatly saddened by the loss of Gregg Houtz who 
passed away on July 29, 2010. Ajita Athalye joined the AWBA staff part-time in June. Ms. Athalye 
will serve as a financial assistant to the AWBA. 

The continuing struggle within Arizona to balance the budget impacted the Arizona Water Banking 
(AWB) Fund in 2010. House Bill 2001 (J1h Special Session of the 49th Legislature) was signed into 
law on March 18, 2010. This bill addressed budget reductions and additional transfers for fiscal years 
2009-2010 and 2010-2011 necessary to provide support and maintenance for state agencies. The 
total impact to the AWB Fund over the two fiscal years was $5.65 million. Of this, $5 million was from 
the Nevada Resource subaccount. 

The CAWCD Board filed a petition for special action with the Arizona Supreme Court which claimed 
that the legislative transfer of funds from the AWB Fund's Nevada Resource subaccount was 
unconstitutional. This petition was denied by the Supreme Court without comment, consequently, the 

7 



Final Draft 
CAWCD Board authorized attorneys to refile the lawsuit in Superior Court on February 3, 2010. [This 
case is titled LC2010-000468 and as of June 1, 2011, a final order had not yet been issued by Judge 
Kreamer. However, in April 2011, the court indicated that it would grant CAWCD's Motion for 
Summary Judgement]. 

In 2010, the AWBA delivered for recharge a total of 211,712 acre-feet of water for intrastate purposes 
and a total of 19,000 acre-feet were delivered for storage on behalf of the SNWA. The interstate 
credits accrued through 2010 are estimated at 600,651 acre-feet and fulfills about 48 percent of 
Arizona's obligation to Nevada under the 2nd Amended Agreement. The quantity of water received by 
each facility is described in Appendix A and totaled 92,460 acre-feet of water in the Phoenix AMA, 
35,830 acre-feet of water in the Pinal AMA, and 83,422 acre-feet in the Tucson AMA. 

In addition to the 2010 deliveries, 8,159 acre-feet of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 
(ICUA) were created and made available to California. This ICUA was created pursuant to the 
Amended Letter Agreement for the Creation of Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment with 
Credits Created Under the 1992 Demonstration Agreement between CAWCD and MWD, December 
11, 2007. For the third time, ICUA was certified in 2010. In June, 2010, the AWBA certified the 
creation of 27,504 acre-feet of ICUA in 2009. 

Based on the Decree accounting data, total consumptive use of Colorado River water by Arizona for 
2010 was 2. 78 MAF. Distribution of the 2. 78 MAF was approximately 1.13 MAF for direct uses along 
the Colorado River and CAP diversions of approximately 1.65 MAF (U.S. Bureau of Reclamation, 
Lower Colorado River Operations, Colorado River Accounting and Water Use Report - 2010, dated 
May 2011). In 2010, storage by the AWBA assisted Arizona in using its entitlement to Colorado River 
water. 

For additional information regarding the AWBA, please see the AWBA website at 
www.azwaterbank.gov or contact Virginia O'Connell (voconnell@azwater.gov), Gerry Wildeman 
(glwildeman@azwater.gov) or Tim Henley (tjhenley@azwater.gov), or by phone at 602-771-8487. 

8 



Final Draft 
Activities and Projects - 2010 

Interstate Banking 

Interstate water banking in Arizona continued to evolve in 2010 primarily as a result of the overall 
economic climate. The AWBA sub-account for Nevada had a balance of 600,651 acre-feet of long
term storage credits at the end of 2010. Of that balance, 50,000 acre�feet of credits were transferred 
from CAWCD for storage done in the early 1990's under the demonstration project. Annual interstate 
storage for 2002 through 2010 is displayed in Table 6b. 

Letter Amendment to the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking 

The 2nd Amended Agreement, that was developed to address the evolving nature of interstate water 
banking, was approved in April 2009. The 2nd Amended Agreement included a subarticle that 
permitted modification of certain subarticles of the agreement to accommodate changing economic 
and hydrologic circumstances. As an example of changing circumstances, in both 2009 and 2010, 
there was agreement that it was unlikely the AWBA would store water for the SNWA, therefore the 
contractual payment schedule had been modified. 

However, as 2010 drew to an end, it was recognized that the hydrologic conditions in the Colorado 
River had not improved. Current projections by Reclamation indicated a strong probability that the 
elevation of Lake Mead would decline over the following two years. Under the current Colorado River 
operational guidelines, the Secretary of the Interior will declare a shortage when the elevation of Lake 
Mead drops below 1075 feet. Additionally, recoginzing its current operational limit is elevation 1050 
feet, SNWA was in the process of constructing a lower intake. Consequently, the AWBA and SNWA 
agreed that it was appropriate to evaluate interstate water banking over the next several years and 
make some longer term modifications to the 2nd Amended Agreement. 

As a result of the evaluation, the parties agreed that it was prudent for the AWBA to forego additional 
interstate water banking for SNWA through 2014 and for SNWA to forego requests for development 
of ICUA in the same time frame. The assumption was that this would assist in maintaining a higher 
elevation in Lake Mead. Additionally, in light of the operational adjustments and the fiscal needs of 
SNWA associated with construction of the new intake, the parties agreed that the payment dates in 
the 2nd Amended Agreement would be extended by six years. The result is that SNWA's obligation to 
make ten payments of $23 million would resume in 2015 and end in 2024. The letter agreement to 
make operational adjustments and modify the payment schedule in the 2nd Amended Agreement was 
executed on December 9, 2010 and superseded all previous letter agreements. 

Recovery Agreement 

In addition to the operational parameters discussed above, the parties to the 2nd Amended Agreement 
and the CAWCD also initiated discussions in 2009 regarding details associated with recovery of long
term storage credits stored for both interstate and intrastate purposes. The Recovery Agreement 
Among the Arizona Water Banking Authority, the Central Arizona Water Conservation District, the 
Southern Nevada Water Authority and the Colorodo River Commission of Nevada (Recovery 
Agreement), identifying the process for future recovery and providing for direct financial arrangements 
between SNWA and CAWCD for future recovery actions, was executed on June 9, 2010. 
Specifically, the Recovery Agreement established a recovery planning process that will initiate in 
2015, mandated three years notice prior to actual recovery, addressed other entities use of CAWCD 

9 



Final Draft 
recovery facilities, described the recovery mechanisms and provided for the SNWA and CAWCD to 
enter into separate agreements that address the financial components of recovery. 

Interstate Water Banking Report 

Since 2006, the AWBA has been required to submit a report to the Joint Legislative Buget Committee 
(JLBC) pursuant to A.RS. § 45-2473. This report must be submitted by October 1 for the previous 
fiscal year if the AWBA was owed or received any monies pursuant to an interstate water banking 
agreement. The report shall account for all of the money received or disbursed pursuant to an 
interstate water banking agreement. By letter dated September 21, 2010, the AWBA transmitted the 
Interstate Water Banking Report for Fiscal Year 2009-2010 to the JLBC as required. A report that 
accounts for the distribution of interstate monies for the time period July 1, 2010 through June 30, 
2011 will be submitted in October of 2011. 

Amended 2010 Plan of Operation 

The 2010 Plan of Operation did not include interstate storage on behalf of SNWA due to limited water 
availability. However, through CAWCD's remarketing process, 57,000 acre-feet of water became 
available to the AWBA. Consequently, the 2010 Plan was amended on September 15, 201 O to 
include the additional water. Planned utilization of the water included 38,000 acre-feet for storage for 
intrastate purposes and 19,000 acre-feet for interstate purposes with interstate storage being done in 
the Phoenix and Tucson AMAs. By the end of calendar year 2010, the AWBA was able to store 
19,000 acre-feet of water on Nevada's behalf. 

The AWBA sub-account for Nevada had a balance of 600,651 acre-feet of long-term storage credits 
at the end of 2010. Of that balance, 50,000 acre-feet of credits were transferred from CAWCD for 
water that was stored in the early 1990's. Annual interstate storage for 2002 through 2010 is shown 
in Table 6b. 

Acquisition of Additional Water Supplies 

Discussions regarding the potential acquisition of additional water supplies to meet the AWBA's 
obligation to SNWA continued through calendar year 2010 . At the December 16, 2009 AWBA 
meeting, an update on the issue was provided and the Authority was informed that additional work 
would entail hiring a consultant. At the meeting, CAWCD indicated that they could potentially hire the 
consultant because the scope of work would be very similar to a scope of work needed by CAWCD 
for use by the CAGRD. In January 2010, CAWCD contracted with Tom Carr, a recent ADWR retiree 
with extensive experience working with Colorado River communities, to complete the evaluation 
through June 2010. 

At the March, 2010 AWBA meeting, Mr. Carr provided a progress report on the scope of work that 
included description and screening of potential water supplies, meetings and interviews with potential 
partners or stakeholders, and identification of mechanisms for acquiring the supplies. The progress 
report includes a summary of potential water supplies, a general schedule of when CAGRD will need 
the additional supplies, a summary of the volume needed by AWBA to meet the interstate obligation 
to SNWA, and next steps. 

Later in the year, as the Navajo-Hopi Indian Settlement discussions progressed, it became apparent 
that the AWBA's needs may be different than CAWCDs and may include acquiring additional supplies 
to meet Indian firming obligations. Consequently, the AWBA requested ADWR contract with Mr. Carr 

10 



Final Draft 
to assist the AWBA in identifying opportunities for acquiring additional supplies. The scope of work in 
this contract included: advise AWBA on availability and suitability of water supplies to meet AWBA 
obligations; prepare reports and presentations to Authority; conduct interviews regarding availability 
of water supplies; facilitate public meetings; and advise and assist with preparation of agreements 
and contracts. The AWBA planned a special Water Supply Workshop for January 10, 2011 that 
included a presentation regarding the consultant's initial findings. 

Intentionally Created Unused Apportionment 

Requests and Development 

For the fourth year, ICUA was developed in 2010 for Metropolitan Water District of Southern 
California (Metropolitan). In December, 2009 the AWBA notified Reclamation that an estimated 8,663 
acre-feet of ICUA would be created in 2010. By year's end, an estimated 8,159 acre-feet of ICUA 
was developed through recovery of long-term storage credits from wells within three irrigation 
districts in Pinal County: Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District; Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation 
& Drainage District; and Hohokam Irrigation and Drainage District and the exchange of the recovered 
water with same districts their CAP water. The development of ICUA in 2010 fully utilized the long
term storage credits earned by Metropolitan in Arizona. Below is a table summarizing the ICUA 
developed for the benefit of Metropolitan. Unless an interstate water banking agreement is executed 
with entities in California in the future, there will be no additional development of ICUA for California. 

Development of ICUA for the Benefit of Metropolitan 

Long-term Storage Credits ICUA Credits 
Year Recovered Exchanged Developed Remaining 

80,909 

2007 10,921 5,883 16,804 64,105 
2008 27,442 1,000 28,442 35,663 
2009 27,504 - 27,504 8,159 
2010 8,159 - 8,159 -

Total 74,026 6,883 80,909 -

Certification 

AWBA is required to certify the creation of ICUA to the Secretary of the Interior, Metropolitan, and 
CAWCD in the year following development of the ICUA. Following ADWR's review of the 2009 
annual reports and verification of the recovery of long-term storage credits, in a letter dated June 11, 
2010, the AWBA certified the creation of 27,504 acre-feet of ICUA for 2009. 

Agreement to Firm Future Supplies 

The AWBA is required by statute to reserve a reasonable number of credits accrued with General 
Fund appropriations for entities outside the CAWCD service area. In 2005, the AWBA entered into 
an Agreement to Firm Future Supplies (Agreement to Firm) with Mohave County Water Authority 
(MCWA). In the Agreement to Firm, the AWBA agreed to reserve approximately 230,000 acre-feet of 

11 



Final Draft 
credits for MCWA's use. The MCWA agreed to make a $20 per acre-foot pre-payment of the 
replacement cost for those credits. 

Once the credits were identified for use by an entity outside of the three-county service area, CAWCD 
was required to charge the AWBA a fee in lieu of the 4¢ ad valorem tax. CAWCD refers to this cost 
component as the property tax equivalent. The property tax equivalent for 2005 was $20 per acre
foot. The AWBA has utilized monies collected from MCWA to make the property tax equivalent 
payments to CAWCD. The final payment due under the Agreement to Firm was made by MCWA in 
November of 2010 for the first quarter of 2011. 

Due to the acquisition of additional Colorado River entitlements by the MCWA and their desire to 
include these new supplies within the Agreement to Firm, the AWBA approved a resolution and 
executed an amended agreement. Resolution 2010-1 of the Authority established the procedure by 
which fourth priority on-river M&I water users not party to the Agreement to Firm can participate in a 
firming agreement with the AWBA and establishes that the agreements would be similar to the 
Agreement to Firm. This resolution was adopted at the March 17, 2010 AWBA meeting. 

The Amended Agreement to Firm Future Supplies (Amended Agreement to Firm) was also approved 
at the same meeting; it had been previously approved by the MCWA on March 9, 2010. The 
Amended Agreement to Firm included a new exhibit, Exhibit C, which was developed based on 
Resolution 2010-1 and included the addition of the MCWA and an increased firming obligation for 
Bullhead City and Lake Havasu City. Exhibit C reserved an additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits for 
those entities. The Amended Agreement to Firm was considered fully executed with the execution of 
Exhibit C on December 8, 2010. Pre-payment for the new volume firmed by Exhibit C will begin July 
1, 2011. 

Indian Firming Program 

White Mountain Apache Tribe 

The White Mountain Apache Tribe (WMAT) Water Rights Quantification Act signed on December 8, 
2010 ratified the earlier quantification agreement that had been executed in January of 2009. Of 
significance to the AWBA is the State of Arizona's obligation to firm 3,750 acre-feet of the WMAT's 
CAP Non-Indian Agriculture (NIA) Priority water for one hundred years, beginning January 1, 2008. 
This firming volume is part of the state's obligation to firm 8,724 acre-feet of water associated with 
future Indian water rights settlements under the Arizona Water Rights Settlement Act (AWRSA). 

Specifically, the AWBA, on behalf of the state, must firm the 3,750 acre-feet of water to a priority 
equivalent to CAP M&I Priority water so that during declared Colorado River shortages the WMAT 
CAP NIA Priority water will be delivered in the same manner as non-firmed CAP M&I Priority water. 
The AWBA's obligation is tied to the enforceability date; no firming is required until after 
enforceability. The deadline to meet the conditions necessary to achieve enforceability of the 
agreement is April 30, 2021. 

Northeastern Arizona Indian Water Rights Settlement 

At the beginning of 2010, the Navajo and Hopi Tribes were still negotiating in an effort to reach 
consensus on the components of the settlement agreement. Additionally, the other parties to the 
agreement had not yet reached consensus. Specifically, the State of Arizona expressed concerns 

12 



Final Draft 
about signing the agreement until the source of funds that would be used to meet the state's 
obligation had been identified. The state's obligation under this settlement represented a significant 
addition to the state's already existing Indian firming obligation. This is significant to the AWBA 
because the AWBA has assumed the state's obligations in earlier Indian settlements and could be 
required to assume this additional obligation. Throughout 2010, discussions associated with this 
settlement remained on-going and no agreements were executed. 

Southside Replenishment Bank 

In 2009, the AWBA entered into an intergovernmental agreement (IGA) with the Gila River Indian 
Community for direct delivery of water for the purpose of establishing the SSRB as mandated by the 
AWRSA. The first requisite delivery was made in 2009. In 2010, an additional 1,000 acre-feet of 
water were delivered pursuant to the IGA bringing the total volume of the SSRB to 2,000 acre-feet. 
By memorandum dated September 23, 2010, the AWBA was informed by ADWR that there were no 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2009 reporting year. It is not anticipated that there will be 
irrigation replenishment obligations for the 2010 reporting year, but that information will not be 
available until later in 2011 and will be reported in the 2011 Annual Report. 

2011 Plan of Operation 

Pursuant to the 2011 Plan approved December 8, 2010, projected deliveries for the AWBA are 
136,441 acre-feet for intrastate storage and 1,000 acre-feet for direct delivery to the Gila River Indian 
Community for the SSRB. Of the quantity to be delivered for intrastate storage, 108,886 acre-feet are 
projected to be recharged at USFs and 27,555 acre-feet at GSFs. The 2011 Plan is the second plan 
of operation that included differing cost share structures for GSF partners based on AMA. The cost 
share for GSF partners in the Tucson AMA was $15 per acre-foot and in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs 
it was $33 per acre-foot. There was no interstate storage planned for 2011. If opportunities for 
interstate storage arise, the 2011 Plan would require amendment to permit interstate water banking. 

Agreement and Facility Permit Activity 

The AWBA executed one new agreement for water storage in 2010. The water storage agreement 
for the Avra Valley Recharge project was executed with Metropolitan Domestic Water Improvement 
District (MDWID) on December 20, 2010. This new agreement was necessary because the MDWID 
purchased the facility from the CAWCD. 

The AWBA submitted applications to renew three water storage permits on September 29, 2010. The 
facilities and volumes for which applications were made were: Queen Creek Irrigation District (28,000 
acre-feet); Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District (110,000 acre-feet); and Maricopa
Stanfield Irrigation and Drainage District (120,000 acre-feet). The water storage permits were not 
issued in 2010. 

Website 

Staff continue to utilize the AWBA website in the effort to provide timely and accurate information 
regarding the AWBA's activities to the water community: www.azwaterbank.gov . The web page 
contains information about the AWBA, Commission members and staff, announcements, meetings, 
storage facilities and water deliveries. It also contains documents that may be downloaded and 
provides links to other water-related websites. 

13 



Final Draft 

Monies Expended from the Banking Fund 

Arizona Revised Statutes §45-2425 mandates the various sources of monies for the AWB Fund that 
is administered by the AWBA per the statute. In 2010, the AWBA obtained its funding from the 
following sources: 

1. Fees for groundwater pumping are collected within the Phoenix, Pinal and Tucson AMAs. Fees
for water banking purposes are charged at $2.50 per acre-foot. Legislative changes allow for
groundwater withdrawal fees to be collected and available to the AWBA beyond 2016 (A.RS. §45-
611 (c)(3)). Long-term storage credits accrued with these monies must be used to benefit the
AMA in which they were collected.

2. No ad va/orem tax revenues were deposited into the AWB Fund in 2010. In June of 2009, the
CAWCD board again resolved that all taxes to be levied for the following tax year would be
retained by the CAWCD. All ad valorem monies previously held in the AWB Fund have now
been expended. Money from this source must be used to benefit the county in which it was
collected.

3. No general fund appropriation money was deposited in the AWB Fund in 2010.

4. Pursuant to the Agreement to Firm, MCWA agreed to prepay the AWBA to set aside 230,280
acre-feet of credits that were transferred to the MCWA sub-account. Once the credits were
identified for use by an entity outside of the three-county service area, CAWCD was required to
charge the AWBA a fee in lieu of the 4¢ ad valorem tax. Monies collected from MCWA are used
to offset the CAWCD fees which are charged at the same rate and on the same quarterly
schedule as MCWA's prepayments to the AWBA. The final payment due under the Agreement to
Firm was made by MCWA in November of 2010 for the first quarter of 2011. Prepayments under
the Amended Agreement to Firm do not begin until 2011.

5. The rate charged by CAP for AWBA Interstate Recharge water deliveries is comprised of four
different components, three of which are reconcilable. The reconciliation of this rate for the 2009
interstate deliveries was completed in 2010 and yielded a refund to the AWBA which was utilized
to pay for the 2010 interstate water deliveries. No additional funds were needed from SNWA to
fund 2010 interstate water deliveries.

6. The AWBA utilized $691,823 in Shortage Reparation Funds made available by SNWA upon
request.

Table 1 shows the money the AWBA collected and the money that was expended for delivery and 
storage of water in 2010 by source of funds. Table 2 shows the total money received, expended and 
remaining through December 2010 by source of funds. 

14 



Final Draft 

Table 1. Monies Collected and Expended in 2010 by Source of Funds 

Source of Funds Money Collected Money Expended 

General Funds $0 

In-Lieu Fund - MCWA Prepayments $921,120 

State Indian Firming $0 

Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 
Nevada Resource 

1 
$14,629 

Operating $12,241 
Subtotal for Interstate $26,870 

Shortaqe Reparations - NV $691,823 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax2 

Maricopa County $0 
Pinal County $0 
Pima County $0 

Subtotal for Ad valorem $0 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 
Phoenix AMA $1,623,923 

Pinal AMA $1,233,351 
Tucson AMA $438,467 

Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $3,295,741 
TOTAL $4,935,554 

' Amount collected is interest . 
2 Money expended by CAWCD to offset the AWBA delivery costs. 

Table 2. Monies Collected and Expended through December 2010 
and Monies Remaining Available 

Source of Funds 
Money Money 

Collected Expended 

General Funds $11,100,865 $11,100,865 

In-Lieu Fund - MCWA Pre-payments $4,605,600 $4,605,600 

State Indian Firming2 $2,338,171 $2,338,171 

Interstate Water Banking-NV 
Pre-Amended Agreement $10,053,945 $10,053,945 

Nevada Resource
2 $86,594,126 $86,589,032 

Operating $12,697,697 $12,444,845 
Subtotal for Interstate $109,345,768 $109,087,822 

Shortage Reparations - NV $2,999,748 $2,999,748.17 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax4 

Maricopa County $181,231,014 $72,402,805 
Pinal County $8,144,184 $7,433,465 
Pima County $35,919,857 $30,792,650 

Subtotal for Ad va/orem $225,295,054 $110,628,919 

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees 

Phoenix AMA
2 

$15,794,206 $15,766,819 
Pinal AMA

2 
$13,464,814 $13,450,567 

Tucson AMA
2 

$7,175,903 $7,017,673 
Subtotal for Withdrawal Fees $36,434,924 $36,235,058 

TOTAL $392,120, 125 $276,996,183 

$0 

$921,120 

$0 

$0 
$3,825,350 
$3,825,350 

$691,823 

$11,312,248 
$1,819,600 
$9,709,265 

$22,841,113 

$1,006,943 
$1,381,400 

$224,668 
$2,613,011 

$30,892,417 

Money 
Available1 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 
$5,0943 

$252,852 
$257,946 

$0.00 

$108,828,209 
$710,719 

$5,127,208 
$114,666,135 

$27,388 
$14,248 

$158,231 
$199,866 

$115,123,941 

1 Money remaining in AWB Fund or collected by CAWCD; includes monies committed for the 2011 Plan of Operation.
2 Total money collected was decreased to reflect legislative transfers in CY 2004, CY 2005, CY 2009, and CY 2010. 
3 Interest accrued prior to, but deposited after Legislative transfer in CY 2010. 
4 Includes money collected and money expended by CAWCD to offset the AWBA delivery costs.



Final Draft 
The AWBA continued to suffer severe impacts from legislative transfers in calendar year 2010 with a 
series of transfers totaling over $5.6 million. Of this, $5 million was from the Nevada Resource 
subaccount. Legislative transfers from the AWBA's inception through the end of fiscal year 2010-
2011 total approximately $47.9 million. Of this, approximately $19.65 million was transferred from the 
Nevada Resource subaccount. The remaining $28.25 million was transferred from the AWB Fund 
subaccounts that are used to store intrastate water including Indian firming. Throughout this process, 
AWBA staff continued to produce extensive spreadsheets and alternative scenarios for Authority 
members to enable them to evaluate the administrative and operational impacts of the legislative 
transfers on the AWBA's activities. 

Long-term Storage Credits 

The AWBA has established long-term storage credit accounts with ADWR for each AMA. After 
receiving the AWBA's annual reports, ADWR calculates and issues long-term storage credits to the 
appropriate accounts. The AWBA receives credit for 95 percent of the stored water. After credits 
are issued to the account, AWBA staff allocates the credits to the appropriate sub-accounts based on 
source of funding. The number and distribution of long-term storage credits for 2010 are listed in 
Table 3. The cumulative totals of long-term storage credits accrued by the AWBA through December 
2010 are listed in Table 4. 

Table 3. Number and Location of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued in 2010 

Location and Funding Source 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Totals by Funding Source 

TOTAL 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate - Nevada 

16 

Long-term Storage Credits 
Accrued (acre-feet) 

75,830 
6,744 

0 
0 
0 

4,721 
87,295 

15,162 
11,105 

0 
0 

4,396 
0 

30,663 

62,217 
1,430 

0 
0 

1,227 
13,157 
78,031 

153,210 
19,279 

0 
0 

5,623 
17,878 

195,989 



Final Draft 
Table 4. Cumulative Total and Location of Long-term Storage Credits 

Accrued through December 2010 

Location and Funding Source 

Phoenix AMA 

Pinal AMA 

Tucson AMA 

Totals by Source of Funds 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

1 

General Fund 
Indian Firming 

Shortage Reparations 
Interstate Water Banking - Nevada 

AMA Total 

4¢ Ad valorem Tax 
Groundwater Withdrawal Fee 

General Fund£ 

Indian Firming 
Shortage Reparations 

Interstate Water Banking - Nevada
3 

TOTAL 

Long-term Storage Credits 
Accrued (acre-feet) 

1,218,657 
268,985 

42,316 
0 

20,642 
51,008 

1,601,608 

168,419 
373,231 
306,968 

0 

60,181 
439,851 

1,348,651 

329,034 
92,587 
54,546 
28,481 

1,227 
109,791 
615,666 

1,716,111 
734,803 
403,830 

28,481 
82,050 

600,650 

3,565,925 

1 
Includes 234 acre-feet of credits purchased from the Tohono O'odham Nation pursuant to§ 45-841.01. 

2 
By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued 
through expenditure of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with MCWA dated 
February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for 
the MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of credits have been reserved under Exhibit C the Amended 
Agreement to Firm, dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet. By resolution passed in 2008, the AWBA 
established a replacement account for 4

th 
priority Colorado River M&I users. 

3 
Includes 50,000 acre-feet of credits transferred to SNWA. 

Since inception, the AWBA has focused its efforts on developing long-term storage credits for firming 
purposes. The AWBA has identified 2,700,000 acre-feet of credits as a reasonable amount of credits 
to firm the CAP M&I subcontracts over the next 100 years. This volume is divided based on a pro
rata distribution by county based on CAP M&I subcontracts as follows: 58 percent Maricopa County; 
32 percent Pima County; and 9 percent Pinal County. 

The AWBA has also identified 420,000 acre-feet of credits as reasonable amount of credits to firm the 
on-river communities over the next 100 years. In 2002, the AWBA adopted a resolution that identified 
on-river firming as the highest priority of use for the general fund credits and established priorities for 

17 



Final Draft 
other uses (Indian settlements, etc.). Consequently, all or part of the general fund credits could be 
utilized to firm on-river M&I users. It should be noted that the AWBA will collect reimbursement for 
the replacement cost of credits used for on-river firming. In 2008, the AWBA executed Resolution 
2008-1 that established a long-term storage credit replacement account for 4th priority Colorado River 
M&I users. As credits are used and replaced, these replacement credits will be placed in a separate 
replacement subaccount and be earmarked for the entity that reimburses the AWBA for the 
replacement of those credits. Table 5 illustrates the progress made by the AWBA towards meeting its 
established goals. 

Table 5 also identifies the estimated remaining costs for meeting the AWBA's goals and obligations. 
These estimates are developed based on the assumptions contained in the AWBA's Ten-Year Plan 
for 2012-2021 and are subject to potential shortages discussed under recovery in the plan. For 
obligations that are not met in the ten-year plan, 2022 estimated costs were assumed when 
calculating the amount remaining to meet the goals. 

As described in the Ten-Year Plan section of this report most of the firming goals will be met during 
the next ten years. Those not met include the Tucson AMA and on-river M&I firming goals, and the 
Nevada contract obligation. Approximately 70 percent of the Tucson AMA firming goal will have been 
met by 2021. Since all of the ad valorem tax monies will have been expended by 2016, the AWBA 
will need to rely on withdrawal fees to meet the remainder of this firming goal. Because revenue from 
withdrawal fees is limited in the Tucson AMA (less than $500,000 per year), the firming goal would 
not be met until well beyond 2025. Therefore, estimated rates for 2022 were used to calculate the 
total remaining costs for the Tucson AMA firming goal. Expenditures under the ten-year plan for the 
Tucson AMA are estimated at $31 million, utilizing ad valorem tax monies ($26 million) and 
withdrawal fees ($5 million), and the remaining costs are estimated at $42 million for a total cost of 
$73 million. 

Likewise, because it is not known if, or when, the AWBA will receive general fund appropriations in 
the future, the same method was applied to calculate the remaining on-river firming costs. It was also 
assumed that storage for on-river firming purposes would be at GSFs. 

Although funding is not the limiting factor for meeting the Nevada contract obligation, the same 
assumption was used to calculate the remaining interstate costs because the amount of water 
available for this purpose after 2021 is not known. Interstate storage costs for the ten-year plan are 
estimated at $23 million, which results in a cumulative balance of 652,851 acre-feet of credits. 
Utilizing 2022 rates to calculate the costs for accruing the remaining 597,149 acre-feet of credits, 
assuming average USF/GSFstorage costs, would cost an additional $112 million for a total cost of 
$134 million. 

Lastly, the remaining costs for meeting the Indian firming goals were estimated by assuming that 
because the M&I firming goals could be met using ad valorem taxes and only a portion of existing 
withdrawal fee credits from the Pinal AMA, all withdrawal fee credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal 
AMAs in the next ten years would be applied toward meeting these goals. Existing withdrawal fee 
credits in the Pinal AMA and credits accrued from storage at the Gila River Indian Irrigation and 
Drainage District GSF, could be used to meet the remaining firming goal. Existing withdrawal fee 
credits from the Phoenix AMA could be used to meet the firming goal for future Indian settlements. 
Because funding has already been expended for these credits, they were not included in the 
calculation for remaining costs. 

18 



Final Draft 

Table 5. Identified Uses of Long-term Storage Credits Accrued through December 2010 and 
Percentage of AWBA Goals Achieved 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits Percent Estimated' 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. Remaining 

Achieved (AF) Achieved Costs 
($ Million) 

Phoenix AMA 
1,566,000 

M&I Firming Ad valorem tax AF 1,218,657 78% $49 
Groundwater Mgmt2 Withdrawal Fees 268,985 95% 

Pinal AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 243,000 AF 168,419 69% $5 
Groundwater Mgmt2 Withdrawal Fees 373,231 223% 

Tucson AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000 AF 329,034 38% $26 
Groundwater Mgmt2 Withdrawal Fees 86,966 48% $47 

On-River M&I 
Firming3 General Fund 420,000 AF 403,830 96%3 $1.9 

Indian 
Settlements: 

350,000 AF4 

up to 15,000 
05 GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees AF/YR 0% $11 

Phoenix AMA 
Pinal AMA 

200,000 AF4 

up to 8,724 
05 Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AF/YR N/A $19 

Federal Assistance $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,101 100% . 

SAWRSA Appropriation $2,338,171 28,480 

Withdrawal Fees $630,490 5,621 

Cost of Services6 
$31,339 nla 

Southside Repl. 15,000 AF 
Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Delivery 2,000 13% $1.8 

Interstate Water Contract with 
Banking - NV Nevada 1,250,000 AF7 600,651 48% $134 

Shortage 
Reparations- Gifts, Grants, 
Nevada Donations $8,000,000 $2,999,748 82,050 37% $5 

1 
Based on the ten-year plan and an assumed rate escalation of 1 % for water storage costs after 2016. 

2
Withdrawal fees could be utilized in addition to 4¢ ad valorem tax revenues for M&I firming if needed to reach firming goals. 

3 
By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through expenditure of general 
fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with the Mohave County Water Authority (MCWA) dated February 4, 2005, a total of 
230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term storage subaccount for the MCWA in 2005. An additional 25,894 acre-feet of 
credits have been reserved under Exhibit C the Amended Agreement to Firm, dated December 8, 2010, for a total of 256,174 acre-feet. 

4 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006.
5 

No credits have been dedicated for this purpose but Withdrawal Fee Credits could be used if a shortage were to occur. 
6 

Expenditures include $14,883 and $16,456 deducted for payment of cost of services for FY 08 and FY 09, respectively. 
7 

Pursuant to the Second Amended Agreement for Interstate Water Banking, the AWBA has committed to have this number of long-term storage 
credits within the Nevada subaccount. 

19 



Final Draft 
The average annual cost for the AWBA to obtain one acre-foot of long-term storage credit for 
intrastate and interstate storage is presented in Tables 6a and 6b, respectively. Table 6a illustrates 
that the unit cost per credit for intrastate storage fluctuate yearly. CAWCD establishes the cost for 
delivery and storage of excess water. The sigificant increase for 2010 is due CAWCD eliminating the 
incentive recharge cost structure. 

Table 6a. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit 
for Intrastate Storage 

Year Credits 
1

Funds Expended 
Average Cost % Stored in GSF: 
(per acre-foot) 

% Stored in USF 

1997 296,987 $6,387,000 $21.51 85%: 15% 

1998 202,542 $7,143,000 $35.27 68%: 32% 

1999 232,142 $8,733,000 $37.61 68%: 32% 

2000 272,123 $11,163,000 $41.02 60%: 40% 

2001 275,406 $10,893,590 $39.55 62%: 38% 

2002 262,317 $13,700,300 $52.23 64%: 36% 

2003 200,168 $11,077,666 $55.34 47%: 53% 

2004 251,456 $17,855,997 $71.01 41%: 59% 

2005 85,782 $5,615,201 $65.46 58%: 42% 

2006 162,132 $14,720,277 $90.79 17%: 83% 

2007 245,221 $15,641,702 $63.79 37%: 63% 

2008 203,129 $8,168,100 $40.21 65%: 35% 

2009 
2 

97,540 $6,977,590 $71.54 76%: 24%

2010 178,111 $26,027,947 $146.13 21%: 79% 

1 
Information in this table is reconciled on an annual basis. 

2 
Does not include credits purchased pursuant to § 45-841.01. 

Table 6b illustrates the unit cost per long-term storage credit for interstate als fluctuate yearly. No 
interstate storage occurred in 2008. 

Table 6b. Average Annual Cost for the AWBA to Obtain a Long-term Storage Credit 
for Storage on Behalf of Nevada 

Year Credits Funds Expended 
Average Cost % Stored in GSF: 
(per acre-foot) 

% Stored in USF 

2002 61,098 $8,617,393 $141.04 100%: 0% 

2003 50,000
1 

2004 14,162 $2,899,647 $204.75 66%: 34% 

2005 111,805 $25,723,366 $230.07 65%: 35% 

2006 175,569 $35,386,306 $201.55 68%: 32% 

2007 114,886 $21,853,906 $190.22 91%: 09% 

2008 None None $0 0%: 0% 

2009 55,252 $10,781,853 $195.14 45%: 55% 

2010 17,879 $3,825,350 $213.96 0%: 100% 

1 Long-term Storage Credits transferred from CAWCD. 

20 



Final Draft 

Long-term Storage Credits Distributed or Extinguished by the Authority 

The long-term storage credits developed by the AWBA to date have been identified for five purposes: 
firming CAP M&I entitlements; firming the post-1968 M&I entitlements for entities outside the CAP 
service area; firming for the Federal obligation under the AWRSA; fulfilling the water management 
objectives set forth in Chapter 2 of Title 45 (Arizona Revised Statutes); and for interstate water 
banking purposes pursuant to agreements with Nevada. Credits created by the AWBA for firming 
purposes may be distributed or extinguished when the Colorado River system is deemed to be in a 
shortage or if there is an operational disruption of the CAP. There were no shortages or unplanned 
CAP operational problems, therefore, no credits were distributed or extinguished for these purposes 
in 2010. No credits were distributed or extinguished in 2010 for water management purposes. 

Under the 1999 amendments to the AWBA legislation, the AWBA is authorized to develop credits with 
monies collected pursuant to water banking services agreements. In 2010, no credits were 
developed or distributed under such agreements. 

The AWBA did not recover or distribute any credits in 2010, however, CAWCD did recover long-term 
storage credits held by CAWCD on behalf of Metropolitan. A total of 8,159 acre-feet of credits were 
recovered by CAWCD, extinguished from their long-term storage account and delivered to the 
irigation districts in Pinal County in lieu of a portion their CAP agricultural pool water. 

21 



Final Draft 

Ten-Year Plan 

Introduction 

Preparation of the ten-year plan is statutorily mandated. The ten-year plan must include a description 
of any water banking activities the AWBA intends to undertake in addition to the three primary AWBA 
functions of firming for M&I supplies, assisting in Indian water rights settlements, and fulfilling state 
water management objectives. The ten-year plan is presented in Table 7. The ten-year plan must 
also provide an analysis of the AWBA's ability to complete those activities. This analysis is provided 
in Table 8. The ten-year plan is not a guarantee of future storage activities and is completed for 
planning purposes only. In any given year, the AWBA's activities are governed by the annual Plan of 
Operation. 

The ten-year plan (Table 7) analyzes activity for the period 2012-2021 and was derived using the 
information found in Appendices A through J. AWBA accounting for previous years can be found in 
the 2009 Annual Report and 2011 Plan of Operation. AWBA staff developed the ten-year plan based 
on the following guiding principles: 

1. Legislative transfers from the AWB Fund no longer occur.
2. The intent of the plan is to evaluate if the AWBA can engage in water banking activities beyond

the scope of the currently established AWBA role and to what extent.
3. The plan covers a ten-year time period beginning with the next calendar year. For example, this

ten-year plan covers the time period 2012-2021.
4. The plan is updated annually based on current priorities of the AWBA.
5. The plan is an important tool to be utilized in development of: 1) the next year's annual Plan of

Operation and 2) policy guidelines for future AWBA activities.

Ten-Year Plan Components 

The following factors are recognized to be important elements in developing the model used to 
generate the ten-year plan. Inclusion or exclusion of a specific factor or component of a factor was 
based on whether the extent of the effect of the factor could be predicted over the planning period, 
and whether the factor was anticipated to be at issue over the planning period. 

1 . Storage Partners and Storage Capacity 

The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for GSFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 427,547.7 acre-feet per year. Because most of the GSF operators in the Phoenix 
AMA have not partnered with the AWBA in the past several years, storage at these facilities 
has not been included in this ten-year plan. However, even though storage has also been 
limited at Tucson AMA GSFs, storage is anticipated during the next 10 years because of the 
different cost share applied to the Tucson AMA in 2009 and 2010. Therefore GSF storage has 
been included in this ten-year plan for the Tucson AMA. 

All of the GSF permits will expire within this ten-year plan. In most instances, the AWBA's 
water storage permits and agreements will also expire. The AWBA will still pursue renewals of 

22 



Final Draft 
its permits and agreements with those GSF operators who are interested in potential future 
partnerships with the AWBA. 

The AWBA currently has nine water storage permits for USFs with a total permitted storage 
capacity of 561,000 acre-feet per year. Storage capacity available to the AWBA, primarily at 
CAWCD operated facilities, has decreased over the last few years because of storage by other 
participants. Storage capacity could continue to decline as additional entities contract with 
CAWCD and are issued water storage permits by ADWR. However, the actual capacity used 
by these entities could be limited by the availability of water to those entities. The ten-year 
plan assumes that sufficient storage capacity to store the amount of water assumed to be 
available to the AWBA under CAWCD's policy for distributing Excess CAP water. However, it 
is possible the location of AWBA storage could be affected in the future. 

In addition, six of these USF permits will expire within this ten-year plan. Any difficulty in 
obtaining new permits could also impact the capacity available to the AWBA. However, 
impacts of this nature cannot be predicted and were discounted in the analysis of this ten-year 
plan and the permits were assumed to be renewed. 

As with the GSFs, all of the agreements for water storage at these USFs will expire within this 
ten-year planning period. Although the AWBA has current water storage permits for the 
GRUSP and Vidler USFs, the AWBA's water storage agreements with these facility operators 
have expired. Thus storage at these two facilities has not been included in this ten-year plan. 

Appendix C describes the storage partners, storage permits, and capacity available for use by 
the AWBA. It also identifies the partners that the AWBA included in development of this ten
year plan. 

23 



Final Draft 

Table 7. Ten-year plan 

ARIZONA WATER BANKING AUTHORITY-Ten-Year Plan 
2011 - 2020 

(Acre-feet) 

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) (f) (g) (h) (i) G)
CAP Water Appropriation Shortage 

YEAR Water CAP M&I Firming 
Management from Reparations 

Indian Interstate Banking 
Avail for (4¢ tax) Settlement 
AWBA 

(Withdrawal Fees) General Fund ($8 Million) 

Water 
AWBA 

Del. Credits Del. Credits Del. Credits Del. Credits Del. Credits Capacity Credits 
Avail. 

Avail. 

Pre-
n/a 1,818,855 560,418 403,830 82,630 225,646 

Plan(hl 600,651 

2,012 149,000 119,981 111,582 4,566 3,316 0 0 0 0 24,453 22,742 0 159,700 0 

2,013 148,000 119,412 111,053 4,452 3,211 0 0 0 0 24,136 22,446 0 166,000 0 

2,014 147,000 117,980 109,721 4,508 3,263 0 0 0 0 24,512 22,796 0 178,100 0 

2,015 146,000 117,448 109,226 4,425 3,185 0 0 0 0 24,127 22,438 0 179,000 0 

2,016 145,000 116,044 107,921 4,452 3,211 0 0 0 0 24,504 22,788 0 179,900 0 

2,017 144,000 101,785 94,660 4,414 3,175 0 0 0 0 24,499 22,784 13,302 193,102 12,371 

2,018 143,000 101,862 94,732 4,376 3,140 0 0 0 0 24,496 22,781 12,265 192,965 11,406 

2,019 142,000 101,939 94,803 4,339 3,105 0 0 0 0 24,495 22,780 11,227 192,827 10,441 

2,020 141,000 102,016 94,590 4,302 3,071 0 0 0 0 24,494 22,742 10,188 192,688 9,475 

2,021 140,000 102,092 94,660 4,266 3,037 0 0 0 0 24,495 22,743 9,147 192,547 8,507 

TOTAL 2,841,803 592,132 403,830 82,630 452,686 652,851 

FOOTNOTES: 
(a) Assumes AWBA Pool of 175KAF less CAGRD projected replenishment reserve and Bureau of Reclamation Indian firming uses. See Appendix B.
(b) See Appendix D.
(c) See Appendix E. Includes direct delivery of 1,000 AF of water each year to the Southside Replenishment Bank.
(d) See Appendix F.
(e) See Appendix G.

ICUA 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

20,000 
30,000 
40,000 

(k) 

Remaining 
Credits 

600,651 

600,651 

600,651 

600,651 

600,651 

600,651 

613,022 
624,428 
614,869 
594,344 

(f) See Appendix H. A.R.S. §45-2491 (8)(2) allows for the use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been expended. Withdrawal fee credits
accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs could be utilized to meet this obligation. The Pre-Plan amount includes credits accrued from storage at the GRIIDD GSF and withdrawal fee
credits accrued in the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs since 2008. The State Indian settlement firming obligation is estimated at 550,000 AF. In addition, 34,102 AF of credits have been
accrued to meet the State's obligation under Section 306 of the AZ Water Settlement's Act ($3 million for Federal assistance).
(g) Available AWBA CAP supplies minus intrastate deliveries.
(h) See Appendix I.
(i) Cumulative totals for 1997-2011; 2010 are actual credits and 2011 are estimated based on projected deliveries.
G) Pursuant to the Recovery Agreement among the AWBA, CAWCD, SNWA, and CRCN executed June 9, 2010, recovery is anticipated to begin on or after 2018. The Plan
assumes maximum allowable annual recovery as described in the Second Amended Agreement.
(k) Credits remaining available in Nevada sub-account after recovery.

24 



T bl 8 AWBAP a e . ercen ta 1ge o oas C Ieve fG I Ah" d th roug h 2021 

Location and Funding Source Goal Obligation Non-Credit Credits' Percent 
Objective Goal/Oblig. Accrued Goal/Oblig. 

Achieved (AF) Achieved 

Phoenix AMA 
M&I Firming2 

Ad valorem tax 1,566,000 AF 2,138,563 137% 
Groundwater M gmt3 Withdrawal Fees 118,855 

Pinal AMA 
M&I Firming2 

Ad valorem tax 243,000AF 220,575 91% 
Groundwater M gmt3 Withdrawal Fees 220,510 182% 

Tucson AMA 
M&I Firming Ad valorem tax 864,000AF 482,665 56% 
Groundwater M gmt3 Withdrawal Fees 121,351 70% 

On-River M&I 
Firming4 General Fund 420,000AF 403,830 96% 

Indian Settlements5 

350,000 AF6 

up to 15,000 
GRIC Firming Withdrawal Fees AFMR 350,000 100% 

Phoenix AMA 88,313 

Pinal AMA 261,687 

200,000 AF6 

up to 8,724 
Future Settlements Withdrawal Fees AFMR 200,000 100% 

Federal Assistance Appropriation $3,000,000 $3,000,000 34,126 100% 
SAWRSA Withdrawal Fees 

15,000 AF 
Southside Repl. Bank Withdrawal Fees Direct Delivery 13,000 0 87% 

Interstate Water Contract with 
Banking· NV Nevada 1,250,000 AF 652,851 52% 

Shortage 
Reparations- Gifts, Grants, 
Nevada Donations $8,000 000 $2,999,748 82,050 37% 
11997-2011; actual credits through 201 0 and estimated credits for 2011 based on projected deliveries.
2 The M&I firming goal for the Phoenix AMA is met in 2015. Firming goals may be exceeded if monies, water, and capacity are available.
3 Pursuant to House Bill 2835, firming M&I supplies is a water management objective for the use of credits developed by groundwater 

withdrawal fees. Utilizing withdrawal fee credits, 70% of the Tucson AMA firming goal will be met by 2021. Existing withdrawal fee 
credits can be used to meet the Pinal AMA firming goal. 

4 By resolution passed in 2002, the AWBA established on-river firming as the highest priority of use for credits accrued through expenditure
of general fund appropriations. Pursuant to the AWBA Agreement to Firm with the M ohave County Water Authority (MCWA) dated 
February 4, 2005, a total of 230,280 acre-feet of credits were transferred to the AWBA long-term-storage sub-account for the MCWA in 
2005. 

5 A.R.S. §45-2491 (8)(2) allows for the use of withdrawal fees after legislative appropriations for Indian firming have been expended. By 
utilizing credits accrued from storage at the GRII DD and credits accrued from withdrawal fees in the Pinal and Phoenix AMAs in this ten
year plan, about 59% of the GRIC and 64% of the future settlement firming goals are estimated to be met in 2021. Existing withdrawal 
fee credits from the Pinal and Phoenix AMAs were used to meet the remainder of the firming goals for the GRIC and future settlements, 
respectively. 

6 Based on estimates from the Indian Firming Study Commission Report dated January 6, 2006. The AWBA is required to firm up to 23,724 
acre-feet per year during shortages. If the firming goal has been underestimated, there are additional withdrawal fee credits available in 
the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs to meet this obligation. 

25 



2. Recovery

This ten-year plan includes a recovery component for interstate purposes pursuant to the 
Second Amended Agreement. The Second Amended Agreement authorizes Nevada to 
request development of ICUA, as follows: in the initial year, an amount not exceeding 20,000 
acre-feet; the second year, an amount not exceeding 30,000 acre-feet; and in all subsequent 
years, an amount not exceeding 40,000 acre-feet. 

The water supply for this ten-year plan includes only normal year deliveries and does not 
include any shortage year deliveries. ADWR and CAWCD staff work cooperatively on long
range shortage projections. Model analyses based on Reclamation's Colorado River System 
Simulation model indicate that by the end of the ten years there is approximately a one- in
four chance (25% probability) that shortages may occur. Using Arizona's assumptions in the 
model the probability of shortage could be reduced to approximately 10% to 15%. Shortages 
occurs near the end of the period and the probability is low enough that a shortage delivery 
scenario was not evaluated in this ten-year plan. Under CAWCD's policy for distributing 
Excess water (Appendix J), shortages would first be applied to the M&I users in the excess 
pool. Absent this policy, the AWBA has the lowest priority for CAP water so any reduction in 
CAP supplies would impact the AWBA first. 

It is not likely that credits would have to be recovered to firm CAP M&I supplies because there 
should be enough lower priority CAP water to absorb any shortage to CAP during the next ten 
years If shortages do occur they would most likely reduce excess CAP supply available for 
storage. However, a shortage could require the recovery of credits to meet some other firming 
obligations. On-river M&I deliveries and NIA water being delivered pursuant to Indian 
settlements could be at risk but not until late in the ten-year period. If reductions to the on-river 
M&I users occur those reductions could trigger the need recover credits to firm M&I on-river 
supplies. In addition to the recovery required for the on-river users, the AWBA might be 
required to recover credits to meet its obligation for Indian firming. However absent shortages, 
the only recovery planned for this ten-year plan is for interstate purposes. Even though 
recovery for shortages is not anticipated for this ten-year plan, recognizing the lead time to 
implement recovery, plans should be developed put in place. .AWBA, CAWCD and interested 
parties continue to evaluate recovery options and analyze of impacts of shortage on Excess 
CAP water supply. 

3. Water management objectives

The early activities of the AWBA were focused on achieving the goal of full utilization of 
Arizona's Colorado River allocation. With the exception of 2005, Arizona has been meeting 
this goal since 2002. Another primary objective of the AWBA is meeting the M&I firming goals. 
By the end of 2011 the AWBA anticipates having stored over 1.8 MAF of credits for that 
purpose. The ten-year plan again shows that meeting the goal set for firming Tucson AMA 
supplies is problematic. 

26 



4. Funding

A WBA General Fund Appropriation

The AWBA has not received a general fund appropriation that was not subject to restrictions
since 2001. Consequently, the ten-year plan does not include the expenditure of general fund
appropriations.

Groundwater Withdrawal Fees

In addition to meeting the water management objectives of the AMAs in which the fees were
collected, the AWBA may also utilize withdrawal fees to meet the M&I demands of CAP
subcontractors, to implement the settlement of water rights claims by Indian communities in
Arizona and to meet the AWBA SSRB obligation. This ten-year plan utilizes withdrawal fees to
accrue long term storage credits and for the purchase of CAP water for the purpose of
establishing the SSRB.

Ad valorem Tax

Pursuant to A.RS. §48-3715.03(8), 4¢ ad valorem taxes levied and collected by CAWCD that
are not deposited in the CAWCD fund, shall be deposited into subaccounts held by the AWBA;
one for each of the three counties in which the taxes were collected. CAWCD has not
deposited monies collected into these AWBA subaccounts since 2003. The AWBA has since
expended all available funds that remained in its subaccounts. CAWCD has however assisted
the AWBA by offsetting AWBA water delivery and storage costs using the 4¢ ad valorem tax
held in its own accounts. This ten-year plan relies on the continuation of CAWCD offsetting
the AWBA's costs. It is important to note that A.RS. §48-3715.02, which provides CAWCD
the authority to levy the ad valorem tax for water storage, will be repealed effective January 2,
2017. Therefore, this ten-year plan does not include collection of the ad-valorem tax beyond
2016.

Appropriations for Indian Firming

This ten-year plan does not include any general fund appropriations for Indian firming. Any
recover needed to meet the AWBA's Indian firming obligations during shortages would require
the use of Withdrawal Fee credits.

Funding for Interstate Banking

Provisions in the Second Amended Agreement allow the AWBA and the SNWA to revise the
annual payment schedule to provide operational flexibility. When water is not available for
interstate storage this flexibility benefits both the AWBA and SNWA. Water supplies for
interstate storage are expected to be minimal during this ten-year plan. When interstate
storage occurs, monies will be deposited in the Operating Account by SNWA and will be used
for those deliveries.

Gifts, Grants, or Donations

Pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement, Nevada will provide to the
AWBA $8 million in order to assist Arizona in offsetting impacts that may occur during the

27 



Interim Period; the period beginning on the date the Secretary of the Interior issued the Record 
of Decision, December 2007, and ending on December 31, 2025. The AWBA utilized a portion 
of these funds in 2008 to purchase and storage of CAP water. A final plan for the use of these 
funds has not yet been adopted by the Authority; therefore further expenditure of these funds 
has not been included in this ten-year plan. 

5. Modifications within CAWCD with regard to pricing and pool allocation

Because of the demand for Excess CAP water, CAWCD adopted a policy in June, 2009 that 
established four separate pools, in addition to the NIA pool, thereby accounting for all Excess 
CAP water (see Appendix J). The NIA pool is a pool of 400,000 acre-feet which declines to 
300,000 acre-feet in 2017 and remains there for the remainder of the ten-year plan. While 
CAWCD's policy is effective through 2014, this ten-year plan assumes a similar policy will be in 
effect for the entire ten-year period. The AWBA's water availability was determined by 
subtracting the CAGRD's projected storage amounts for replenishment reserve purposes from 
the shared pool of 175,000 acre-feet identified in the policy. This ten-year plan also 
incorporates CAWCD's 2011/2012 rate schedule, updated in June of 2011, which no longer 
includes incentive recharge water. 

6. Participation in Indian settlements

One objective of the AWBA is assisting with the settlement of water rights claims by Indian 
communities within Arizona. The State of Arizona has a 1 OD-year firming obligation under the 
AWRSA. The AWBA also has statutorily mandated responsibilities for the SSRB. 

This ten-year plan includes a component for meeting the State's Indian settlement firming 
obligation. Since future appropriations from the Legislature cannot be expected, withdrawal fee 
credits from the Phoenix and Pinal AMAs could be used to meet this obligation while still 
maintaining credits for other water management purposes. This includes credits that were 
previously accrued from water stored at the GRIIDD GSF. The AWBA retains full rights to the 
credits developed at the GRIIDD GSF until such time the credits are dedicated specifically for 
meeting the State's Indian firming obligation. 

This ten-year plan also includes a component for meeting the initial SSRB obligation of 15,000 
acre-feet. The AWBA will have delivered 3,000 acre-feet for this purpose by the end of 2011 
and has identified an additional 10,000 acre-feet of deliveries under this plan, 1,000 acre-feet 
each year, leaving 2,000 acre-feet that must be delivered after 2021. Withdrawal fees 
collected in the Pinal AMA are used to meet this obligation. 

7. New recharge facilities and/or expanded capacities at existing facilities

The AWBA completed a revised inventory of existing storage facilities in the state as required 
by A.R.S. §45-2452, which was approved by the Authority on March 17, 2011. The revised 
inventory was utilized to develop this ten-year plan. 

CAWCD was issued an underground storage facility permit from ADWR to operate the 
Superstition Mountains Recharge project located in the east Salt River Valley in January 2008. 
The project will be built in two phases. Phase one is expected to be operational by the third 
quarter of 2011 and has a permitted storage capacity of 25,000 acre-feet per year. Phase two 
of the project, if built, would increase the permitted storage capacity to 56,500 acre-feet per 

28 



year. The AWBA expects to utilize capacity at this facility once constructed and has therefore 
included it in this ten-year plan. 

8. Interstate banking

The ten-year plan includes an interstate water banking component for Nevada and indicates
that only 52 percent, or 652,851 acre-feet of credits of the 1,250,000 ace-feet of credits
needed to meet the Nevada obligation, could be created by 2021.

Although this ten-year plan identifies storage for interstate purposes beginning in 2017, it is not
certain that water will be available for this purpose if the amount of water available in the
AWBA's pool is less than predicted. In contrast, it is also possible that additional water could
become available for interstate banking due to unanticipated precipitation or decreased water
orders by other CAP customers. Nevada could also make its unused apportionment available
to the AWBA for storage in Arizona. These events cannot be foreseen however, and are
therefore not included in this plan.

Given that there is limited water available for interstate banking, the AWBA Commission has
directed staff to pursue opportunities with CAWCD to increase CAP supplies through the
acquisition of additional water supplies. Some of the supplies being assessed include
Colorado River water, mainstream tribal leases, and excess recharge credits and may require
AWBA to pursue new legislation. Any additional supplies that become available would be
addressed as part of the AWBA's Annual Plan of Operation and succeeding ten-year plans.

Conclusion 

The ten-year plan is intended to serve as a guide to assist the AWBA in the development of 
the Annual Plan. The AWBA is required to develop a plan for activities to be undertaken the 
following calendar year. As part of the Annual Report, the ten-year plan is reviewed and 
updated annually. Therefore, it is possible that the ten-year plan may change significantly 
depending on the goals set by the AWBA. Several conclusions that could be reached given 
this ten-year plan are: 

1) There may not be sufficient Excess CAP water to meet the state's obligation to Nevada.

2) Funding becomes a limiting factor in both Pinal and Pima County.

3) The magnitude of carryover funds in Maricopa County could become an issue in future
years.

4) Absent future appropriations, withdrawal fees will become the principle source of funding
for Indian firming.

29 



Appendice
s 

30 



APPENDIX A 
Colorado River Water Deliveries for Water Banking Purposes 

for Calendar Year 2010 by Partner and Active Management Area 

Quantity of Water 

Partner (Acre-feet) 

Intrastate Interstate 

<C Agua Fria Recharge Project 2,604 
:!!: 
<C 

� Hieroglyphic Mountain Recharge Project 5,002 

z 

Tonopah Desert Recharge Project 79,545 5,000 
0 

a. Queen Creek Irrigation District 309 0 

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 87,460 5,000 

Phoenix AMA Subtotal 92,460 

Central Arizona Irrigation and Drainage District 13,196 0 

<C 
:!!: Hohokam Irrigation and Drainage District 7,000 0 
<C 
.-I Maricopa-Stanfield Irrigation and Drainage 

15,634 0 <C District z 

a. Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 35,830 0 

Pinal AMA Subtotal 35,830 

Avra Valley Recharge Project 3,777 546 

<C 
Lower Santa Cruz Recharge Project 20,645 8,454 

:!!: 
CAVSARP 0 5,000 <C 

z 

0 SAVSARP 41,000 0 

Cortaro-Marana Irrigation District 4,000 0 
I-

Intrastate/Interstate AMA Subtotal 69,422 14,000 

Tucson AMA Subtotal 83,422 

TOTAL INTRASTATE & INTERSTATE DELIVERIES 192,712 19,000 

TOTAL DELIVERIES 211,712 



Appendix B 

CAP Delivery Schedule 
(Acre-feet 

Bankinq Pool
5 

Total CAP Federal & 
Year Deliveries 

1 
M&l2 lndian

3 
Ag

4 
CAGRD AWBA 

2012 1,525,000 759,000 366,000 400,000 26,000 149,000 

2013 1,525,000 748,100 376,900 400,000 27,000 148,000 

2014 1,525,000 746,600 378,400 400,000 28,000 147,000 

2015 1,525,000 745,100 379,900 400,000 29,000 146,000 

2016 1,525,000 743,600 381,400 400,000 30,000 145,000 

2017 1,525,000 842,100 382,900 300,000 31,000 144,000 

2018 1,525,000 840,600 384,400 300,000 32,000 143,000 

2019 1,525,000 839,100 385,900 300,000 33,000 142,000 

2020 1,525,000 837,600 387,400 300,000 34,000 141,000 

2021 1 525,000 836 100 388 900 300 000 35 000 140 000 

1 
Based on average diversion, less losses 

2 
Includes excess CAP, and federal water used by M&I users through 
leases, exchanges and assignments 

3 
Includes on & off-reservation deliveries for Indian uses (including recharge) 

4 Ag settlment pool water, including deliveries made to the Harquahala INA 
5 

Based on a planning assumption that CAWCD's current Access to Excess 
policy is extended 



APPENDIXC 
STORAGE FACILITIES AVAILABLE TO THE AWBA 

(as used in the Ten-Year Plan) 

Facility Facility Capacity 
Year 

Volume of 
AMA and Permit Permitted Available 

Water 
Water Last 

Facility Type 
1 Expiration Capacity toAWBA2 Last 

Stored 
(AF) (AF) Stored (AF) 

PHOENIX -GSF3 

Queen Creek ID 12/2015 28,000 7,000 2010 309 
PHOENIX -USF 

Agua Fria Recharge 05/2019 100,000 5,000 2010 2,604 Project 
Hieroglyphic Mtns. 12/2021 35,000 5,000 2010 5,002 
Tonopah Desert RP 09/2025 150,000 100,000 2010 79,545 
West Maricopa Combine - 05/2021 25,000 5,000 4 0 
USF 

PINAL-GSF 
Central Arizona IDD 12/2017 110,000 60,000 2010 13,196 
Hohokam IDD 10/2012 55,000 20,000 2010 7,000 
Maricopa-Stanfield IDD 12/2019 120,000 60,000 2010 15,634 

TUCSON-GSF 
Cortaro-Marana ID 11/2013 20,000 5,000 2010 4,000 
Kai-Farms- Red Rock 11/2016 11,231 2,000 2009 1,893 

TUCSON-USF 
Avra Valley 03/2018 11,000 2,000 2010 4,323 
CAVSARP 12/2028 100,000 10,000 2010 5,000 
Lower Santa Cruz 02/2019 50,000 25,000 2010 29,099 
Pima Mine Road 09/2020 30,000 5,000 2009 16 
SAVSARP 01/2028 60,000 20,000 2010 41,000 

Other Facilities Currently or Anticipated to be Available to the AWBA 
Superstition Mtn.-USF 01/2028 56,500" 10,000 ti n/a 

Footnotes: 
(1) As additional facilities are developed, they will be included in future plans.
(2) This does not reflect the actual "permitted" volume for these facilities; instead for the purposes

of this plan, staff relied on average historical storage volumes and potential for future storage.
Capacity available to the AWBA at the Avra Valley facility decreases 900 AF by 2021.

(3) The AWBA also holds water storage permits at New Magma ID (54,000 AF), Tonopah ID
(15,000 AF), and BKW Farms (16,000 AF) GSFs. These were not considered significant uses
in this ten-year outlook.

(4) No deliveries to date.
(5) Phase one of the facility is permitted for 25,000 AF per year.
(6) Water Storage Permit application pending.



APPENDIX D 

Credits Developed for M&I Firming Utilizing the 4¢ Tax 1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 
N Pre-plan3 529,779 739,951 
<( 2012 1,589 0 0 101,823 76,747 71,374 
:E 2013 796 0 0 102,735 90,173 83,861 
<( 

>< 
2014 723 0 0 101,826 88 511 82,315 

z 
2015 809 0 0 101,990 87,097 81,000 

w 2016 1,035 0 0 101,683 82,622 76,838 
0 2017 0 0 0 101,785 101,785 94,660 
0.. 2018 0 0 0 101,862 101,862 94,732 

2019 0 0 0 101,939 101,939 94,803 
2020 0 0 0 102,016 102,016 94,590 
2021 0 0 0 102,092 102,092 94,660 

Total 529,779 1,608,784 
Groundwater Savings Under�round Storage 

Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Year Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 

Pre-olan3 175,444 
N 2012 116,635 17,566 16,336 - - -

<( 2013 116,833 7,545 7,016 :E 
- - -

<( 2014 128,439 7,529 7,002 - - -

...J 2015 128,574 7,574 7,044 - - -

<( 2016 128,279 8,315 7,733 - - -
z 

0.. 
2017 128,216 0 0 - - -

2018 128,141 0 0 - - -

2019 128,066 0 0 - - -

2020 127,990 0 0 - - -

2021 127,913 0 0 - - -

Total 220,575 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Year Available4 Used Earned Available4 Used Earned 

N 
Pre-plan3 11,188 362,493 

<( 2012 3,434 3,434 3,194 56,200 22,234 20,678 
:E 2013 3,548 3,548 3,299 61,500 18,147 16,877 
<( 2014 3,492 3,492 3,248 61,600 18,448 17,156 
z 2015 3,575 3,575 3,325 61,500 19,202 17,858 
0 

2016 3,548 3,548 3,299 61,400 21,560 20,050 
2017 3,586 0 0 61,300 0 0 

::::, 2018 3,624 0 0 61,200 0 0 I-

2019 3,661 0 0 61,100 0 0 
2020 3,698 0 0 61,000 0 0 
2021 3,734 0 0 60,900 0 0 

Total 27,553 455,112 
Footnotes: 
(1) Development of M&I firming credits followed utilization of other funds in the Arizona Water Banking Fund. 
(2) M&I firming targets are Phoenix AMA - 1.566 MAF, Pinal AMA - 243,000 AF, and Tucson AMA- 864,000

AF.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2011; 2011 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.
(4) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority

demands have been met.



APPENDIX E 
Credits Developed for Meeting AMA Water Management Goals 

Utilizing Withdrawal Fees 1

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available3 Used Earned Available3 Used Earned 
Pre-plan:l 145,644 133,914 

<( 2012 7,000 5,411 5,033 110,500 8,677 8,069 
<( 2013 7,000 6,204 5,770 110,500 7,765 7,221 

� 2014 6,000 5,277 4,908 110,500 8,674 8,067 
z 2015 6,000 5,191 4,828 110,500 8,510 7,914 
w 2016 6,000 4,965 4,617 110,500 8,817 8,200 
0 

2017 5,000 5,000 4,650 110,500 8,715 8,105 
a. 2018 5,000 5,000 4,650 110,500 8,638 8,033 

2019 5,000 5,000 4,650 110,500 8,561 7,962 
2020 5,000 5,000 4,636 110,500 8,484 7,866 
2021 5,000 5,000 4,636 110,500 8,408 7,795 

Total 194,022 213,146 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available3 Used Earned Available3 Used Earned 

Pre-plan� 382,768 0 

<C 
2012 128,000 11,365 9,640 - - -

::ii!: 2013 128,000 11,167 9,455 - - -
<C 2014 140,000 11,561 9,822 - - -
..J 2015 140,000 11,426 9,696 - - -
<C 

2016 140,000 11,721 9,971 z 
- - -

a. 2017 140,000 11,784 10,029 - - -

2018 140,000 11,859 10,098 - - -

2019 140,000 11,934 10,168 - - -

2020 140,000 12,010 10,239 - - -

2021 140,000 12,087 10,311 - - -

Total 482,197 0 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available3 Used Earned Available3 

Used Earned 

<C 
Pre-plan� 4,877 90,381 

::ii!: 2012 7,000 3,566 3,316 56,200 0 0 
<C 2013 7,000 3,452 3,211 61,500 0 0 
z 2014 7,000 3,508 3,263 61,600 0 0 
0 2015 7,000 3,425 3,185 61,500 0 0 
u, 2016 7,000 3,452 3,211 61,400 0 0 
0 2017 7,000 3,414 3,175 61,300 0 0 

2018 7,000 3,376 3,140 61,200 0 0 
2019 7,000 3,339 3,105 61,100 0 0 
2020 7,000 3,302 3,071 61,000 0 0 
2021 7,000 3,266 3,037 60,900 0 0 

Total 36,591 90,381 

(1) Expenditure of withdrawal fees was given the highest priority.
(2) Cumulative totals for 1997-2011; 2011 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.
(3) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority demands

have been met.



APPENDIX F 
Credits Developed Utilizing Annual General Fund Appropriations 1 •2 

(Acre-feet) 
Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 

Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 
Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<( 
Pre-plan

3 
16,275 26,041 

::E 
2012 1,589 0 0 101,823 0 0 

<( 2013 796 0 0 102,735 0 0 

>< 2014 723 0 0 101,826 0 0 

z 2015 809 0 0 101,990 0 0 
2016 1,035 0 0 101,683 0 0 

0 2017 0 0 0 101,785 0 0 
a. 2018 0 0 0 101,862 0 0 

2019 0 0 0 101,939 0 0 
2020 0 0 0 102,016 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 102,092 0 0 

Total 16,275 26,041 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 

306,968 

<( 2012 128,000 0 0 - - -

::E 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

<( 2014 140,000 0 0 - - -

...J 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -

<( 
2016 140,000 0 0 z 

- - -

a. 2017 140,000 0 0 - - -

2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 306,968 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 

2,846 51,700 
<( 2012 7,000 0 0 56,200 0 0 
::E 

2013 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 <( 

z 
2014 7,000 0 0 61,600 0 0 

0 2015 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 

2016 7,000 0 0 61,400 0 0 
0 

2017 7,000 0 0 61,300 0 0 
2018 7,000 0 0 61,200 0 0 
2019 7,000 0 0 61,100 0 0 
2020 7,000 0 0 61,000 0 0 
2021 7,000 0 0 60,900 0 0 

Total 2,846 51 700 

Footnotes: 
(1) The ten-year plan does not include a component for General Fund appropriations.
(2) The on-river M&I firming target is 420,000 AF.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2011.



APPENDIXG 
Credits Developed Utilizing Funds Dedicated for Shortage Reparations 1

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<( 
Pre-plan3 4,590 16,051 

:al: 
2012 1,589 0 0 101,823 0 0 

<( 2013 796 0 0 102,735 0 0 

>< 2014 723 0 0 101,826 0 0 

z 2015 809 0 0 101,990 0 0 
w 2016 1,035 0 0 101,683 0 0 
0 2017 0 0 0 101,785 0 0 

2018 0 0 0 101,862 0 0 
2019 0 0 0 101,939 0 0 
2020 0 0 0 102,016 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 102,092 0 0 

Total 4,590 16,051 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 

Pre-plan3 60,782 

<( 2012 128,000 0 0 - - -

:al: 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

<( 2014 140,000 0 0 - - -

..J 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -

<( 
2016 140,000 0 0 z 

- - -

a: 2017 140,000 0 0 - - -

2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 60,782 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available2 Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-plan3 0 1,205 

<( 2012 7,000 0 0 56,200 0 0 
:al: 

2013 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 
<( 

z 
2014 7,000 0 0 61,600 0 0 

0 2015 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 
Cl) 2016 7,000 0 0 61,400 0 0 
CJ 

2017 7,000 0 0 61,300 0 0 
2018 7,000 0 0 61,200 0 0 
2019 7,000 0 0 61,100 0 0 
2020 7,000 0 0 61,000 0 0 

2021 7,000 0 0 60,900 0 0 
Total 0 1,205 

Footnotes: 
(1) $8 million received from Nevada pursuant to the Arizona-Nevada Shortage-Sharing Agreement to assist

Arizona in offsetting the impacts of shortages during the Interim Period.
(2) The capacity available is based on the capacity remaining at the USFs and GSFs after all higher priority

demands have been met.
(3) Cumulative totals for 1997-2011.



APPENDIX H 
Credits Developed Utilizing Indian Settlement Appropriations 1 

(Acre-feet) 

Groundwater Savings Underground Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

<( 
Pre-plan 0 0 

:E: 
2012 1,589 0 0 101,823 0 0 

<( 2013 796 0 0 102,735 0 0 

>< 2014 723 0 0 101,826 0 0 

z 2015 809 0 0 101,990 0 0 
w 2016 1,035 0 0 101,683 0 0 
0 2017 0 0 0 101,785 0 0 
D.. 2018 0 0 0 101,862 0 0 

2019 0 0 0 101,939 0 0 
2020 0 0 0 102,016 0 0 
2021 0 0 0 102,092 0 0 

Total 0 0 

Groundwater Savinas Undernround Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 

Pre-olan 0 

<( 
2012 128,000 0 0 - - -

:E: 2013 128,000 0 0 - - -

<( 2014 140:000 0 0 - - -

..J 2015 140,000 0 0 - - -

<( 
2016 140,000 0 0 z 

- - -

D.. 2017 140,000 0 0 - - -

2018 140,000 0 0 - - -

2019 140,000 0 0 - - -

2020 140,000 0 0 - - -

2021 140,000 0 0 - - -

Total 0 

Groundwater Savings Underaround Storage 
Year Capacity Capacity Credits Capacity Capacity Credits 2 

Available Used Earned Available Used Earned 
Pre-olan 0 28,481 

<( 2012 7,000 0 0 56,200 0 0 
:E: 
<( 

2013 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 

z 
2014 7,000 0 0 61,600 0 0 

0 2015 7,000 0 0 61,500 0 0 
Cl) 2016 7,000 0 0 61,400 0 0 

2017 7,000 0 0 61,300 0 0 
I- 2018 7,000 0 0 61,200 0 0 

2019 7,000 0 0 61,100 0 0 
2020 7,000 0 0 61,000 0 0 
2021 7,000 0 0 60,900 0 0 

Total 0 28,481 

Footnotes: 
(1) The State Indian firming target is estimated at 550,000 AF.
(2) Credits accrued through the expenditure of $3 million for assisting Federal government in meeting its firming

obligation under Section 306 of the Arizona Water Settlements Act.



APPENDIX I 
Potential Credits Developed for Interstate Water Banking 1

(Acre-feet) 

Available CAP 
Available 

Remaining Interstate 
Year AWBA 

Supplies 2 

Capacity3 Supply 4 Credits 5 

Pre-plan" 600,651 
2012 0 159,700 0 0 
2013 0 166,000 0 0 
2014 0 178,100 0 0 
2015 0 179,000 0 0 
2016 0 179,900 0 0 
2017 13,302 193,102 0 12,371 
2018 12,265 192,965 0 11,406 
2019 11,227 192,827 0 10,441 
2020 10,188 192,688 0 9,475 
2021 9,147 192,547 0 8,507 

Total 652,851 

Footnotes: 

(1) The AWBA has an obligation to have 1,250,000 acre-feet of credits for the SNWA.

(2) Water available for Interstate Banking is calculated by subtracting the water delivered and stored by the
AWBA for intrastate water banking from the total water supply available for the AWBA (see Appendix
8).

(3) Reflects the unused capacity available to the AWBA at USFs and GSFs in the Phoenix, Pinal, and
Tucson AMAs. Additional capacity may be available at individual facilities based on the utilization by
individual water storage permit holders.

(4) Remaining supplies after subtracting the water delivered and stored by the AWBA for intrastate water
banking and water delivered for interstate water banking.

(5) Based on the Available Supplies or the Available AWBA Capacity, whichever is less, available funding
and an annual limitation of 200,000 AF/YR.

(6) Cumulative totals for 2002-2011; 2011 credits estimated based on projected deliveries.



APPENDIXJ 

CA WCD PROCEDURE TO DISTRIBUTE 

EXCESS WATER 

IN 2010 THROUGH 2014 

Adopted June 4, 2009 

Staff has worked with stakeholders to develop procedures that balance competing interests for the limited 
supply of Excess CAP water. The outcome of this "Access to Excess" process is a Staff Proposal that relies, 
where possible, on consensus among the stakeholders. 

From the total available Excess supply, the Agricultural Settlement Pool is filled first, and is not subject to 
"Access to Excess" provisions. The Staff Proposal then creates four separate pools, in effect for a five year 
period (2010 through 2014). The pools are: AWBA & CAGRD Replenishment Reserve; CAGRD Annual 
Replenishment; Municipal; Industrial & Other. 

The A WBA and CAGRD Replenishment Reserve share a pool of a fixed volume of 175,000 acre-feet 
(A WBA/RR pool). Allocation within this pool is set as part of the existing annual A WBA-CA WCD 
coordination and public meetings. A WBA may use the water for any authorized purpose. 

The pool established for the CAGRD's annual replenishment is capped at 35,000 acre-feet. The remaining 
volume is split evenly between a Municipal pool and an Industrial & Other pool. Water not used by the AWBA 
or CAGRD in either of their pools is split between the Municipal pool and the Industrial & Other pool. 

The Municipal Pool is for public & private water providers. Access within the pool incorporates two different 
approaches: historic use, and equal shares. Historic use is based on each provider's maximum use (Incentive 
plus Full Cost Excess) between 2005 and 2009. In the first year (2010), historic use is the primary allocation 
mechanism (90%), with a small volume (10%) apportioned equally. By the fifth year (2014), the two 
approaches have equal weighting. 

The Industrial & Other pool is open to all other users, but is broken into two tiers-Industrial Tier ( direct use or 
users storing water for a specific project) and Remarketer Tier (users storing water for future credit resale). All 
of the orders for the Industrial Tier users will be filled before allocating and filling orders for the Remarketer 
Tier. Access within the pool is based on a three year rolling average of actual water deliveries for each entity. 
Small users (orders less than 1,000 acre feet/year) will receive their full order as long as that order is not greater 
than in the previous three years. 



Form 7.8 

Certification of Posting of Notice 

Section 7.6.9 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 

The undersigned hereby certifies that .a 1

copy of th� attached notice wa,5 d�ly/filOSted i
1

t !,he Arizona
Department of Water Resources on �l dw h bmrz;L at Jr'/) kV� ti' )11 (,t,h1 1 in
accordance with i statement filed by the Arizona Water Banking Authority.

Dated this ___ftfa'Y of :1UJLl/ , 2011.

Gerry Wildeman, Technical Administrator




